COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Robert P. Casey
Governor

Prepared By:

Office of the Budget
Michael H. Hershock, Secretary

Comptroller Operations |
Harvey C. Eckert, Deputy Secretary



Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

TABLE OF CONTENTS

]NTRODUCTOR_Y SECTION
L 3B 1 =
Table of COontents ... ...vvitnitiierntriessreaccarasasaneassanennsbverssrsroarnannss
Budget Secretary’s Letter of Transmiftal ......... ... o0,
Deputy Secretary’s Letfer of Transmitfal . ......... ..ot
Certificate of Achievement. . ... .....ccciiiitiiiiereeitaiiatsieeinennanarrenrrsosans
Organization and Officials Chart ....... ... o i i
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditors’ Report. ... e e

General Purpose Financial Statements:
Combined Balance Sheet—All Fund Types, Account Groups and Component Units ........
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—-
All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented
Component UNitS. . . ... oviiutiiiniiarseterrrressnerrraneesrotsasrsrseenranens
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)—
General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds. ............00veeanets e
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings/Fund
Balances—All Proprietary Fund Types, Pension Trust Fund and Discretely Presented
Component UniES. . v v v unun e iree et itsnnssttisasnnrrassrerrssssasaeranns
Combined Statement of Cash Flows—All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented
Component UnitS. . . ... iursnnnenaestianesererausiasenernessrarserarrsssseses
Combining Balance Sheet—Discretely Presented Component Units .............0veeviens
Combining Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds—Discretely Presented

Component UnitS. ... ...uvvetirrrsnsrisaneseeenaniacaessonnnnarerreraseansses

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In

Fund Balances—Governmental Funds—Discretely Presented Component Units . ... . vees
Combining Balance Sheet—Proprietary Funds—Discretely Presented Component Units. ... .
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In

Retained Earnings / Fund Balance—Proprietary Funds and Pension Trust

Fund—Discretely Presented Component UnitS . ..o vuuiviiiiiiiiinnnn i iiennenns
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds—Discretely

Presented Component UBES . ..o v v vve i i ettt iianannanennnnens PR
Combining Balance Sheet—College and University Funds—Discretely

Presented Component URit. ... .ovuvinineniniiiineiaeeiinneeernneeiinns AP
Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances—

College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit................
Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances---College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit .......
Notes to Financial Statements . .. ... ..ottt ittt iiiisssssarrriaterrraaaraas

Combining Financial Statements and Schedules:
Special Revenue Funds
Special Revenue Funds—DesCripton . ....voviie ittt it
Combining Balance Sheet—Special Revenue Funds ......c.. oot iin,
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Special Revenue Funds. .. .. .cieiiii it iesiiiiiare i caain i iaaaiananaas
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)—
Budgeted Special Revenue Funds .......ovviiiin i s

Page

o

i

R




Page
Debt Service Funds
Debt Service Funds—DesCription .. ...coii e iiiee i riasiaieiiitisaaaaans 78
Combining Balance Sheet—Debt Service Funds ..., 79
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Debt Service Funds . ..ot i i i ittt e e, 80
Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects Funds—Description . ... .. ooviiiinniiiiiiiiiniiinicinrasnanne, 82
Combining Balance Sheet—Capital Projects Funds .. .. ...cooiviiiiiiiiiiinnns, 83
o Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
- Capital Projects Funds .........ovveetenetnineeerneceeonnneaaeeseanenons 84
Enterprise Funds
Enterprise Funds—Description ........vceiuriioennnrnerneanrasecaannsnaeenss 87
Combining Balance Sheet—Enterprise Funds. ..........coviiiiiiiin i, 38
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings—
Enterprise Funds ... ... i e e e s 29
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Enterprise Funds ..................c0vas, 90
Internal Service Funds ‘
Internal Service Funds—DesCripton .. ... ovietvn it e i eee i ean e 93
Combining Balance Sheet-—Internal Service Funds ............coviuiiiiiaiiiinet, 94
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Eamings— '
Internal Service FURAS .. .00t iniiniviniiinssivsnsasnsaansenessananass 95
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Internal Service Funds.................o00n. 96
Trust and Agency Funds
Trust and Agency Funds—Descriplion .. ... ..o vivnieriereneeenneranneenraannas 98
Combining Balance Sheet—Trust and Agency Funds ........... ..o, 99
Combining Balance Sheet—Expendable Trust Funds ..............oooiiinat, 100
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Expendable Trust Funds . .....ooiiiii i iiiiiie e i neeeas 101
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities—
Agency Funds ..ottt P 102
General Fixed Assets Account Group
General Fixed Assets Account Group—Description ... ... ... i, 106
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Source ...........ocovviiiiiint, 106
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function . .........coiiiiiiiiiiin i, 107
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function ...........coovevivvnnn, 107
STATISTICAL SECTION
Table Page
Revenues by Source and Expenditures by Function—All Governmental Fund Types....... 1 109
Net Bonded Debt Per Capita ... .ovviiiiitiiiianeinriireeersrnssasensecernnanans 2 110
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Requirements for General Bonded Debt to Total
General Fund Expendifures . .. ... coviiireinieiiniineinsrnsrnsrannnssnsanans 3 111
Computation of Legal Debt Margin........ ..ottt iiiiiiniiiiiiiiiinnannnnnnas 4 112
Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage ........v.vviiiiiiiiiiinrinrnnineranannannnns 5 113
Annual Estimates of the Resident Population—Pennsylvania Compared to the
United States . . v v v et it i i i i e e 6 114
State Banking Institutions Demand Deposits and Time and Savings Deposits . . .. ......... 7 115
Resident Employment, Unemployment and Unemployment Rate—Pennsylvania
Compared to the United States ........c.co ittt ittt ir e anas g8 116
Total Personal Income and Per Capita Personal Income—Pennsylvania Compared
to the United States ... .vniin i i i i e e 9 117
Thirty Largest Nongovernmental Employers. ........ oo iiiiiiie it iiieeans. 10 118
List of Major Corporations that Maintain their Corporate Headquarters in the
Commonwealth . ... vt iiiiiie it iatanae s eranaaer e araans 11 119
MisCelianeous StatiStCS + « oo v v vt ites i iitee sttt et it e 12 120




(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

—fy—

F—




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 9, 1994

STEVEN H. ROSSKOPF
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the Citizens of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania represents this
Administration’s continued commitment to sound fiscal management and to responsible financial reporting based on
nationally recognized standards. This CAFR, which includes the Commonwealth’s independéntly audited general purpose
financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, will provide you and the financial community
with all the information required to fully assess the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations and the
management of its financial resources. :

The 1993-94 fiscal year was a year of continuing economic recovery in which employment increased, unemployment
declined and personal income increased at a higher rate than the prior year. These economic trends led to a 6.4 percent
increase in budgetary basis tax revenues of the General Fund, a substantial increase over the 1.0 percent decrease during
the 1992-93 fiscal year. Total budgetary basis revenues of the General Fund for the 1993-94 fiscal year increased by
5.5 percent, also well above the rate for the 1992-93 fiscal year. Revenues for the 1993-94 fiscal year were within
2.0 percent of the revenue estimate. This accuracy has been an important component of effective budgeting during
these last several turbulent years.

The Commonwealth ended the 1993-94 fiscal year with a $336 million surplus on a budgetary basis, prior to the
transfer of $34 million to the Tax Stabilization Reserve (Rainy Day) Fund, while implementing an aggressive agenda
of expanding economic development and job programs, providing for children’s health and education: and opening new
prisons. The surplus was generated by containing Medical Assistance costs, refinancing long-term debt and restraining
spending in all areas of government operations.

During the year ended June 30, 1994, housing capacity for incarcerated offenders increased by over 3,000 beds
as construction was corapleted on a 1,000 cell maximum security prison located in Greene County and additional cells
were occupied at the four correctional institutions opened during the latter part of 1993. In addition, construction began
on a new 1,000 cell prison in Clearfield County.

The Commonwealth continued its long-term commitment to economic development by providing $13.4 million
to the Industrial Communities Program to restore blighted industrial sites to productive use and by transferring $65.5
million from the General Fund to the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Func_i (PERF) for job creation efforts.

Within PERF-funded programs, we provided $14.5 million for the Business Infrastructure Development Program
which makes grants and loans to local sponsors for specific infrastructure improvements that complement private industrial
development. We also provided $7.8 millior from the General Fund for the Industrial Resource Centers Program which
assists traditional and emerging manufacturing firms with implementing modern manufacturing technologies.

We provided $26 million from the Sunny Day Fund to help private industries expand and to attract new businesses
to Pennsylvania. We appropriated $41.5 million from the General Fund and PERF for the Housing and Redevelopment
Program which provides grants to redevelop blighted neighborhoods and to rehabilitate low and moderate-income housing.



Education continues to be the cornerstone of Pennsylvania’s future. We provided $3.09 billion to our public
schools through the Equalized Subsidy for Basic Education and the Equity Supplement. Total funding for basic
education was $5.23 billion, including funding for special education, pupil transportation, tcacher retirement
and social security, and special programs to address the needs of economically and educationally at-risk students. i
In addition, we provided over $1.439 billion for higher education institutions and smdents. . {

The Commonwealth continued to support its military veterans by admitting patients to the 148 bed addi-
tion at the Hollidaysburg Veterans Home, continuing renovations at the Southeastern Veterans Home that will
provide 192 new nursing beds in 1994-95 and opening a newly constructed 200 bed veterans home in Scranton .
during 1994-95,

During the 1993-94 fiscal year, several major pieces of legislation were enacted that created new pro- :
grams or expanded existing programs: b

— Act 1993-44 amended Worker's Compensation by placing a maximum reimbursement cap
of 113 percent on medical payments to medical providers for workers’ injuries and ilinesses;
setting parameters to qualify as self-insured; establishing a Self-Insurance Guaranty Fund;
reéquiring self-insured employers to maintain an accident and illness prevention program for .
retention of self-insured status; authorizing the Insurance Department to refer cases of in- .
surance fraud to appropriate officials; and assigning duties to the Office of Small Business '
Advocate in the Department of Commerce.,

— Act 1993-50 establishes the Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund Act which
provides that 15 percent of Realty Transfer Tax collections be used for deferred maintepance
at State parks and historical sites, and anthorized a $50 million bond referendum for State
and local parks, museums, zoos and libraries. The referendum was approved November 2,
1993. gl

[——1

— Act 1993-62 amends the Domestic Relations Code to increase Family Support including: enabl- ol
ing the Department of Public Welfare to intervene in support proceedings; defining paternity Vo
and support procedures; and suspending, revoking or denying renewal of professional licen- ‘
sure for failure to pay child support. The Act will result in savings since additional support
payments will result in reduced public assistance costs. Aol

— Act 1993-64 enacts the Ben Franklin/TIRC Partnership Act which establishes the Ben
Franklin/IRC Partnership Fund for deposit of State appropriations and other funds for the i
Ben Franklin Technology Centers and the Industrial Resource Centers. Revenues in the fund i
must be annually appropriated by the General Assembly. '

— Act 1993-74 amends the Industrial and Commercial Development Authority Law by renam-
ing it the Economic Development Financing Law and making other changes including enab-
ling certain applicants for PENNVEST financing to qualify for financing through the Penn- .
sylvania Economic Development Finance Authority (PEDFA} and enabling the Depariment I
of Public Welfare to qualify for financing through PEDFA for conversion of the Medical o
Assistance program to a managed care program. :

— Act 1993-77 amends the Second Class County Code to authorize the creation of the Allegheny
Regional Asset District to finance and sapport cultural and recreational assets in Allegheny
County and to provide for the imposition of an additional 1 percent sales tax to be collected
by the Department of Revenue that will be returned to the District for acquisition of regional
cultural and recreational assets.
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— Act 1993-84 terminates the Pennsylvania Crime Commission on December 31, 1994 which
will save the Commonwealth $2.6 million annually in operating costs. Some of these savings
will be offset by the transfer of Commission responsibilities to the Pennsylvania State Police.

— Act 1994-29 amends Titles 24 (Education} and 71 (State Government) to allow the boards
of the State Eraployes® and Public School Employes’ retirement systems to adopt the *‘pru-
dent person’’ investment rule, to provide cost-of-living adjustments to retired annuitants of
both systems, to eliminate the frozen present benefit amount limitation, to reauthorize ‘30
years of service and out,”’ to extend the special window for retirement with additional credits
retroactive to May 15, 1992 for school retirees and to grant $55 per month towards health -
insurance for school retirees with 15 years of service.

— Act 1994-48 Tax Reform Code changes which will reduce taxes by (1) increasing the depen-
dent allowance for the personal income tax low-income exemption; (2) reducing the corporate
net income (CNI) tax rate over four years to 9.99 percent; (3) reinstating the net operating
loss for the CNI tax; (4) increasing the neighborhood assistance tax credit by $2 million;
(5) increasing the minimum exclusion from the capital stock tax to $75,000; (6) phasing in
the spousal exemption for the inheritance tax; and (7) terminating transfer of CNI revenues
to the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority. These tax reductions will save tax- .
payers $166.4 million in 1994-95 and up to $526 million in 1997-98.

— Act 1994-49 makes numerous Public Welfare Code changes including restructuring the General
Assistance program, Medical Assistance reimbursement, proof of residence, school atten-
dance, and job creation plans. Wher enacted, these changes were expected to reduce the
costs of the cash and Medical Assistance programs by $85,6 million in 1994-95. Subsequent
settlement of litigation has reduced the net savings anticipated to $58.9 million.

— Act 1994-52 enacts various amendments to the Administrative Code including requiring an-
nual appropriations from the Banking Fund beginning in 1995-96 and permitting Keystone
Park and Conservation Funds designated for the State System of Higher Education to be made
available quarterly during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1994.

The Commonwealth continued to make significant investments in programs to support the economically
needy through General Assistance, Aid to Families With Dependent Children, and Medical Assistance. State
and Federal expenditures for these programs amounted to $7.2 billion in the 1993-94 fiscal year. Approx-
~ imately 44 percent of the total cost of assistance to the economically needy is funded by the General Fund.
The balance is provided by the State Lottery Fund, by the Federal Government, and through various program
collection activities conducted by the Commonwealth. Additional funding was obtained through a Medical
Assistance Intergovernmental Transfer program which provided contributions in 1993-94 totaling $289 million.
‘We focused attention on maintaining the financial integrity of the State Lottery Fund by completing the transfer
of selected program costs back to the General Fund.

Overall, the general purpose financial statements show that our commitment to fiscal discipline has resulted
in continued financial improvements and allowed us to lower taxes. Since the recession of 1991, our efforts
to limit the size and cost of state government have allowed us to generate three consecutive budgetary surpluses,
to cut both personal income and business taxes, and to continue to fimd programs that provide equity in educa-
tion, enhance economic development and provide critical human services. '

Sincerely,

Autn,

Steven H. Rosskopf

Secrctary
Office of the Budget
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 9, 1994

HARVEY C. ECKERT
DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR COMPTROLLER OPERATIONS
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

Dear Secretary Rosskopf:

It is my privilege to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the operations of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994. This report, which includes the General
Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS), was prepared by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations, pursuant to the
power vested in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the Budget
by Executive Order No. 1984-3, October 11, 1984,

The financial statements contained in this CAFR. were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as prescribed in pronouncements by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). They
were jointly audited by the elected Auditor General of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and KPMG Peat Marwick
LLP, a nationally recognized public accounting firm. Their Independent Auditors’ Report, expressing an unqualified
opinion on the GPFS, is included in this financial report.

1 believe the financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects; that they are presented in a manner designed
to fairly set forth the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations, and changes in the fund balances as
measured by the financial activity of its various fund types; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the Governor, the
Members of the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to gain a full understanding of the
Commonwealth’s operations and financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget.

In addition to the GPES, which provide an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial position and operating results
by fund type, this CAFR includes: combining financial statements presenting information by fund; supporting schedules;
certain narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial, economic, social and
demographic data about the Commonwealth. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with standards established by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and will be submitted to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) is & primary government.
The primary government, or PG, includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches
of the Commonwealth, The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations which
are not legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented
component units. Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable,
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion
would cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability
include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its
will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on, the PG.

Based upon the financial accountability critetia, all of the following organizations, as discussed in Note A of the
Notes to Financial Statements, are included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented component units,
except the State Employes’ Retirement System, which is included in the Commonwealth’s primary government as a
blended component unit:

—viii—
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Pennsylvania Higher Education Facilities Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency—Proprietary Fund

. Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency—Proprietary Fund

" Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority——Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission—Proprietary Fund
Public School Employes’ Retirement System—Fiduciary Fund
State Employes’ Retirement System—Pension Trust Fund
State Public School Building Authority—Governmental Fund
State System of Higher Education—College and University Funds

BUDGETARY CONTROLS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The annual budget of the Commonwealth is comprised of separate appropriations to individual agencies for their
specific programs, purposes, special outlays and/or operating expenditures. Budgetary control is exercised at the agency
level by appropriation and by allocations to major categories of expenditure within each appropriation. Major expenditure
categories include personnel services, operational expenses, fixed assets, subsidies and grants, debt service and fixed
charges. An encimbrance system is used to effect budgetary control at the appropriation and allocation levels.

Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of expenditures that are expected to be incurred when purchase orders
issued are filled and contracts and other commitments entered into are performed. They serve to reserve that part of an
appropriation until the actual liabilities are incurred and to ensure that funds committed (encumbered) and expended do
not exceed the total amounts appropriated and/or allocated. Section 621 of the Administrative Code provides that
unencumbered appropriated funds shall automatically lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in
the new fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward into the new fiscal year. They are reported in the
Commonwealth’s governmental funds as reservations of fund balance as distinguished from unreserved fund balance.
Funds reserved for appropriations carried forward may be expended until October 31 of the new fiscal year at which time
any remaining balances must be lapsed, except amounts for encumbered items being litigated or arbitrated or otherwise
extended for some other reason with approval of the Secretary of the Budget. In no event, however, can an encumbrance
carried forward from one fiscal year be extended beyond the end of the next fiscal year except for a litigated item.

Accounting records of most departments under the Governor’s jurisdiction are maintained on a centralized accounting
system. The operations of this system are directed and supervised by the Office of the Budget, Comptrolfler Operations.
Separate accounting systems are maintained by the Department of Transportation for the Motor License Fund; the Liquor
Control Board for the State Stores Fund; and the Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security, for
the payment of unemployment compensation benefits. The Treasury Department, the Department of the Auditor General,
and the Legislature and Judiciary, likewise, operate separate accounting systems.

The accounts of the Commonwealth’s governmental fund types are maintained on a budgetary basis by fund, agency
and appropriation. Revenues are recorded at the time cash is received. Expenditures are recorded at the time payment
requisitions and invoices are submitted to the Treasury Department for payment. At the fiscal year end, both revenues and
expenditures are adjusted to reflect appropriate accruals for financial reporting in conformity with GAAP.

Within the accounting systems, internal controls effectively provide reasonable assurance that financial transactions
are executed in accordance with prior authorizations, that assets are protected from unauthorized use or disposition, and
that the financial records are reliable for the purposes of preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability. All
department records are reconciled monthly with the Treasury Department’s records of cash disbursements and the
Department of Revenue’s records of cash receipts.

THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GPKS)

Although the Commonwealth plans and manages its financial affairs on a budgetary basis, it also prepares GPFS in
conformity with GAAP applicable to governments. These financial statements differ from those prepared on a budgetary
basis in that generic funds are combined by fund types and the financial information is presented on the basis of accounting
principles applicable to each fund type. Accordingly, governmental, expendable trust, and agency funds are reported on
the modified accrual basis of accounting; proprietary and pension trust funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
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In addition to constitutionaily authorized capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for clectorate approved
programs, such as economic revitalization, land and water development, and water facilities restoration; and for special
purposes approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.

The total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 1994 was $5,100 million. Total debt service

transfers paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994

amounted to $755.1 million.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1995 the Office of the Budget projects general obligation bond issuances

amounting to $661 million, a decrease of $545 million as compared to actual bond issuances of $1,206 million during the-

fiscal year ended June 30, 1994. This forecast reflects the need to make investments in the Commonwealth’s capital
infrastructure, particularly prisons, interstate highway construction under the Federal Advance Construction Interstate
Program, highway bridges, mass transportation and water supply systems, Debt principal retirements of $517 million are
forecast during fiscal 1995. The table that follows shows total outstanding fong-term indebtedness for general obligation
bonds (expressed in millions) at the end of the seven most recent fiscal years.

Outstanding
At June 30 Bond Indebtedness
1988 ' $ 4,699
198% 4,705
1990 4,634
1991 4,738
1992 4,874
1993 5,041
1994 5,100

In addition to general obligation bonds, the Commonwealth issues tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs
during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds’ estimated revenues for the year, and must mature during the
fiscal year in which they are issued. Cash shortages occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, are concentrated in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1995, total General Fund revenues and budgeted expenditures, including
Federal funds, are expected to increase by 2.0 percent and 3.9 percent, respectively. As the result of tax changes and
expenditure patterns that are likely to affect the cash receipts flow, the Commonwealth anticipates issuance of $600 million
in General Fund tax anticipation notes during the 1994-95 fiscal year. General Fund tax anticipation notes or commercial
paper issuances (expressed in millions) during the five most recent fiscal years are shown below. Motor License Fund tax
anticipation notes were not issued for the periods shown and are not expected to be issued in the future.

Amount Issaed
Fiscal Year For the Account as a Percent of
Issue Ended of the General Fund
June 30 General Fund Tax Revenues
1991 $ 1,400 12 %
1992 1,450 10
1993 975 ' 7
1994 400 3
1995 (Estimated) 600 4

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Treasury Departmeﬁt is required by the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Code to deposit monies of the Commonwealth,
excluding certain component units, in state depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue. Monies deposited
are not required to be segregated by fund. _ :
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In addition, the Treasury Department is empowered to invest monies of the Commonwealth that have accumulated
beyond the ordinary needs of the various Commonwealth Funds. Investment pools managed by the Treasury Department
include the following types of investments, average maturity and allocated percent at June 30, 1994 as depicted below.

Average
Maturity
Investment Type (days) Percent

Commercial Paper (Moody’s Prime One Rating or Equivalent) .......cc.ccooeciereimnvnnn, 21 29
United States Treasury and Agency ObHEAtONS ...ccccevvveevicercenrrreeere s 880 28.0
Repurchase ASIEEIMICNLS .......c..ocoicvvrririersrerrisisereresessesenssrsssasssereresaressesssssssseresssmssrases 32 553
Certificates Of DEPOSIE ...ccvv ettt st s st s se st rne s 184 5.4
Corporate Bonds and NOEES .......cccieereiiii i ssse e sasesseas 417 1.7
OBET < e s s e r b a e se s s e ra s bn s s s e sa s s n bR e srnansransnnene 514 6.7

Temporary investments held by the Treasury Department amounted to $4.7 billion, of the $8.2 billion reported on the
combined balance sheet, as of June 30, 1994. Interest on investments made by the Treasury Department during the fiscal
year amounted to $181 million at an average yield of 3.8 percent.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated with employe
injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and property losses. As more fully described at Note O to the
financial statements, the Commonwealth became self-insured for employe disability and medical claims on July 1, 1983,
The Commonwealth is also self-insured for tort liabilities, including automobile, employe and transportation-related claims.
Reserves have been established to fund self-insured claims. Third-party coverage is obtained for property losses in excess
of $1 million per occurrence, to a limit of $100 million per occurrence. Coverage for property losses less than $1 million
or more than $100 million is maintained through the Commonwealth’s self-insurance program,

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Proceeds of general obligation bonds are generally accounted for in the capital projects funds. Completed projects
and construction in progress at the fiscal year end are accounted for as assets and are capitalized in the General Fixed
Assets Account Group. Projects completed during the fiscal year totalled $71.8 million; construction in progress at June
30, 1994 amounted to $88.6 million, Authorized but unissued general obligation bonds at June 30, 1994 totalled $15.4
billion.

PROPRIETARY, FIDUCIARY AND COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
Primary Government

The Commonwealth’s enterprise funds, Proprietary Fund Types, are used to account for revolving loan programs for
economic development, for sales of alcoholic beverages and to provide for workers’ compensation. Commonwealth enter-
prise funds reported total retained earnings at June 30, 1994 of $197.5 million, which represents an increase of $113.6
million over the $83.9 million retained earnings, as restated, reported the previous year.

Fiduciary type funds, including expendable trust funds and a pension trust fund, reported total fund balance of $15,778
million, compared to $14,121 million in the previous year. Total fund balances of the expendable trust funds increased
$410 million over the previous fiscal year, for total fund balances of $2,078 million at June 30, 1994. The State Employes’
Retirement System, the pension trust fund, reported a fund balance of $13,701, an increase of $1,248 million over the
previous year. The fund balance is completely reserved for pension benefits.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented proprietary fund component units account for a turnpike system, loans for improving water and
sewer systems, higher education and housing assistance. These discretely presented component units all reported retained
earnings at June 30, 1994, totaling $1,654 million, which represents an increase of $51 million from the $1,603 miflion
retained earnings, as restafed, reported the previous year.



The Public School Employes” Retirement System, a fiduciary type fund component unit, pension trust fund, reported
a fund balance of $23,452 million at June 30, 1994, which represents a $1,733 million increase over the $21,719 million
previous fiscal year fund balance. '

The total fund equity for the College and University funds, used to account for the State System of Higher Education,
a discretely presented component unit, at June 30, 1994 was $235 million, compared to $202 million, as restated, at June
30, 1993. ’

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of general governmental functions. The
fixed assets of the proprietary and the fiduciary fund types and the College and University Funds are not included in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, except for certain real property used by the SSHE, General fixed assets as of June
30, 1994 amounted to $3,694 million at actual or estimated historical cost. Depreciation is not recognized for the
Commonwealth’s general fixed assets. Infrastructure assets, consisting primarily of highways, roads and bridges, are not
recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Both of these practices are in conformity with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

* The audit of the GPFS, evidenced by the Independent Auditors’ Report submitted herewith, was performed jointly by
the Department of the Anditor General and the independent public accounting firm of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP. It was
performed pursuant to the authority vested in the Auditor General and the Governor under Section 402 of the Fiscal Code
of 1929 and in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code of 1929.

The Fiscal Code provides that the Department of the Auditor General shall make all audits of transactions after their
occurrence, which may be necessary, in connection with the administration of the financial affairs of the government of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that it shall be the duty of the Governor to make such audits of the affairs of the
Department of the Auditor General,

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993. This represents the eighth consecutive year the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsyivania as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 conforms to the GFOA standards and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting,

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staff of the various Commonwealth agencies whose time and
dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm my commitment to you to maintain the highest
standards of accountability in financial reporting tc the citizens of the Commonwealth.
Sincerely,

Vsl

Harvey C. Eckert
Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations
Office of the Budget
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Peat Marwickuwr

Certified Public Accountants . g
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Office of the Auditor General 258 Markst Street }
Harrisburg, PA 17120 Suite 300 e

) B.0. Box 1190 _

: ' " Harrisburg, 108-1190 S

BARBARA HAFER artisburg, PA 17 ; i

AUDITOR GENERAL .

Independent Auditors® Report

The Honorable Robert P. Casey, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania w3

We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania .
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These

general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our oy
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly 3 )
audit the financial statements of certain component units, which represent 82 percent of total assets of the B
Trust and Agency Funds, 100 percent of the revenues of the Pension Trust Fund, and 100 percent of the
discretely presented component units, The financial statements of these component units were audited by
other auditors, including KPMG Peat Marwick LLP acting scparately, whose reports thereon have been
furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those
component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. KPMG Peat Marwick LLP has audited
separately 83 percent of total assets and 87 percent of total revenues of the discretely presented component
units.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting .
the amounts and disclosures in the general purposc financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 1
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion,

—

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Commonwealth of )
Pennsylvania at June 30, 1994, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its Proprietary Funds N
for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. :

)




As discussed in Note C to the general purpose financial statements, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
adopted the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 14, ““The Financial
Reporting Entity,”* and Staterment No. 16, *“Accounting for Compensated Absences,” effective July 1, 1993,
In addition, the State System of Higher Education, a discretely presented component unit reported as College
and University Funds, adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board's Statement
No. 106, “‘Employers Accounting for Postretirernent Benefits Other Than Pensions,” effective July 1, 1993,

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken
as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Such information has been subjected to the anditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based on
our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented in ali material respects in relation to the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

‘We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and, therefore,
express no opinion thereon. -

S xé/%w KPI 6 frad Moranide LLL
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:
Taxes
Unemployment taxes
License and fees ...
Intergovernmentat ....
Charges for sales and SETvices ...oowuwem.-
Investment income ...
Lottery revenues .......
Lease rental principal and interest ..

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
(General government ...
Protection of persons and property .
Public health and welfare ...
Public education ...
Conservation of natural resources ........
Economic development and assistance
TranspoTtation ... e

Capital oUtlay ... e cenne

Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges ...

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ........

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES .....coovvvieeinneen

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond proceeds
Refunding bond proceeds ...
Operating teansfers in—Note H .
Operating transfers out—Note H .........
Operating transfers to component unjts—
[ (2T - O OO
Payment to refunded bond escrow
BEENT covrerrsrrmccmscssssesmressossesemensmsisssarres
Capital lease and installment purchase
OblIGAHONS ..o visiritirers e et

NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES .....omviverereeninons

FUND BALANCES, AS RESTATED,
JULY 1, 1993

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS—

NOTE H oo ninn

FUND BALANCES
JUNE 30, 1994

Total Total
Fiduciary (Memorandum (Memorandum
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Only} Only)
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary Component Reporting
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Government Units Entity
$ 14,607,635 $ 1,486,905 3 3 6,242 § 16,100,782 % $ 16,100,782
- ces 1,890,038 1,890,038 1,890,038
147,566 593,157 R 63,976 804,699 804,699
6,758,120 941,178 4,818 643,505 8,347,621 s 8,347,621
670,710 170,426 e 6,384 Caes 847,520 1,013 848,533
39,419 33,278 1,515 5117 10E,55¢ 180,880 12,796 193,676
1,574,949 e 1,574,949 . 1,574,949
e Ve 3,964 R e 3,964 174,141 178,105
80,202 72,203 15,095 31 11,239 178,830 9,463 188,293
22,303,712 4,872,096 20,574 16,350 2,716,551 20,929,283 197,413 30,126,696
1,019,679 1,130,300 2,275 5,138 2,157,392 2,157,392
1,659,047 16,004 97,588 35,373 1,808,012 1,808,012
10,903,274 671,664 2,266,062 13,841,000 e 13,841,000
6,784,190 . e e 6,784,190 2,399 6,786,589
309,792 214,010 1,599 525,401 525401
254,955 8,898 8,359 272,212 272,212
282,127 2,312,144 100,675 2,695,546 RN 2,695,546
18,595 27,796 163,692 210,083 214,739 424,822
. Ve 482344 482,344 82,738 565,082
8975 15 282,741 291,731 127,592 419,323
21,240,634 4,381,431 765,085 374,188 2,306,573 29,067,911 427,468 29,495,379
1,063,078 490,665 (744,511 ) (357,838) 409,978 861,572 (230,055 ) 631,317
52,046 e 350,829 402,875 224,194 627,069
s e 674,819 Ve 674,819 158,896 833,715
320,242 359,416 756,113 e 5 1,435,776 483,874 1,919,650
(597,583 ) (733,595 ) (894 ) (55,476 {123) (1,387,671) (483,874 } (1,871,545 )
{619,042) (619,042 ) (619,042 )
(674,819) (674,819 ) (151,402 } ) {826,221)
12,660 9,428 22,088 22,088
(883,723 ) (312,705 ) 755,219 295,353 (118 ) (145,974 ) 231,688 85,714
179,355 177,960 10,708 {62,485 ) 409,860 715,398 1,633 717,031
698,945 764,996 53,474 175,336 1,667,687 3,360,438 267,234 3,627,672
14,640 (30,944 } (16,304 ) (16,304 )
b 892,940 $ 912,012 64,182 112,851 $ 2077547 % 4059532 & 268,867 4,328,399

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES—
-+ BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
¢ General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds
' For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

. General Fund Budgeted Special Revenne Funds
. Variance Vartance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfarorahlk)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, netof refunds . .. ......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiann, $14,719,300 $14,728,241 §$ 8941 $ 953,849 § 970,467 § 16,618
LOMery T8CeIPES + v vuvvrnr e nenrataree e casansnsan PR e e 790,546 848,265 57,719
Liquor store profits transfer. . ..........cooiiiiiins, 40,000 47,000 7,000 R e P
Licenses and fees ....vvvuvvernnarnaanrcarscncrons 59,700 65,684 5,984 467,400 476,426 9,026
Fines, penalties and interest .. .o..ovvnnnvaranianeneaeas 23,900 24,845 945 . e e e
Departmental 5ervices. . . ..o viiuiuuiiinirininannnsnaas 864,791 864,791 e 50,753 50,753 PP
Miscallaneous ... u.iieiriariiiiiriiai e tan 114,600 130,372 15,772 77,663 76,387 (1,276)
TOTAL STATEPROGRAMS .. .........oiiviinnnnnn 15,822,291 15,860,933 38,642 2,340,211 2,422,298 82,087
Federal Programs ........vvv v iviaisinarenaes 7,484,127 6,985,379 {498,748) 718,497 709,747 (8,750)
TOTAL REVENUES .......ciiiiiiiinnrnnenneans 23,306,418 22,846,312 (460,106) 3,058,708 3,132,045 73,337
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
General QOVEIMMENt .. ... .ovivveisananenannmnnurnnas 1,360,107 1,280,651 79,456 552,258 539,649 12,609
Protection of persons and property ......vvninanniinn 1,453,621 1,431,542 22,079 222,104 215,542 6,562
Public health and welfare . . .. ......covnvnnranavcrnnn.s 5,619,967 5,599,903 20,064 600,048 591,783 8,265
Public education .....ccvuvunnnrnrinininnasionannnn- 6,706,208 6,695,506 10,702 1,804 1,476 328
Conservation of natural resomrees .. .. ... oviviiiinaranns 253,414 252,428 986 e e e PR
Economic development and assistance .................. 262,135 260,391 1,744 . e e e e
Transportation v . .veeieresiveracanranasrararanceanin 278,837 278,757 80 1,088,993 1,078,454 10,539
TOTAL STATEPROGRAMS .......ciciiiininnnnnns 15,934,289 15,799,178 135,111 2,465,207 2,426,904 38,303
Federal Programs . ..........coiiiiiiiiinvrnarinnnnnn- 7,484,127 6,985,379 498,748 718,497 709,747 8,750
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .. ........c.civivvninenns 23,418,416 22,734,557 633,859 3,183,704 3,136,651 47,053
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES..... {111,998) 61,755 173,753 (124,996) (4,606) 120,390
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Prior year JBpses - ... viiisionananransrananaeisiranas 59,080 59,080 P 32,386 32,386
Transfer to tax stabilization reserve fund ...........c.... e (33,575) (33,575) . P e e
Increase in budgeted revenues ... ... ccviinvvaennens- 38,642 e e (38,642) 28,433 e (28,433)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES ..........ccu0s 97,722 25,505 (72,217) 60,819 32,386 (28,433)
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
i USES — NOTEM ..o vvrrereneciiiaiasnanssansnananns (14,276) 87,260 101,536 64,177 27,780 91,957
; UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
: (BUDGETARY BASIS), AS RESTATED, JULY 1, 1993 214,915 214,915 e 188,305 188,305
' UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 1994............... $ 200,639 $ 302,i75 % 101,53 § 124,128 § 216,085 § 91,957

— See notes to financial statements. —



COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE

All Proprietary Fund Types, Pension Trust Fund and

Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands}

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales ANd SETVIDES <...cueecerceereas cereeeses crne e s srneneas s
In income
Interest on notes and loans
Pension CONMEBULONS .....c....oocrreeeeeemeeeceemeeeanreans sermeseems e
Other

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ...

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services
Interest expense
Depreciation
Bad debts
Benefit payments and refunds ...,
Other

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .....ccovevisnsaninsinsians

OPERATING INCOME ..o rerecmsrissasnsconans

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Interest expense
(il Company Franchise Tax
Other

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES), NET ........onrorremreeneeccnensns mamremennans

INCOME BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers out—Note H....
Operating transfers from primary government—Note
Operating transfers from component units—MNote H .
Operating transfers to primary govemment—Note H
Operating transfers to component units—Note H ..

OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET

INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS .....

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt
—Note L

NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES, AS RESTATED
L T

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,
Fune 30, 1994

Fiduciary
Proptietary Fund Types Fund Type Total
(Memorandum Total
Pension Only) (Memorandum
Internal Trust— Frimary Component Only)

Enterprise Service Note I Government Units Reporting Entity
1,133,922 $ 100,569 3 N $ 1,234,491 $ 568,020 $ 1,802,511
96,275 A 1,534,370 1,630,645 1,969,314 3,599,95¢
5,709 e 5,709 176,092 181,801
Ceee e 486,631 486,631 1,331,002 1,817,633
6,334 17 e 6,351 22,064 28,415
1,242,240 100,586 2,021,001 3,363,827 4,066,492 7430319
1,060,722 86,858 12,521 1,160,107 696,218 1,856,325
578 iva 578 265,372 265,950
6,909 5,497 12,406 144,366 156,772
15,413 i e 15,413 22,847 38,260
Ve 765,829 765,829 1,382,157 2,147,986
23 23 117 140
1,083,645 92,355 778,356 1,954,356 2,511,077 4,465,433
158,595 8.231 1,242,645 1,409,471 1,555,415 2,964,886
3,019 723 3,742 15877 19,619

(55) (899 ) (954) (45,399) (46,353)
38,231 38231
225 (257) (32) 4,331 4,299
3,189 (433) 2,756 13,040 15,796
161,784 7,798 1,242,645 1,412,227 1,568,455 2,980,682

(48,105 ) (48,105) P (48,105)
e Ve ceee 256,374 256,374
7,851 7.85t e 7,851

(6,089) (6,089)

{2,968) (2,968) e {2,968)
(48,105 } e 4,883 (43222) 250,285 207,063
113,679 7,798 1,247,528 1,369,005 1,818,740 3,187,745

(35,862) (35.862)
113,679 7,798 1,247,528 1,369,005 1,782,878 3,151,883
83,86¢ 39,741 12,453,353 12,576,961 23,322,513 35,899,474
197,540 $ 47,539 3 13,700,887 $ 13,945966 525,105,391 $ 39,051,357

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

All Proprietary Fund Types and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands})

CASH USED FOR OPERATIONS:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
Net amortization
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Nonoeperating
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in recetvables
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
Increase in due from primary government
Increase in due from component units
(Increase) decrease in due from other SOVEIMMENTS ......eccivrinrernrenmieiniens
(Increase) decrease in inventory
{Increase) decrease in other current assefs
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and and accrued liabilities ...........
Increase {decrease) in due to other funds
Increase in due to primary government
Increase in due 1o OthEr BOVEIMINENLS ...v.cvevuerenrimsicesiessnesmsimsesmsasimsemsssseeas
Increase in deferred revenue
Increase in insurance foss liability
Increase in other current liability

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..........c.ccovue

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuarce of notes payable and revenue bonds ...,
Principal paid on notes payable and revenue bonds
Interest patd on notes payable and revenue bonds
Operating transfers from primary government
Operating transfers out
Increase in contributed capital .
Decrease in contributed capital ..

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACCOUNTS:
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds
Principal paid on revenue bends ...
Interest paid on revenue bonds ...
Increases in contributed capital
Decrease in contributed capital
Acquisition and construction of capital assels ...
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USER FOR) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of InVESEMENES ..ovviricimnienmions s
Proceeds from sale of maturities of investments
Inv INCOME .oercsecrcrnnn e

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH, JULY 1, 1993 .....

CASH, JUNE 30, 1994

Propietary Funds Total
(Memorandum Total
Oniy) (Memorandim
Indernal Primary Companent Only)
Enterprise Service Government Unifs Reporting Entity
$ 158,595 § 8,251 3 166,826 5 (181,038) 5 (14212)
6,909 5497 12,406 142,964 155370
170 170
15413 15,413 22,847 38,260
42,562 42,562
{57,659) (38) (57,657 ) (201,282) {258,979)
(3.909) 2475 (1434) Vs (1,434}
(3,041) (3,041}
(959) (959 ) (959 )
16 124 : 140 6,721 6861
(4,151) (1,127) (5,278 ) 1,511 (3,707}
377 1,334 1,711 (5643) (3932)
2,631 1,502 4,533 (10,142) (5,609 )
(642) 6,087 5,445 (39,769 ) (34324
e .- cee 37,562 37,962
110 7 117 1,980 2,077
30,296 30,296 2,121 12417
81,928 81,928 e 81,928
4,174 4,174 6,240 10414
75,493 15,302 90,795 5,241 96,036
234,088 23,533 251,621 (175,797 ) 81,824
e A P 960,045 960,045
(712) (1,161 ) (1,873) (1,010,546 } (1,012,419 )
(55) (320) (375) Ve (375)
254,128 254,128
(48,105 ) (48,105 ) e (48,105 )
20,765 20,765 70,000 90,765
) 7) {93,390 ) (93.397)
(28,114} (£481) (29,595 ) 180,237 150,642
160,776 160,776
e RN (7.655) (7,655)
I (579) (579} (45399 ) (45978 )
751 vees 751 143,367 144,118
(3.260) (3,260 )
(3,442 (5,111} (12,553 ) (237,789 ) (250,342 }
1,044 1,044 1,044
(2,681) (8,646 ) (11,337 10,040 (1,297 )
(3,922,906 ) (67,163 } (3,950,069 ) (10.319,237 ) (14,309,306 )
3,715,512 53,059 3,768,571 10,322,571 14,091,142
2,964 723 3,687 15,877 19,564
(204,430 ) (13,381 ) {217,311 19,211 (198,600 )
(£,147) 25 ’ (1,122) 33,691 32,569
10,728 384 11,12 31,275 42,387
$ 9,581 5 409 3 9,990 3 64,966 $ 74,956

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Pennsytvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, a discretely presented component unit, entered into a capital lease for a building, in

the amount of $56.837.

— See notes to financial statements. —

—1—



COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994 |

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA College Total
. Fiduciary and (Memorandum
(Expressed in Thousands) Governmental Proprietary Fund— University Cnily)
Funds Funds Note L Funds Compaonent Units
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash—NOE D ._....ooicisisss s s s s v s s s s s e $ 10,538 $ 63,922 $ 66 $ 5,393 3 79919
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D : e 1044 e e 1,044
Terporary investments—Note D 275,096 1,806,184 1,741,951 291,832 4,115,063
Long-term investments—Note D 52,112 251,87 22,008,164 71,086 22,383,233
Receivable, net:
Accounts 2 18,194 . 19,89% 38,095
 Accroed i 1,268 73,524 182,858 36 257,736
Loans—Note G 1,183 4,422,537 e 24,786 4,448,506
Lease rental-——Note G ........ 2,109,055 13,287 e ceie 2,122,342
Pension contributions . 219,127 e 219,127
Other 4,950 4,950
Due from other funds—Note H veas T 129,488 129,488
Due from primary government—Note H 4,287 143,093 e £47,380
Due from other governments—Note F 28,440 e 28,440
Inventory 6,779 N 4,841 11,620
Fixed assets—Note E 2,876,069 11,792 608,599 3,496,460
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,114,774 } (5,162) (171,988 ) (1,291,924)
Other assets 70,008 310,926 23,7709 404,643
Other Debits:
Amounts available for retirement of other bords 61,634 61,634
Amounts to be provided for the retirement of:
Other bonds 2,152,711 2,152,711
Onher general fong-term obligations 161 161
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 4,663,760 $ 8521372 $ 24612815 $ 1,012,681 $ 38810628
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilitjes: )
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4,214 3 184,815 $ 59,686 3 88,450 $ 337,165
Investment purchases payable . PN 1,100,845 e 1,100,845
Due 10 other funds—Note H .. P el 129,488 129,488
Dug to primary government—Note H 1 414728 6509 8,046 50,084
Due to other governments o 11,654 e 11,654
Deferred r 2,109,055 46,721 29,864 2,185,640
Notes payable—Note J 66,977 422,555 56 489,588
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J ..o sses s irsssar s s sasonss F 310,000 . 310,000
Other liabilides 140 174,683 312,864 487,687
Bonds payable—Note K 2,214,345 e e 2,214,345
Revenue bonds payable—Note K N 4,543,498 PN 4,543,498
Capital lease and other general long-term obligations—Note K ..ooeooveerevecencananes 161 56,837 208,155 265,753
TOTAL LIABILITIES ......oooroceercemeccismsnssnssssrsssssssess 4,394,803 5,792,191 1,161,140 711,523 12,125,747
Equity and Other Credits:
Centributed capital—Note H 1,075,465 e 1,075,465
Investment in fixed assets PN 235409 235,409
Retained eamnings:
Reserved—-Note B 1,229,252 1,229,252
Unreserved 424 464 424,464
Fund balance:
Reserved for:
ENCUMBIAICES «.eovrerorcmenemreceemsisissasimisamiysssssssns seosisosss i 23,108 23,108
PEnISION BENEIHS ...vvoeeececsarsssssirmnsressscessnrmsssssrasesssastasssassarmnssnssensmnsans babbssiss 23,451,675 vees 23,451,675
Loans receivable cees 26,451 26,451
Long-term investments 52,112 e 52,112
Endowment and Similar funds .........mimemmmerm s s e 20,415 20,415
Restricted fund balance 3,647 45,988 49,635
Other—Note B e 67,450 67,450
Unreserved:
Designated for:
CADItAL PIOJECIS wuvesorcrinrensns crsnsnmssssmsessressssmsssmsssasss s smssarsamsss g e s s e 129,431 129,431
Debt Service:
Retirement of other bonds 61,634 A 61,634
Undesignated {deficit—Note C ....... 22,043 s (183,663 ) (161,620)
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 268,867 2,729,181 23,451,675 235,158 26,684,881
TOTFAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS ... $ 4,663,760 $ 83521372 § 24612815 $ 1,012,681 3 38810,628

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania
Hgher State Public
Educational School
Facilities Building
Authority Authority ‘Total
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash—Note D . ..ovvveiiiiiiiriiiiiiiriararanaes $ 8,866 3 1,672 $ 10,538
Temporary investments—Note D.............ooiaue, 149,508 125,588 275,086
Long-term investments—Note D .................... 43,964 8,148 52,112
Receivables, net;
ACCOUNES . oo e vevanenenarnrcnreaioasssssssanan e e 2 2
Accrued INBIESt. .\ v ve e ettt ia it aans 702 566 1,268
Loans—Note G ...ouciuiiinnrarivnnnnrnrnnenass e 1,183 1,183
Teaserental —Note G ... ..o iviiiiiiianeninnnnan, 1,833,434 275,621 2,109,055
Other Debits: ’
Amounts available for retirement of other bonds....... 56,362 5,272 61,634
; Amounts to be provided for the retirement of:
‘ Other bonds .. .. ociiviiiararnransnrnanrerorasan 1,877,090 275,621 2,152,711
Other general long-term obligations................ e 161 . 161
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS .............. $ 3,969,926 $ 693,83 $ 4,663,760
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities..... P $ 1,289 $ 2,925 $ 4,214
Due to primary government—Note H................ PR 1 1
Deferred (eVeNUE . . .. iiinereraemercrioiniecasaran 1,833,434 275,621 2,109,055
Notes payable—Note J ... .o iiiiiiiiiinnsnanes e e 66,977 66,977
Cther Biabilities .....c oottt it iinnnnaracnnaes . 140 140
Bonds payable—Note K ... .vnvvtivrinnrnnnasinanass 1,933,452 280,893 2,214,345
Capital lease and other general long-term obligation—
Note K . oot iiiiiiiinanararasasnnseransnannns e 161 : 161
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. .0vunnvrreeeeenrnrnnannn 3,768,175 626,713 4,394,893
Fund Balance:
: Reserved for:
: { Long-term investments «......ccvvieinsraaensnenns 43,964 8,148 52,112
P Restricted fund balance ... ... cviviinanarerennann e . 3,647 3,647
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital Projects ....cocovieviiiinrisirarniaans 86,502 42,929 129,431
Debt Service: : : '
Retirement of other bonds . . ......ovvvvvnnenan 56,362 5272 61,634
Undesignated ... ..occvieiiiiiiiiiininiinianaaans 14,923 7,120 22,043,
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ..........cccvvvnen 201,751 67,116 268,867
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ....... $ 3,969,926 $ 693,834 3 4,663,760

— See notes to financial stalemenis. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES-

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

'Governmental Funds — Discretely Presented Component Umts

' For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COM:MONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania
Higher State Pable N
Educational School ‘
Facilities Building i
Authority Authority Total
REVENUES:

Charges for sales and services ........ccovuiuneoens. $ P $ 1,013 $ 1,013

Investment INCOME ......vuvinrnerarerenaarnenennans 7,563 5,233 12,796

Lease rental principal and inferest ........cc00viviriasn 136,840 37,301 174,141 P

L0 T 7,741 1,722 9,463 C
TOTAL REVENUES .........¢ci0vviiniannennaas 152,144 45,269 197,413

. : ) Py
EXPENDITURES: : o

Publiceducation . ....covvivinrnrrninrnonssnnasanans 1,162 1,237 2,399 L

Capital outlay . ......... ... i 198,911 15,828 214,739

Debt service: : £y

Principal retitement .« ..o v vvvrinrarrereriiaieien.s 56,909 25,829 82,738
Interest and fiscal charges .........c0i0iunas e 100,456 27,136 127,592 o
TOTAL BEXPENDITURES.......ccivtnrennnnnnes 357,438 70,030 427,468
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ........... (205,294) {24,761) (230,055)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond proceeds. ..ottt ittt e tiaiiirann 188,985 35,200 224,194

Refunding bond proceeds . . vvveveerersrarareneennans 157,435 1,461 158,896

Operating transfers in—Note H................o0iuas 398,343 85,531 483,874

Operating transfers out—Note H. ............c00vnnnnn (398,343) (85,531) (483,874)

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent ..........c.0.. (149,941) (1,461) (151,402) ]
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ............ 196,479 35,209 231,688 ’ \*
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER Ll

i (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES... (8,815) 10,448 1,633
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1993 ... ... ........covun. 210,566 56,668 267,234 ; :
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30,1994 ... ............ e $ 201,751 $ 67,116 ‘% 268,867
i
i
i
o
-
L

— 8ee notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

" Proprietary Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units  For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsykvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1994) Authority Agency Agency Authority Total
ASSETS . :
Cash-—NOE D .oovanirimimisimnessesrssms s 5 34197 $ s $ 3,289 $ 23,450 $ 2,986 $§ 63922
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D 1,044 1,044
Temporary investments—2Note D .. 663,079 132,887 482,123 387,676 140,419 1,806,184
Long-term investments—Note D 29,669 115,294 85,210 21,698 e 251,871
Receivables, net:
Accounts 10,250 e e 7.944 . 18,194
Accrued Interest ...... 3,243 3,215 e 65,589 1,477 73,524
Loans—Note G ....oecovvereineammnicensincreinne e e 430,787 1,900,185 1,318,389 773,176 4,422 537
Lease rental—Note G e 13,287 e . e 13,287
Due from primary government—Note H . 3,305 . 982 e 4,287
Due from other governments—Note F _... e 28,440 e 28,440
Inventory 6,779 . e e e 6,779
Fixed assets—Note E ..o 2,740,293 veee 5433 130,186 157 2,876,069
Less: accumblated depreciation (1,093,475 ) RPN {2,610) {18,562 ) (127) (1,114,774 )
Other assets 20,411 12,036 12,420 17,308 7,833 70,008
“TOTAL ASSETS ..o $ 2417751 $ 708,550 $ 2,486,050 3 1,983,100 $ 925921 § 8,521,372
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites ., $ 94,453 $ 165 b 43,853 5 42,978 $ 3,366 § 184,815
Due to primary government—Nate H 2,649 73 29 858 37,810 ) 41,428
Due to other EOVETIIMENES ....ovveeirerirensirerirernssnees Ceee e cees 11,650 4 11,654
Deferred revenue . N e 46,638 83 46,721
Notes payable—Note J e e e, . ceas 23,000 399,555 e 422,555
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J ............ e . e 314,000 - 310,000
Other 1iabilities .....c.veeivresrieeneeas 6,239 4,256 160,285 3,903 Ve 174,683
Revenue bonds payable—Note K . . 1,218,152 357,328 1,927,848 848,785 191,385 4,543,498
Capital lease obligation—Note K ...cvevvrevnieeenes veia e e 56,837 e 56,837
; TOTAL LIABILITIES ........cooomimnreas 1,321,493 361,822 2,155,015 1,721,204 232,657 5,792,191
1
Equity:
Contributed capital—Note H ...cvinnnnnnnnn 164,527 226,350 1,960 ceas 682,628 1,075,465
Retained earnings:
) Reserved-—Note B . 931,731 e 98,862 198,659 e 1,229,252
L Unreserved e 120,378 230,213 63,237 10,636 424 454
[ TOTAL EQUITY ....coocvniiimaminenniirines 1,096,258 346,728 331,035 261,596 693,264 2,729,181
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ... $ 2,417,751 $ 708,550 $ 2,486,050 $ 1,983,100 $ 925921 $ 8,521,372

— See notes to financial statements. —



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS / FUND BALANCE

Proprietary Funds and Pension Trust Fund —

Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales And SETVICES 1uverrnuinersrmmarmeonsivarsmsrsssss seosssrarsessssonses
Tavestment income ......
Interest on notes and loans .
Pension contributions

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ....................

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services ...
Interest expense ...
Depreciation ........
Bad debts
Benefit payments and refunds
Other

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .........cccovnninn.

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) .....cooceivminnnee.

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVESMENL IMCOME .vvecrruressoeressesssssssssssssssrsssrenssasessissnns

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET ...........coeevrieees

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers from primary government—Note H
Operating transfers to primary government—Note H ...

OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET .......ccoceeiecvvarrnne

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
EXTRAORDINARY TTEMS ...oooooooeoeerer e

Extraordinary toss on early extinguishment
of debt—Note L ...

NET INCOME (LOSS) ......cciviimeineiireens i seseiiains
RETAINED EARNINGS / FUND BALANCE,
AS RESTATED, JULY 1, 1993 ..o

RETAINED EARNINGS / FUND BALANCE,
JUNE 30, 1994 s

Proprietary Fund Typé
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania Public School
Tarnpike Industrial Honsing Education Infrastructure Employes’ ey
Commission Development Finance Assistance Tnvest Reti {
(May 31, 1992) Authority - Agency Agency Authority System Total )
§ 280,896 $ s $ 9,736 $ 276,620 % 768 $ e $ 568,020
e 11,073 27,813 116,115 3,394 1,810,919 1,969,314 !
17,512 146,942 e 11,638 e 176,092 -
1,331,002 1,331,002 [
9,613 1,217 9,534 1,506 194 e 22,064
1
290,509 29,802 194,025 394,241 15,994 3,141,921 4,066,492 ;
142,95 2,138 13,325 514,038 1,893 21,909 696,218
e 19,116 144,437 92,280 9.539 AN 265,372 i
134,851 F 309 7,773 31 1,402 144,366 D
1.825 18,208 Caee 2,814 - 22,847 Bl
e ces 1,382,157 1,382,157
117 e 117 =
!
277,766 23,079 176,396 614,091 14,277 1,405,468 2,511,077 _j
12,743 6,723 17,629 (219,850} 1,717 1,736,453 1,555,415
15,877 15,877
(45,399 ) (45,399)
38,231 e 38,231 -
e 4,331 4,331 Do
8,709 4331 13,040 !
21,452 6,723 17,629 {215,519} 1,717 1,736,453 1,568,455
19,500 234,628 2,246 256,374 b
. (6,089 ) 6.089 ) i
19,500 234,628 (3,843 ) 250,285
!
21,452 6,723 37,129 19,109 1,717 1,732,610 1,818,740
(12,728 ) (23,134 ) (35.862) |
21,452 {6,005) 13,995 19,109 1,717 1,732,610 1,782,878 o
910,279 126,383 315,080 242,787 8.919 21,719,063 23,322,513 £y
Do
$ 931,731 $ 120,378 $ 329,075 § 261,896 § 10636 " $23,451,675 $25,105,391

— See rotes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Proprietary Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1 994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Tornpike Industrial Heusing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1994) Authority Agency Apency Authority Total
CASH USED FOR OPERATIONS:
Operating income (loss) 3 12,743 § 6,723 $ 17,629 $ (219,850) 5 1,717 $ (181,038)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation ........ 134,851 AN 309 7,773 31 142,964
Net amoritization . 170 e cene 170
Provisions for unallocable accounts . e 1,825 18,208 - 2,814 22,847
MNonoperating revenues 38,231 4,331 42,562
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables (3,978 ) (12,618) (20,499 ) (24,607 ) (139,580 } (201,282)
Increase in due from primary government .. (2,059 ) P T (982 ) e (3,041 )
Decrease in due from other governments ... cees 6,721 6,721
Decrease in inventory 1,571 . . R s 1,571
(Increase) decrease in other current assets .., (951) (8,864 ) 3,574 709 (11t ) (5,643 )
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and )
account liabilides 2,735) (135) (12.437) 4,065 1,100 {10,142)
Becrease in due to other funds . . R R (39,769 ) {39,769 )
Increase (decrease) in due to primary
government 107 “) 14 26 37,819 37,962
Decrease in due to other governments e . s 1,959 1 1,960
Tncrease (decrease) in deferred revenue .. e .. (1,789) 4,494 (584) 2,121
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities ....... Q771) 4,536 ) 12,405 1,142 e 6,240
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS .... 162,266 (24,162) (215 ) 5,631 (138,279) 5,241
NET CASH FROVIDED BY
{USED FOR} OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..........ccceciiins 175,009 (17,439) 17,414 (214,219 ) (136,562 ) (175,197 )
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable and
TEVENUE DOMS 11vvisrsreecemierarcsresmessresssnesas sesenmsseenms sestrasions 357,348 567,392 35,305 060,045
Principal paid on notes payable and revenue bonds.., (276,822 ) {698,919) (34,805 ) (1,010,546 )
Operating transfers from primary government ... e 19,500 234,628 254,128
Increase in contributed caital ......cveverene. 70,000 70,000
Decrease in coniributed capital ................. (93,390 ) (93,390)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ...ovvrcoememesiessrens st sssssssnasenes 57,136 (112,027 ) 235,128 180,237
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds .. 110,716 50,000 160,776
Principal paid on revenue bonds .. (7,030) 625) (7,655)
Interest paid on revenue bonds. (45,399 ) s {45,399 )
Increases in contributed capital 6,083 137,284 143,367
Decrease in contributed capital ... " - . . (3,260 ) {3,260 )
Acquisition and construction of capltnl assets . (217,906 ) (1,519 ) {18,361 ) 3) (237,789 )
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ......ccivvimrienenines (153,476 ) (1,519) (18,361 ) 183,396 10,040
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (178,172) (7,577.932) (491,767 ) (£,395,610 } (675,756 ) (10,319,237 )
Proceeds for sale and maturities of investments 170,313 7,538,201 584,879 1,398,612 630,566 10,322,571
INVESIMENE INCOME «.vocmncrenmivibsnssrisssssssnnssasssssnnee 15,877 15,877
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES .. et sy 8,018 (39,731) 93,112 3,002 (45,190 19,211
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 29,551 (34) (3,020) 5,550 1,644 33,691
CASH, JULY 1, 1993 ot ssise s snsssnsims s 4,646 1.078 6,309 17,900 1,342 31,275
CASH, JUNE 30, 1994 oo reeerrsernesecvmecmsitmssstssssnrenneene 5 34197 $ 1,044 3 3,289 $ 23450 5 2,986 $ 64,966

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency entered into a capital lease for a building, in the amount of $36,837.

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
- AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

“ College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit
: For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unrestricted Restricted Total
- REVENUES: .
Tuition and fees .. ... viiivnirnnrrnnnn e $ 365,631 s . ... $ 365,631
Government grants and contracts:
State and 1062l .. ...ttt 793 43,519 44,312
Federal ... i i i e 1,485 57,279 58,764
Private gifts, grants and contracts .................... 2,301 5,204 7,505
Investment INCOME . . .o ovviiiene i iiinanennreaannas 10,773 216 10,989
Endowment income ........... ... iiiiian. 32 453 485
Activities of educational departments. ................. 6,784 72 6,856
Other SOUICES . ..o vvr it v treanronatoasasoarennanss 21,284 233 21,517
Auxiliary enterprises ..... et r i 124,720 e 124,720
TOTAL REVENUES .. ......ciiiiirinnnaennnaes 533,803 106,976 640,719
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EXPENDITURES:
Educational and general:
InStrICHOD . ..ottt it 388,473 4,449 392,922
ReSearch . ...ttt 925 1,421 2,346
Public Service ... .vvvviir e iirrar s 7,630 16,274 23,904
Academic SUPPOTE ..o oviieiie it i 75,657 3,347 79,004
SENGENt SETVICES . - - oo oniviiitiien et 60,555 3,853 64,408
Operations and maintenance of plant .............. 718,334 272 78,606
General institutional support ...........coiiiiien. 118,981 3,995 122,976
Student &id. ... ..o 7,090 73,686 80,776
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL ....... 737,645 107,297 844 942
Auxiliary enterprises ... ...iiiiiiii it i 108,580 114 108,694
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .......ccc0cvvreeuninnn 846,225 107,411 053,636
MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
Principal and interest .. ... ... ... ... ... L 9,937 R 9,937
L0 1 J 192 7 199
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS ............ 10,129 7 10,136
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY
TRANSFERS -+ e v eeecetee e ieea s 856,354 107,418 963,772
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER TRANSFERS
AND DEDUCTIONS:
Operating transfers from Primary Government—Note H 357,922 2,492 360,414
Other transfers ... ...ovviireirenieviseniannaeans (41,400) (81) (41,481)
DedUCtiONS . ..vvvvvreeerrrenererionesnnnsnnnnane e (3,229) (3,229)
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER
TRANSFERS AND DEDUCTIONS, NET ....... 316,522 ’ (818) 315,704
NET DECREASE IN FUND BALANCES.............. $ (6,029 $ (1,260) $ (7,289

— See notes to financial statements, —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
NOTE A-FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

Effective July 1, 1993, the Commonwealth adopted the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement 14, *The Financial Reporting Entity.” This standard requires that the Commonwealth’s
financial reporting entity be defined according to specific criteria. According to the standard, for
financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is a primary government (PG).
The PG includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches of
the Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and
organizations which are not legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity
includes blended and discretely presented component units. Component units include all legally
separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion would
cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial
accountability include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and
(1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the PG. The
following organizations are included in the financial reporting entity as component units:

Blended Component Unit

State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The SERS is a public
employe retirement system which covers Commonwealth employes. The PG appoints all voting
board members and, on a very limited basis, imposes its will on the SERS. The PG uses the SERS
to provide pension benefits to PG employes. The PG makes essentially all employer contributions
to the SERS; PG employes make almost all of the employe contributions to the SERS (virtually all
PG employes are required to join the SERS). The PG is responsible for all of the SERS pension
obligations. The SERS is a blended comnponent unit because it provides services and benefits almost
exclusively to the PG.

Discretely Presented Component Units

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities
Authority (HEFA) (Governmental Fund Types) — The SPSBA and the HEFA issue limited
obligation revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are used to finance the construction of facilities
for school districts and public and private colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely
from lease rental payments from the schools. Upon completion of the lease payment requirements
(and satisfaction of bondholders), the title to the constructed or acquired assets vests with the schools.

The PG appoints all nine voting members of the SPSBA and the HEFA governing boards; nine
high-ranking members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As a result, the PG is
able to impose its will. The PG Department of Education approves the SPSBA and the HEFA
projects (which indicates imposition of will and fiscal dependency). Although neither the PG nor
the Authorities are obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease rental payments from schools),
the PG may be morally obligated for the SPSBA and the HEFA debt,

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The
PHEAA makes grants and loans to students to help fund the cost of higher education. Lending
institations and post-secondary schools are involved in the loan program. The PG funds the PHEAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A-Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

grant program; the PHEA A issues revenue bonds to fund the student loan program. Revenue bonds
are repaid from student loan repayments. The PHEAA also services student loan portfolios for
lending institutions.

The PG appoints all voting board members but does not significantly impose its will on the PHEAA.
A significant PG financial burden exists through subsidizing the grant program; also, the PG may
be morally obligated for the PHEAA revenue bonds. The PHEAA is fiscally dependent, as the
Governor must approve the issnance of its debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PHFA makes
loans to eligible individuals and organizations to purchase or construct housing. The loan programs
benefit low and moderate-income individuals and families.

The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be removed at will.
“The Governor is required to request an appropriation from the General Assembly for the PHFA
whenever a deficiency exists in the capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to
avoid a default on the PHFA debt. This represents a PG moral obligation for the PHFA debt. The
Govemnor must approve the issuance of the PHFA debt.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PIDA
collaborates with local industrial development corporations to make loans which help preserve or
expand the work force, assist targeted economic areas or assist specific companies. Loans are made
at lower-than-market interest rates; the interest rates are based on local unemployment and other
economic conditions. The PIDA issues revenue bonds to finance the loan program. Loan repayments
are used for debt service payments. The PIDA operates closely with the Department of Commerce.

The PG appoints all voting board members and is able to impose its will on the PIDA. The PG has
provided contributed capital; “excess” PIDA funds are transferred to the General Fund. The PG
may be morally obligated for the PIDA debt.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) (Proprietary Fund Type) —
The PENNVEST makes grants and low-interest loans to local governments and authorities,
businesses and nonprofit organizations for the construction, improvement, repair or rehabilitation
of drinking and waste water systems. The PENNVEST obtains funds through Commonwealth
general obligation bond proceeds (approved by referendum), revenue bonds, the Federal government
and contributed amounts from Commonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the PENNVEST
debt service costs. The PENNVEST operates closely with the Department of Environmental
Resources. :

The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the thirteen appointments.
By issuing general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as contributed
capital, the PG creates a significant financial burden. The PG may be morally obligated for the
PENNVEST debt. Upon dissolution, the assets of the PENNVEST revert to the Commonwealth.,

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PTC was created to
construct, maintain and operate a turnpike system in the Commonwealth, Activities are financed
through user tolls and the issuance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are funded through
user tolls. The PTC works closely with the Department of Transportation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A-Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

The PG appoints all voting members. The Department of Transportation must approve all contracts
related to turnpike construction and supervise construction. When all the PTC bondholders have
been satisfied, the PTC assets revert to the Department of Transportation. The Governor must approve
the issnance of all the PTC debt. The PG may be morally obligated for the PTC debt.

Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type} — The PSERS
was created to administer and provide pension benefits to public school employes in Pennsylvania.
The PSERS covers almost all such employes. Employer contributions are made equally by covered
school districts and by the PG; employes also make contributions.

The PG appoints eight of fifteen voting board members; the seven other members are appointed by
active or retired public school employes or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to
making significant contributions to the PSERS, the PG guarantees the payment of all annuities and
other pension benefits. This represents a compelling PG financial burden.

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) (College and University Funds) — The SSHE was
created to provide instruction for postsecondary students. The SSHE is composed of fourteen
universities and an administrative headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition, grants
and PG subsidies. :

The PG appoints all voting board members. Five of the sixteen appointments must be trustees of
universities; three must be students. The PG provides significant operating and capital subsidies to
the SSHE. The PG may be morally obligated for the SSHE debt.

Restated Fund Balances/Retained Earnings

As part of implementing the requirements of GASB 14, the June 30, 1993 fund balances/retained
earnings for those organizations which were previously included in the financial reporting entity
and are now included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented component units, have
been newly reported as the July 1, 1993 fund balances/retained earnings for the governmental,
proprietary, pension trust and college and university discretely presented component units. The
amounts included as part of this restatement are disclosed as part of Note C to the financial statements.

Financial Reports

Audited financial statements for all component units are available from the individual organizations.
Interested parties should write to the Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations, Room 207
Finance Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, to learn how to obtain these reports.

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG
appoints all eleven governing board members but is not financially accountable as there is no
imposition of will, no financial benefit/burden, nor fiscal dependency associated with the PMRS.
Local governments are the only participants in the PMRS. Participation is voluntary and there are
variations among different municipal pension plans. Local participating governments are financially
responsible only for their own plan obligations. The Commonwealth provides accounting services
to the PMRS on a cost reimbursement basis. The PMRS is not included in the financial reporting
entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A-Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

Joint Venture

The Commeonwealth, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsylvania Employes
Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF) using a contractual agreement with various Commonwealth employe
labor unions. The PEBTF establishes and provides Commonwealth employe health and welfare
benefits. The PEBTF is administered by a governing board, one half of whose members are each
appointed by the Commonwealth and the various unions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions
control the governing board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally shared. The
Commonwealth unilaterally pays for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based
on the terms contained in collective bargaining agreements. Employe unions are not financially
responsible for making contributions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the employe unions have an
equity interest or any ongoing financial interest in the PEBTF. Aside from its obligation to make
periodic, established contributions, the Commonwealth is not responsible for any obligations of
the PEBTFE.

Excluded Organizations

Schoo! districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary
governments, as they are governed by popularly-elected officials.

Secondary vocational-technical schools, intermediate units and community colleges were considered
as potential component units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These
schools may receive significant PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint
a voting majority of governing board members, nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations.
Atlthough various Commonwealth laws affect or strongly influence these organizations, the PG
does not control day-to-day operating decisions. These organizations are not fiscally dependent on
the PG.

Four universities, commonly referred to as “state-related,” including Pennsylvania State University,
University of Pittsburgh, Lincoln University and Temple University, were considered as potential
component units. The PG appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the governing board at
each university and provides significant operating and capital subsidies. However, given the absence
of the PG appointment of a voting majority, the lack of imposition of will and the lack of fiscal
dependency, these universitics are excluded from the financial reporting entity.

The Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) meets the criteria for inclusion as a
component unit, as it is legally separate, the PG appoints all voting board members and the PEDA
is fiscally dependent on the PG. However, since the PEDA has issued only non-recourse debt to
finance several energy-related projects, neither the limited obligation debt nor the related loans
receivable, which constitute almost all of the PEDA’s financial activity, are reported. The non-
recourse debt is disclosed in Note K to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting
entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related
liabilities and equities which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with the fund’s special regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the Com-
monwealth, funds are established by legislative enactment or in certain cases by administrative action.

The Commonwealth has cstablished the following fund categories, fund types and account groups for the
primary government:

Governmental Funds

General Fund — Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund. The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s major operating fund,

Special Revenue Funds - Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified
purposes. Although included as a Special Revenue Fund, the State Lottery Fund reports on a
basis of accounting which provides results which are the same as if the full accrual method of
accounting were used, except for fixed assets and related depreciation, which are not reported.

Debt Service Funds — Account for the accumulation of resources, principally transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds — Account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and
other public organizations (other than those financed by Proprictary or Fiduciary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds — Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on
a continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. The State Workmen’s Insurance Fund is included for its fiscal year ended December
31, 1993 and the State Stores Fund for its fiscal year ended June 28, 1994.

Internal Service Funds — Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Furds — Account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
These include Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and Agency Funds, The State
Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, and the Deferred Compensation Fund,
an Agency Fund, are included for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1993,

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets Account Group — Accounts for all general fixed assets acquired or
constructed for use by the Commonwealth in the conduct of its activities, except those accounted
for in Proprietary Funds, Pension Trust Funds, and College and University Funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group — Accounts for all long-term obligations of
the Commonwealth, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds and College and University
Funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Component Units inclade Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and College
and University Funds which are legally separate from the Commonwealth but are considered part of the
reporting entity. The College and University Funds arc as follows;

College and University Funds

Account for the operations of the Office of the Chancellor and the 14 state-owned universities,
which comprise the State System of Higher Education, in accordance with existing authoritative
accounting and reporting principles applicable to colleges and universities. Accordingly, the
College and University Funds are an aggregation of the following funds:

Current Funds—Unrestricted —— Account for economic resources of the institution which
are expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the universities
and have not been designated by the governing body for any other purpose.

Current Funds—Restricted — Account for resources received from donors or other outside
agencics that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds — Account. for resources available for loans to students, faculty or staff,

Erndowment and Similar Funds — Consist of endowment funds, term endowment funds
and quasi-endowment funds,

Endowment Funds — Account for resources which the donor has stipulated, as a
condition of the gift instrument, that the principal amount would be maintained
inviolate and in perpetity for investment. Investment earnings may be added to the
principal or expended for restricted or unrestricted purposes, based on the donor’s
stipulation.

Term Endowment Funds — Account for resources, all or a part of the principal of
which may be expended upon the passage of time or the occurrence of a particular
event.

Quasi-Endowment Funds — Account for resources that the governing board of an
institation, rather than an outside source, has determined will be retained and invested.
Since this is an internal designation, the Board of Governors has the right to expend
the principal of these funds at any time,

Plant Funds — Account for (a) resources available to acquire or repair institutional
properties and to service debt incurred to acquire such properties and (b) the cost of fixed
assets and the source from which the cost is funded.

Agency Funds — Account for resources held by the institution acting in the capacity of-
an agent for distribution to designated beneficiaries,

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (GAAP): The general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects funds (Governmental Fund Types) and expendable trust funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Assets and liabilities of agency
funds are reporied using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus only current
assets and current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of ‘‘available spendable
resources.”” Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues of governmental and expendable trust
funds are recognized in the year that they become both measnrable and available (within 60 days of fiscal

year-end) to pay current fiscal year liabilities. The Commonwealth accrues the following major revenue

sources that are both measurable and available:

Sales and use taxes, cigarette taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, liquor
taxes, grant revenues, investment income, institutional revenues, lottery revenues and sales of goods
and services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§ (continued)

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
fiscal year the goods or services are received and the related fund Hability is incurred. Debt service
expenditures for principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due unless
resources have been provided for payment early in the subsequent fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory
purchases are reported as current fiscal year expenditures, rather than allocating cost to the fiscal year when
the items are used. Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absencés and employer pension
contributions are reported as the amount accrued during the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources.

The enterprise, internal service (Proprietary Fund Types) and pension trust funds are reported using the
flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement
focus all asscts and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet.
Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) consists of contributed capital and retained earnings. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recogmzed in the fiscal year earned and expenses arc recognized in the
fiscal year incurred.

The College and University Funds, a component unit, are reported using the *‘financial flow’’ (spending)
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This treatment is in accordance with the National
Association of College and University Business Officers’ (NACUBO) College and University Business
Administration (19582) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Audits of Colleges
and Unriversities (1975) for institutions of higher education.

Basis of Accounting (Budgetary)! The Commonwealth’s Constitution requires that the Governor submit
a budget annually to be adopted by the General Assembly for the ensuing fiscal year. The General Assembly
may add, change or delete any items in the budget proposed by the Governor, but the Governor retaing
veto power over the individual appropriations passed by the legislature. The Governor may also reduce
individual appropriations, but may not increase them. A gubernatorial veto can be ovemdden only by a
two-thirds majority of each House of the General Assembly. :

The Commonwealth’s budgets are prepared essentially on a cash basis. Total appropriations enacted by
the General Assembly may not exceed the ensuing fiscal year's estimated revenues, as developed by the
Governor, plus (less) the unappropriated fund balance (deficit) of the preceding fiscal year, except for
constitutionally authorized debt service payments.

Budgetary control is exercised at the appropriation level (legislative spending authority level). Encumbrances
and expenditures cannot exceed appropriated amounts, Appropriation transfers between departments and
any supplemental appropriations require both executive and legislative branch approval. Unencumbered
and ynexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the
subsequent year. On the budgetary basis of accounting, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded
at fiscal year end for the General Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals
include sales and use taxes and personal income taxes, both applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels
taxes applicable to the Motor License Fund, which are estimated to be owed to the Commonwealth but
not collected at fiscal year end. Also, estimated encumbrances are established for all funds at fiscal year
end to pay certain direct expenditures for salaries, wages, travel, and utility costs payable against current
year appropriation authority but expended in the subsequent year. Over-estimates of prior year encumbrances
are lapsed in the subsequent year and under-estimates are charged to subsequent year appropriation authority.
A separate document, “‘Status of Appropriations’ for the fiscal year'ended June 30, 1994 reporis the level
of legal control at the appropriation level for specific departmental programs and functions, and is available
from the Commonweaith’s Office of the Budget.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Budgets are legally adopted each fiscal year for the following funds:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
State Lottery
Motor License
Workmen’s Compensation Administration

The legally adopted budget for the General Fund includes $55.5 million in supplemental appropriations
approved during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994.

Not all Special Revenue Funds are controtled by legally adopted budgets. Controls over spending in such
Special Revenue Funds are maintained by use of spending limits (executive authorizations) established by
" the Governor.

The Commonwealth also makes appropriations to authorize expenditures for various capital projects.
Appropriations for capital projects normally remain in effect until the completion of each project unless
modified or rescinded.

Budget revenues in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent official estimates
while expenditures represent amounts originally adopted and legally amended. Actual amounts are presented
on the budgetary basis. Because the budgetary basis of accounting differs from GAAP, a reconciliation
of the differences between budgetary basis and the GAAP basis of reporting is presented in Note M.

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwealth
funds are pooled by the Treasury Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for
centrally for receipt and disbursement purposes. The law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and
other financial institutions to guarantee the Commonwealth’s cash on deposit.

Temporary Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash within twelve months or less are
reported as temporary investments. These investments include cash equivalents, which have original maturity
dates of three months or less, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value which would result from changes in interest rates. No investments
which could be defined as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the Statement of Cash Flows;
therefore, net changes in cash only are displayed. Temporary investments are stated at cost, which
approximates market.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after twelve months are reported
as long-term investments. Long-term investments are stated at cost for equity securities and at amortized
cost for debt securities, except for various investments of the State Employes’ Retirement System and the
Deferred Compensation Fund, which are stated at market value.

Grants: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement type grants are recorded as
revenues when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred.

Inventories: Inventories of goods, materials and supplies are maintained by the Proprietary and College
and University Funds. These inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (first-in, first-out) for
Proprietary and weighted average for College and University Funds. In the governmental fund types,
inventories are accounted for on the purchases method,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: General fixed assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assets are stated at fair market value at the time of donation. Public domain general fixed assets (including
highways, bridges, highway land and rights-of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided on
general fixed assets. Land and buildings used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), which were
acquired or constructed before July 1, 1983, the inception date for the SSHE, are reported in the
Commonwealth’s General Fixed Assets Account Group. All general fixed assets acquired or constructed
by the SSHE subsequent to June 30, 1983 without the use of university funds or incurrence of the SSHE
debt are also reported in the Commonwealth’s General Fixed Assets Account Group. This accounting treatment
is used to conform to the enabling legislation for the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE

property.

Fixed assets related to Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated
historical cost. Depreciation is reported on a straight-line basis over the fixed assets’ estimated useful lives,
The folowing lives are used:

Buildings . . ... e e e e e 10-50 years -
Improvements other than bmldmgs ................................... 5-50 years
Purniture, machinery and equipment .............cocvevneennaaai. ... 325 years

Fixed assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE fixed assets is recognized over
the estimated useful life of the assets, ‘

Amounts Available in Commonwealth Funds: The amount available for retirement of Other General Long-
Term Obligations in the amount of $2.4 million, is reported as part of fund balance, ‘“Reserved for other™™
in the General Fund at June 30, 1994.

Insurance Loss Llablhty: The insurance loss liability represents an estimate of the ultimate net costs of
unpaid claims relating to policyholders of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fuod, an Enterprise Fund. These
loss reserves are discounted at a 4 percent rate.

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for employe disability
and tort claims. Reporting of self-insurance liabilities is described in Note O,

Compensated Absences: Effective July 1, 1993 the Commonwealth has adopted the accounting and reporting
standards required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement 16, *‘Accounting for
Compensated Absences.” This standard, in part, requires that liabilities associated with probable payments
for sick leave for employes who have not yet qualified, but who are expected to qualify for payments, be
reported. The adoption of this standard has resulted in an increase and restatement of previously reported
general long term governmental obligations as well as a reduction and a restatement of certain previously -
reported proprietary fund’s retained earnings balances as of July 1, 1993, The amounts mcludcd as part
of this restatement are disclosed as part of Note C to the financial statements.

Employes accumulate annual leave based on 2 percent to 10 percent of regular hours paid to a maximum
of 45 days. Employes are paid for accumulated annual leave upon termination or retirement.

Employes accumulate sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid to a maxinum of 300 days. Retiting
employes that meet service, age or disability requirements are paid in accordance with the following schedule:

Days Available Percentage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid
0-100 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 (in last year 100% of days
of employment) over 300 13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accumulated annual and sick leave liability payable in subsequent fiscal years from Governmental Funds
and Expendable Trust Funds are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Proprietary,
Pension Trust, and College and University Funds accrue annual and sick leave in the fiscal year carned.

Pension Costs: The Commonwealth's policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prior service
costs over varying periods not exceeding 30 years.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension
of formal budgetary integration in the Commonwealth’s accounting systent. Encumbrances outstanding at
fiscal year end are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

Reserves and Designations: Reserves represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for
a specific future use or are not appropriable for expenditure.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund, $69.5 million, is applicable to a demand loan to
the State Stores Fund for $66 million, an advance to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund for $1.3 million,
both Enterprisc Funds, and an advance to the Motor License Fund for $2.2 million, a Special Revenue
Fund. For it's fiscal year ended December 31, 1993 the State Workmen's Insurance Fund has reported
an advance from the General Fund in the amount of $2 million. .

The $5.4 million reported as *‘Reserved for other”” in the General Fund at June 30, 1994 includes $2.4
million for arbitrage rebate tax, $2.2 million advances to organizations outside the financial reporting entity
and $.8 million for other reservations.

The $67.5 million reported as ‘‘Reserved for other” in the College and University Funds, a discretely
presented component unit, at June 30, 1994 pertains to approved academic projects that will begin in
subsequent fiscal periods.

Reserved retained earnings reported for Enterprise Funds are provided principally for insurance claims relating
to The State Workmen’s Insurance Fund and loans relating to the Minority Business Development Loan
Fund. Rescrved retained earnings reported for Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds
are provided principally for the retirement of revenue bonds relating to the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission, student loans relating to the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, and housing
loans relating to the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency. At June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth has included
the following reservations of retained earnings for the Enterprise Funds and the Discretely Presented
Component Unit Proprietary Funds (expressed in thousands):

Discretely

Presented

Primary Component

Government Unit
State Workmen's Insurance Fund............. $ 91,566 C e
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission........... C e 931,731
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance

AZENCY +uvivennenriinnseananstonsanes T 198,659
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ........ R 98,862
Other Enterprise Funds . ........covvianan 7,902 e
Total $ 99,468 $1,229,252
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Designations of unreserved fund balances reflect managerial plans for the future use of financial resources.
At June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth has included the following amounts as “*Designated—Other”’ for the
General Fund and Special Revenve Funds (expressed in thousands):

General Fund:
Restricted revenue . .. ...oovtin ettt it $ 150,292
Continuing programs. ... ......c.vvvvernenereariiaeeann. 133,057
Group medical and life insurance ....................... ' 109,229
© Tax stabilization ...............c0iiiiiiiiiiiiiieaan, 29,953
L 1T 26,397
Total General Fund ........ ..o iiiiiiiiiinieaannns, $ 448,928
Special Revenue Funds:
Land reclamation. . .........oeiiiineniiirnnii i $ 25,395
Economic development ..o it i 16,793
Energy conservation and development ................... 6,043
Solid waste grams . ......covttiiit it i 4,837
Other ..... e e ettt 1,921
Total Special Revemue Funds ... ..............co00uun.. $ 54,989

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal
Government.

Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund: This fund, commonly referred to as the *‘Rainy Day Fund,*’ was created
in July of 1985 by Act 32 to provide financial assistance to minimize future revenue shortfalls and deficits,
and promote greater continuity and predictability in the funding of vital government services. The tax
stabilization reserve is not to exceed 3 percent of the estimated revenues of the General Fund. Revenue
is provided through an appropriation by the General Assembly for transfer to this fund. Whenever the
Governor determines a need to transfer moneys from this fund, a request for an appropriation is made to
the General Assembly. An appropriation from the fund requires approval by two-thirds of the members
of the General Assembly. Also, Act 35 of 1991 provides that in any fiscal year in which there is a surplus
of operating funds in the General Fund, as certified by the Budget Secretary, ten percent of such surplus
shall be deposited into this fund. In addition, the proceeds received from the disposition of certain assets
of the Commonwealth are also to be deposited into this fund. For GAAP reporting purposes, this fund is
reported as part of the General Fund.

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions among funds:

Statutory Transfers (Operating Transfers) — Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred
as ““Operating transfers in’* by the recipient fund and as ‘‘Operating transfers out’* by the disbursing
fund. Legally required transfers between primary government and component unit organizations are
reported when incurred as ‘‘Operating transfers from component unit’’ by the recipient organization
and **Operating transfers to primary government’’ or *‘Operating transfers to component unit>® by
the disbursing fund.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements) — Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund
for another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures
in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers — Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds that are reported
as additions to or deductions from the fund equity balance. '

Interfund Payments (Quasi-external Transactions) — Charges or collections for services rendered by
one fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses
of the disbursing fund.

The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1994 is presented
in Note H.

Totals—Memorandum Only: The “Totals (Memorandum Only)” columns represent an aggregation of
the combined financial statement amounts of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for
analytical purposes. These amounts are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total
resources available to or used by the Commonwealth, Interfund eliminations have not been made in the
aggregation of the totals.
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NOTE C-FUND BALANCE DEFICITS/RESTATEMENTS

The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of $22.0 million at June 30, 1994.
This deficit results from increasing expenditures for benefits for the elderly and stable lottery revenues. The
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of $5.9 million at June 30,
1994, '

The Local Criminal Justice Sinking Fund, a Debt Service Fund, reported a $35 thousand deficit fund balance at June
30, 1994. This fund is reported in the “other fund” category and had no fund balance designations.

The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reported a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of
$168,706 at June 30, 1994. In total, the Capital Facilities Fund reported a fund balance of $106,943 at June 30, 1994.
Total Capital Projects Funds reported reservations for encumbrances of $276,720, designations for Capital Projects
of $4,837 and a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $168,706, for a total combined fund balance of
$112,851 at June 30, 1994 (amounts in thousands).

As part of implementing GASB 14, the previously reported June 30, 1993 fund balances for governmental funds
and the pension trust fund and retained earnings for proprietary funds for those organizations which were previously
included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity, and are newly reported as discretely presented component
units, have been reported as July 1, 1993 fund balances/retained earnings for those component units. Correspondingly,
the previously reported June 30, 1993 fund balances and retained earnings for organizations treated as primary
government have been reduced and restated for the same amounts. The following summary discloses the previously
reported fund balances/retained earnings as of June 30, 1993, the amount of the reductions and the restated fund
balances/retained earnings as of July 1, 1993 for the following fund types (amounts in thousands):

Reductions for Reductions Primary
Previously Discretely for Compensated  Government
Reported Presented Absences Restated
Balances Component Liability Balances
June 30, 1993 units Restatement July 1, 1993

Fund Balances:
Governmental Fund Types and Expendable
Trust Fids ...oviveeeeeereeeemicsisissesssinsmnsssssnsssneseesns $ 3,627,672

Retained Earnings/Fund Balances:
Proprietary Fund Types and Pension

TSt FUNA .. veeevv e ceeeceenesismsesesenesnesermsnesssresns 35,905,339
Fund Balances:
College and University FUNdS .........coovevievvrciisnnnnanee 451,154

$ (207234) % $ 3,360,438

(23,322,513 ) (5.865) 12,576,961

(451,154 )




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE C-Fund Balance Deficits/Restatements (continued)

As part of newly implementing the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement 16, “Accounting for
Compensated Absences,” previously-reported liabilities for annual and sick leave have been increased and restated.
For governmental fund types, the amount in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group related to
compensated absences was $287,090, as reported at June 30, 1993. This liability has been increased by $103,073
and is restated at $390,163 as of July 1, 1993 (amounts in thousands). For proprietary fund types, previously-
reported liabilities have been increased and retained earnings balances have been decreased by $5,865 and restated
as of July 1, 1993 as follows {amounts in thousands):

Previously
Reported Restated
Balance Balance
June 30,1993 Decrease July 1, 1993
State Stores FUNd c.ovoicisiceeeceeesesesssss i $ 20,907 $ 5,320 $ 15,587
(Enterprise) '
Hiram G. Andrews Center Fund .....eoooeeeeeeeeen . 10,980 232 10,748
(Enterprise)
Coal and Clay Mine Subsidence Fund ................ 10,306 20 10,286
(Enterprise)
Manufacturing Fund ........oecevenriecvmvnninnesecrines 21,250 178 21,072
(Internal Service)
Porchasing Fund ......ccevverevencnvnrersnirsssseresessens - 18,784 115 18,669

(Internal Service)

The State System of Higher Education (SSHE), a discretely presented component unit reported as College and
University Funds previously reported total fund balance of $451,154 as of June 30, 1993. As of July 1, 1993 this
amount has been reduced by $249,345 and is being restated as total fund balance of $201,809, Effective July 1, 1993
the SSHE implemented Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 106, “Employers
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” The restatement results from the immediate recognition
of transition obligation associated with total postretirement cost during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994.

The previously reported retained earnings for the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a discretely
presented component unit reported as a Proprietary Fund, was $254,787 at June 30, 1993. This amount has been
increased and is being restated at $315,080 as of July 1, 1993 to include the previously reported retained earnings of
the Homeowners Emergency Mortgage Assistance Program (HEMAP) in the amount of $60,293. The HEMAP is
newly included in the PHFA through application of GASB 14 and will no longer be reported as a separate Proprietary -
Fund.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D —DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

.Authority for deposits and investments: The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by section 301.1 and )

505 of the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 343, No. 176, amended November 16, 1985). Treasury deposits must be held in insured
depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully collateralized. The Treasury Department may invest in direct
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Governmment agencies with maturities not exceeding two years; commercial paper rated “Prime One” by
Moody’s Credit Service or the equivalent by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch’s Rating Service; certificates of deposit issued by Pennsylvania banks
or savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Government obligations that are held by the Treasury Department at the
Federal Reserve bank; banker’s acceptances; and up to 2 maximum of 10 percent of the book value of a fund’s assets in any investment (other than
common stock) not otherwise specifically authorized. The Treasury Department may also participate in reverse repurchase agreements; immate-
rial amounts were outstanding at June 30, 1994.

The deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds included in primary government and component units are established by authority
other than the Fiscal Code. Enabling statutes generally provide deposit and investment authority for component units. Further, specific bond and
trust indentures, as well as formal governing board resolutions, provide deposit and investment requirements. Allowable investments of compo-
pent units do not significantly differ from those investments of the Treasury Department, except that, in accordance with applicable statutory
authority, the State Employes’ Retirement System and the Public School Employes’ Retirement System, Pension Trust Funds, have invested in
common and preferred stocks, corporate and foreign bonds and notes, mortgages and real estate during their fiscal years.

Deposits: The Treasury Department controls the receipt and disbursement of amounts owned by agencies included in the primary government.
Certain discretely presented component units, meanwhile, control receipt and disbursement of their own funds, typically through a trustee. The
following summaries present the amount of primary government and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth) deposits which are
fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the Commenwealth or its agent in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 1), those deposits
which are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name
(Category 2) and those deposits which are not collateralized or are collateralized by the pledging financial institution or the pledging institution’s
trust department or agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 3) at June 30, 1994 (expressed in thousands). '

Primary Government
Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Bank Balance -  Amount

Cash ..o $§ 39,707 $ 17,629 $ 8667 $ 66,003 $ 108,156
Cash with'fiscal agents ... 1,379,439 N 15,272 1,394,711 1,394,711
Certificates of deposit and related items ............. 173,618 147,861 16,345 337,824 295,818

The above-listed $295,818 in certificates of deposit and related items is reported as part of primary government (emporary investments at June
30, 1994.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category3 Bank Balance Amount

$ 1,570 $ 34,957 $ 57,684 $ 94211 $ 79919
100 944 ceen 1,044 1,044

Investments: The Treasury Department, other agencies in the primary government and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth)
categorize investments according to the level of credit risk assumed by the Commonwealth. Category 1 includes investments that are insured,
registered or held by the Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments held by the Counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments held by the counterparty, its trust department or its agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s name. Certain investments
have not been categorized because securities are not used as evidence of the investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership
interests in mutual funds and in mortgage, real estate and venture capital pools. The following summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed
by the Commonwealth and the total carrying amount and market value of Commonwealth investments at June 30, 1994 (expressed in thousands).

]
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|
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)

Primary Government

All primary government investments susceptible to credit risk are in category one.
L : Carrying Market
‘L Amount Value
! Commercial PAPET .......cvumvmrcerirersrmmcns st sesressssss s sbassessorases $ 120877 - $ 121,018
‘ Common and preferred stock 2,500,809 2,500,671
Corporate bonds and notes ... 2,255,708 2,248,863
International fixed INCOME ....cccivieeiiisrc i e 18,309 18,309
Mortgage backed securities 404 404
Repurchase agreements ... 2,284,421 2,284,421
) State and municipal obligatHons ... 315,515 315,510
! 1J.S. Government obligaticns 2,459,515 2,474,751
U.S. Government agency obligations .........ieoeriemmevcinnnciccnce s 842,634 844,993
) 4,824 4,824
10,803,016 10,813,764
Add invested amounts not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Investment pools in which State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS)
participates at December 31, 1993: :
MOMEAZE I0ANS ..cvvcveisiicsiiiiss sttt sts st s s 807,547 807,547
MUtual funds ....cccoeeiiiiiiini s st 3,947,072 3,047,072
REAL BBLALR ......c.oiiiviiiiiieviarsis i ais s eeseasssssss b e st sss e sbssbsessbs bt sbatssbasennsstnsen 842,333 842,333
Venture capital ............. e heeatteseafaeetnereettoneasbo b b eeaa b o b babeade sk b area bt hneasbeaetas 138,227 138,227 _
Securities loaned by SERS at December 31, 1993:
U.S. GOVErnment SECUMLES ..eeeeeioeeenreraaervresrssrsirinsnesrsrsseranresraresressens 642,714 642,714
Corporate bonds and notes 236,927 236,927
Common and preferred STOCKS vec e 827,198 827,198
Investments owned by the Statutory Liquidator Fund at June 30, 1994: )
[ ANDULES «....vevveee e eseeereeseereessessseeessssssseesesssneenssssssesassesess snasseansssssnnsaes 909 209
' Insurance Company SUbSIIArIESs .......ooeeieevreecrn e e 5,511 5,511
Loans 1,760 . 1,760
MOLEEAZE LOANS 11veurecerree e et eeee s ese e s erere g ssmsmsssessesserene 25,415 25415
Mutual fUnds ..ot s s 725 725
Pantnership iNLErestS ..vvmviiimminrisimsrismsirssminmasisermromsi sese 602 602
18,279,956 18,290,704
- Certificates of depbsit and related IteIMS ...c.vcveeeve e 295,818 295,818

Total temporary and long-term investments .........ocooovervevveercreeereennncnes $ 18,575,774 $ 18,586,522

The above-listed $295,818 in CD’'s are reported as investments at June 30, 1994 but have been treated as deposits for a determination of the
level of credit risk associated with them.

The State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, ewns approximately 98 percent of the common and preferred stock, 84
percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 97 percent of mortgage loans and 100 percent of the real estate reported in the above summary.
- There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for investments during the year ended June 30, 1994.
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NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)
|
Discretely Presented Component Units f
|
I Carrying Amount —
: Market -
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total ~ Value {
. L
Commercial PAPET ...ovccevimneericimmenicsmnissssrens $ v % 10,095 $ 82381 % 92476 § 92,476
- Common and preferred stock ... 11,225,099 . 1,589 11,226,688 12,674,722 e
Corporate bonds and notes ...........ccceveeininiinaniinn. 1,570,579 20,468 53,710 1,644,757 1,596,295 D
International fixed inCOME ......coeveriinerirscerrircencrrnnns 1,285,462 C . e 1,285,462 1,284,615 o
Mortgage backed securities ... 2,500,462 ces 117,563 2,618,025 2,582,284
Repurchase agreements - 146,509 584,173 79,956 810,638 810,638
State and municipal obligations..........c...ivovveiiienee 420,239 8,000 7,149 435,388 436,325 ;
U.S. Government obligations ........c.cccooceceevciine 193,571 221,054 19,492 434,117 451,098
U.S. Government agency obligations ...........c....... 3,720,285 e 81,224 - 3,801,509 3,726,383 .
Various short-term investments 47,749 27,208 3,794 78,751 78,739 P '
Totals ....cocveenrnes ettt e e ann $ 21,109,955 $ 870,998 $ 446,858 22,427,811 23,733,375 L
Investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
o
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority i
in U.S. government obligation mutual funds at June 30, 1994 ..., 81,404 81,404
Investments owned by the State Public School Building Authority in Pennsylvania j
Treasury investment pool at June 30, 1994 ..ot e e 75,554 75,554 i
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency at

June 30, 1994:

O S 85,875 85,875
Investment 2greements .........c.cemnniniennns U 124,076 124,076
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool 130,450 130,450
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency at June 30, 1994: i
INVESTINENE AETERIMBALS ooeuevcrreeesrscsrasiresisst st st st e s b ke sh s s e s e ann s erernrnns 96,696 96,696 _ !
Muttial FAS ..oeeceereeneeereeeeee s seesesssenses 62,972 62,972 :
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool 4,003 4,003
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority in ) "
Pennsylvania Treasury investment poel at June 30, 1994 ... 81,330 81,330 : I
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authorjityat 7 :
June 30, 1994; .
IMUBIAL TN <.ttt eeass e rassrerssmre s e e s smesss s snrasesarerasesrarrasnsrnsnsserraranserenrsarestensasssessnarnss 11,026 11,026 Sl }
Pennsylvania Freasury investment POOL ... s s s 100,076 100,076 O
Investments owned by the Public School Employes’ Retirement System at '
June 30, 1994: )
FarmIand VESTENLS .....v.reuvrsesseecsssemesssersssessesecssonemssbreesssbibes bbb ssias s sbass s s b b senn s sbsnn e 76,919 75,570 f‘
GIODAE SHOTE TEITI c...ecvevrccearteeecere e v ssr e sesesnsersens o te e e ereressasemsanasos sunoesoeusarassmsaeneseasnanressennreassan 1,218,975 1,220,721 |
LAMIted PATENEISHDS ......cvvoieseececesesaeesessssasusesssesssesssesssessseessesesensseessesmsesssessssssserssnsssesmssesseomssensions 75,000 78,560 2
MOTEZAZE JOANS 1voeeeeeee ettt b bt s e s s s e e 87.618 89,996
Pennsylvania Treasury IVESHMENt POOL ..ot tes s sas ot st s av s 392,345 392,345 i
Private placements, fixed income and €QUILY oo e 304,340 331,988 o
REAL ESEALE ..r..err.oeo e eeessosseessse s seerense s s s 055 e 819,809 787,895 o
Short term investments — health INSUrance aCCOUML ......iveeccveecicuerscmnenrrrrserssensseseeeranssssesassasssres 29,776 28,944
TACtICAR BSSEL ATTOCAIONS 11verrieiiiiiciiee st e seeieseereersretoeee st bssss s st bnr e st s abms e s aner sheenamseessannsbessnnnesssanenn 100,855 100,816 -1
VEDIEUTE CAPITAL . ovuererereacecsenneenirstassresssisssnes s ssnscasescasae s sonssans b s e and b £b sk nbs s nba s a R s b abaranbsanras 111,386 141,694 ;
ok
TTOLRIS ....ooveveeesieeessarrersesseeresemrrassesnseatasseseee seae nere et s aeoeseemen sk bmb bt be b AL AR SRS bbb s bR e $ 26,498,296 $ 27,835,566
K
The Public School Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 100 percent of the commen and preferred P
stock, 95 percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 95 percent of mortgage loans and 100 percent of the real estate reported in the above
summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or contraciual provisions for investments during the year ended June 30, 1994, !
—36—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land .cvvviininiinnnanes
Buildings ...........0ents
Improvements other than
buildings ..............
Furniture, machinery and
equipment . ....... ...,
Turnpike infrastructuze ....
Construction in progress ...

Total ...vviivennnaarns

I NOTE E-FIXED ASSETS.

l— Primary Government

A summary of fixed assets by category at June 30, 1994 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Discretely Presented —|
l Component Units

College
Internal Pension General Fixed and

Enterprise Service Trust Assets Proprietary Fiduciary University

Funds Funds Fond Account Group Funds Fond Funds
$ 323 3 (3 $ $ 238,843 % 73,684 § $ 4,362
2,540 3,649 2,667,274 335,390 239,212
17,905 684 196,088 21,926 29,120
64,590 48,578 100 503,472 152,976 11,792 294,763
2,185,041
e, 166 e . 28,645 107,052 e 41,142
$ 85358 $ 53083 § 100 $ 3,694,322 $ 2876069 $ 11,792 § 608,599

; \ Balance Balance
: | June 30, June 30,
P 1993 Additions Refirements 1994
| Land ....covvvnrirnnnnrrennnencans v 8229752 $ 9,112 3 21 $ 238,843
Buildings . ovvvrerranaiiiiiiiiiinas 2,283,158 392,692 8,576 2,667,214
Improvements other than buildings....... 154,450 42,352 T4 196,088
Furniture, machinery and equipment ..... 477,422 40,738 14,688 503,472
3,144,782 484,894 23,999 3,605,677
Construction in Progress .....cecevevaees 129,340 31,075 n, T 88,645
Totals . ovvevienivnrnereacnnnnns . $3,274,122 $ 515,969 $

(expressed in thousands):

95,769 $ 3,694,322

F Expended
! Preject Through Authorization
Profect Authorization June 30, 1994 Available
Department of Corrections Institations............. $ 274,598 $ 30,536 $ 244,082
Colleges and Universities ........cviivevrunansss 174,321 17,293 157,028
[ Depariment of Transportation . .. ...ovvvvavanannnn 45,078 1318 37,760
Capitol Complex Buildings ......ccvvvvvrnveinsnas 36,262 813 35,449
. Department of Environmentat Resources . .......... 30,625 13,693 16,932
i Department of Public Welfare Institutions, ......... 28,012 6,512 21,500
. Historical Sites ...ovvvvvnvnrnrsrrnsaranrrnnssnas 13,926 3,506 10,420
Other ... .vieit i iiasnnnncnarannsanssnsranan 31,181 8,974 22,207
) § 634,003 $ 88,645 $ 545,358

L NOTE F—DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal Government for various departmental programs.

Changes in general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Interest costs of $18.7 million were capitalized for the Enterprise Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994,

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general fixed assets was made as of June 30, 1986 using appraisal and historical
cost reconstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986 general fixed asset acquisitions are valued at cost. At June
30, 1994 the amount of general fixed assets related to the initial valuation amounts to $2,028 million.

L Construction in progress included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at June 30, 1994 is composed of the following
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE G — TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES
Taxes Receivable: Taxes receivable at June 30, 1994 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Special Trust and
General Revenue = Agency
Fund Funds Funds Total
Sales AnA USE . ..o v vt it $ 472,778 $ 18,063 ... . & 490,841
Unemployment compensation . .............«..- e e . 430,708 430,708
Personal income. .. ... oo viiiiiiiii it 183,461 - 183,461
Corporation ...........evuuens et 82,970 e R 82,970
Liquid fuels ....coovviininiiiiiiiinnnnnnns e 57,321 2,725 60,046
LT o 23,313 63,710 - 87,023

$ 762,522 $ 139,094 $§ 433,433 $ 1,335,049

Notes and Loans Receivable: Loans reccivable at June 30, 1994 consisted of the following (expressed

in thousands): Discretely Presented

Primary Government Component Units
College
Special and
Revenue Enterprise Proprietary University
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Morgage Ioans . ... oovvvnevniaininninn. $ A e $ 1,971,189 $ e
Student loans . .......ovvviiiiiiaann : e C e 1,333,789 31,744
Business development loans . ............. 40,330 163,609 448,401 e e
Municipal water system loans ............ 28,744 e 787,993
Volunteer fire company loans ............ c e 59,730 e
Nursing home loans .................... 24,083 C e
Othernotesand loans......oocveeevvnnn. 5,577 35,464 e e e
98,734 258,803 4,541,372 31,744
Less: Allowance for :
uncollectible accounts .. ... .......... 16,294 35,452 118,835 6,958
Loans receivable, met ................. $ 82,440 § 223,351 $ 4,422,537 % 24,786

Discretely presented component unit governmental funds reported $1.2 million of loans to school districts
at June 30,.1994,

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and State Public School '

Building Authority, discretely presented governmental fund component units, finance construction projects
for educational institutions through the issuance of bonds and other obligations, the principal and interest
of which are paid through the collection of lease rental payments related to the projects. The Capital Facilities
Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, finances construction projects for educational institutions through the issuance
of General Obligation Bonds, the principal and interest of which are paid through the collection of lease
rental payments and deposited in their related Debt Service Funds. Also, at the conclusion of the lease terms,
the project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lecase arrangements
are classified as direct financing leases. Lease rental receivables and associated deferred revenue equal to
the principal lease payments to be received are recorded in the Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds
relating to these arrangements. For the Capital Facilitics Fund, the total minimum lease payments to be
received was $4 million and the present value of the lease payments was $3 million at June 30, 1994, the
difference representing interest of $1 million. For discretely presented component units, total minimum
lease payments was $3,662 million, the present value was $2,109 million and interest was $1,553 million,
A discretely presented proprietary fund component unit reported a lease rental receivable of $13 million
at June 30, 1994. Minimum lease payments for the five fiscal years succeeding June 30, 1994 are as follows
(expressed in millions):

Discretely Presented

Fiscel Year Ending Governmental Fund
June 30 Primary Government Component Units
1995.... $ 1 $ 170
1996. ... 1 Co 170
1997.... C e _ 194
1998.... 175
1999.... 221
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H — INTERFUND ACCOUNTS/OPERATING TRANSFERS/RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS____

A summary of interfund receivables and payables reported on the combined balance sheet at June 30, 1994 is
as follows (expressed in thousands):

FUND TYPE/FUND DUE FROM DUE TO

Otyer ~ COMPONENT OTtHER CoMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT Funps Unirs Funps - Unrrs
GENETAL ...t rers st s e $ 38,767 $ 2139 $ 160,810 $ 144,075
Special Revenue:
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund ................... 45,516 e 217
- Agricultural Conservation Easement Fund ......ccoevrenee. 10,841 e e
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund 20,600 e 217 ceen
Motor License Fund ....ovveevvveveean, 3,066 2,608 17,829 5,395
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund 33 e 7,693 R
Other FUNAS .vveeeeerccevrieeveessressre s sress e rrsssmsssssssesssssssenans 6,199 e 8,757 R
86,255 2,608 34,713 5,395
Debt Service:
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
Redemption Fund .......ccoocecivnvvnninnnererensinon R 37,739 e
Tax Note Sinking Fund ......c.ooooioiee e e . 2,184
Other FURAS ..ovoienisiiiiniimienre e esreesesesce e eseeenns 169 cees .
165 37,739 2,184
Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund ... eecereeecenas 549 e 159
Land and Water Development Fund .........ccooeeernevnencenees e e 19
549 e 178
Enterprise: :
State Stores FUnd ...t ceree s 139 ce 16,493
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund 64 ce 5,385
Rehabilitation Center Fund ......ccocovveeeiccncneceees 7,082 R 159
Other FuNAS ..o et cree s crem e 750 ves 58
8,035 cens 22,095
Internal Service:
. Purchasing Fund ..o e cneeee 7.875 950 8,818
i Manufacturing FUnd ... 3,409 9 236
- 11,284 959 9,054
Expendable Trust:
Catastrophic Loss Benefit Continuation Fund ................ e e 4,893
Unemployment Compensation Fund .......ccc.ovccevee 2,952 313 e
Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund .. 4,850 e 41
Tuition Payment Fund ... RN e 125
7,802 313 5,059
Pension Trust:
State Employes’ Retirement SyStem .....cooeevcnvcrconeen 68,320 9.913 18
Agency:
ANLFUNAS ..ot 1,350 R 1,310
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ..........ccceeeee $222,531 $ 53,67 $ 235,421 $ 149,470




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
NOTE H — Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued) L
g
b
. DUE FROM DUETO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED OTHER PrivArY OTHER PrIMARY ;
' COMPONENT UNITS : Funps GoOVERNMENT  FuNps  GOVERNMENT i

Governmental ..........eerennneas eveenarens oot $ . N T $ 1 ,‘

Proprietary: ) ;

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Aothority ........... e e ceen " 37,819
Pennsylvania Turnpike COmMIMISSION v.ovvrvvririemrerensromsenenns Ce 3,305 e 2,649 .
(3121153 215, T ORISR e 982 o 960 !
4,287 41,428 !
Fiduciary: I \
Public School Employes’ Retirement System .................. e 143,093 e 609 s
College and University ........cav eee et anas 129,488 - 129,488 8,046 }
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED i
COMPONENT UNITS ... cecnssiiasaanas $ 120488 § 147380 § 129,488 $ 50,084

' | i
Pl

i
2
!
;]
|
i
- P
i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Inferfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers {continued)

The amount of total interfimd receivables of $553,070 does not agree with total interfund payables of $564,463
at June 30, 1994 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the combined balance sheet
at June 30, 1994, The amounts shown as interfund accounts for the State Employes’ Retirement System,
a Pension Trust Fund, and the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund, are as of their fiscal year
end of December 31, 1993, The amounts shown for the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, an Enterprise
Fund, and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit proprietary fund,
are as of their respective fiscal year ends of December 31, 1993 and May 31, 1994. The following presents -
a reconciliation of interfund accounts reported at June 30, 1994 (expressed in thousands) and those amounis
which would have been reported if all funds used the same fiscal year end;

Due from other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1994...... $352,019
Due from component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1994 . 53,671
Due from primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at
June 30, 1994 ... i i et e i ieceeiiaeiaaaan, 147,380
Interfund receivables - Combined Balance Sheet ............. 553,070
Pennsylvania Tumnpike Commission increase in receivables from
June 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994 . ...... ... ... .. . i it 2,090
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund increase in receivables from
January 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994 ......... ... oiiiviiniinnn. 103
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in receivables from
Januwary 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994, . ... iiiiieiiiiiinninasian 7,603
TOTAL INTERFUND RECEIVABIES..................... $562,866
Due to other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1994 ..... ... $364,909

Due to component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1994 .. .. 149,470
Due to primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at

June 30, 1994 ... .. s i et e it 50,084
Interfund payables - Combined Balance Sheet ............... 564,463
Deferred Compensation Fund decrease in payables from
Janvary 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994 .. ... .. .. ... (181)
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in payables from
January 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994 ... .. ... .. it 273
State Workmen'’s Insurance Fund decrease in payables from '
January 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994 ... ... ... ittt 4,577)
Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission increase in payables from
June 1, 1994 through June 30, 1994 . ... .. ... ... 2,888
TOTAL INTERFUND PAYABLES ...............cccccont, $562,866

Y.L



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H — Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

A summary of operating transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

OPERATING TRANSFERS

FUND TYPE/FUND From To
COMPONENT COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT IN Units Out . Unrrs

GENETAL «ovveovcem st s rrieare st e e s s sttt s b s st s par e e e $ 320,242 $ e $ 597,583 $§ 619,042

Special Revenue:

- State Lottery Fund .. 266 e 229,294

- Motor License Fund 57,034 e 470,637
Pharmaceutical Assnstancc Fund 207,000
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund .............coimciicnesrenn, 23,035 e e
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund ., 65,990 e 581
Water Facilities Loan Fund .......coccoivinnnns AU e 13,960
Oher FUNAS «.eoieeet et stnrar e rsenss s et sanesrsras s gmm s n s 6,091 e 19,123

359,416 . 733,595

Debt Service: . :

Land and Water Development Sinking Fond ..o 35,164

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund ..........cooceviveneieeinneennnes 17,952

Capital Debt Fund .. 636,325 . .

Pennsylvania Infrastructure lnvcstmcnt Authonty

Redemption Fund .. rebeberesers i e e e rsaana e nes e 16,956 caes cee cenn :

- Disaster Relief Redempnon Fund . 10,106 . e . i

Pennsylvania Economic Rev:tahzatlon Smkmg Fund 13,691 Ce N -

OLher FUNAS .vvvvvivee et e rense s st 25,919 e 894 e ]

756,113 894 }

Fe |

Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund...

- 55,328
Land and Water Devclopment Fund

148
55,476

Enterprise: :
State Stores Fund ... e R 48,105

Expendable Trust:
State SChool Fund .......ocoimivinermicrcc s st enes 5
Tuition Payment FUnd ... enaen

123 :
5 s 123 cees bt

Pension Trust:
State Employes’ Retirement SYSIEM ....ocoeereecrcece s e 7,851 . 2,968

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ... $ 1,435,776 3 7851 $ 1435776 § 622,010

OPERATING TRANSFERS

From To
DISCRETELY PRESENTED PRIMARY PRIMARY -
COMPONENT UNITS N (GOVERNMENT Our GOVERNMENT ;

CovernmEental FUDAS ... e s resb b sararab s nenearas $ 483,874 % $ 483874 %

Proprietary:

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency ........cocveeee- R 234,628 :
Pennsylvania Housing Finance APENCY ......ceovuvemevemeeceeeiccecienn, : . 19,500
254,128
Fiduciary:
Public School Employes’ Retirement Systemi........oveeeverieevrannes e 2,246 . 6,089
College and University FUnds ....oovemiecimmsemneensscsiesee s e 364,914
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS .....ovreerccve i sssasss s $ 483,874 3 621,288 § 483874 % 6,089
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

The amount of total operating transfers in of $2,548,789 does not agree with total operating transfers out
of $2,547,749 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds
included in the financial reporting entity. The amounts shown as operating transfers for the State Employes’
Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, are for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993. The following
presents a reconciliation of operating transfers reported in the financial statements to those transfer amounts
which would have been reported if all funds used the same fiscal year end (expressed in thousands):

Operating transfers in-all funds ... ............. ..ot iiinnnnnn.. $ 1,919,650
Operating transfers from primary government ....................... 621,288
Operating transfers from component units ... .......... e aeeaaaan 7,851
Sub-total Interfund Operating Transfersin ........ccovviininenn. ., 2,548,789
State Employes’ Retirement System decrease in operating transfers in for the
period January 1, 1994 to June 30, 1994 . ... ..coiiiiiiiiiai . (1,762)
TOTAL INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN .............. $ 2,547,027
Operating transfersout -all funds.................covueinaon... $ 1,919,650
Operating transfers to component units. . ..............0ovvieeunnn.n. 622,010
Operating transfers to primary government . ......................... 6,089
Sub-total Interfund Operating transfers out ... .ooovvvvinieennnrneennn, 2,547,749
State Employes’ Retirement System decrease in operating transfers out for
the period January 1, 1994 to June 30, 1994 .............covviinn... (722)
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT . ....ccvviiiinininnnnnnn. $ 2,547,027

Increases and decreases in contributed capital for proprietary fund types — primary government and discretely
presented component units — during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 are summarized as follows (amounts
in thousands):

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Increases in contributed capital—primary government ............ PP $ 20,765
Decreases in contributed capital—primary government ................. )]
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units .. .. _ 70,000
Decreases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units. . . . (93,390)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Increases in contributed capital—primary government .................. 751
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units . .. . 143,367
Decreases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units. . . . (3,260)

Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary
government and discretely presented component units .. ............... $138,266

The following summary reconciles the above-listed net change in contributed capital to net governmental
residual equity transfers (amounts in fhousands):

Net governmental residual equity transfers........................... $ 16,304
add: general obligation bond proceeds received by the Volunteer
Companies Loan Fund .............ccoiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnnnn, 9,835
add: general obligation bond proceeds and federal funds received by the
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority.................. 107,870
less: program grants disbursed by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority .. ..ot i e i e eeneeeens (3,260)
add: federal funds received by the Turnpike Commission ............... 6,083
add: other increase to the Storage Tank Loan Fund.................... 1
add: other increase to the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development
71 L 1,400
less: other decrease to the Hiram G. Andrews Center .................. (€))

Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary
government and discretely presented component units ... ..., ..., ... $138,226

—43—



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued) _

Employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method, with amortization
of the unfunded actuarial liability ($847 million credit) and of the supplemental annuities arising from cost
of living and other adjustments over varying periods ending June 30, 2013. These rates are computed on a
Commonwealth fiscal year basis such that employer contribution rates in effect for the SERS for 1993 reflect
a blended average of those in effect through June 30, 1993 and subsequent to that date, as calculated based
upon actuarial valuations prepared as of December 31, 1992 and December 31, 1993, respectively. The actuarially
determined contribution requirement for the year ended December 31, 1993 consisted of (amounts in thousands).

% of Current

Covered
Payroll Amount
Employer normal COSt. ....ovivvevrreraneeannrnns . 9.16 $324,835
Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability (assets) .. (1.07) (37,945)
Amortization of supplemental annuities............. 1.01 35,817
Total contribution requirement . ................. 9.10 $322,707

Member contributions amounted to $190 million, or 5.45 percent and employer contributions amounted to
$304 million, or 8.73 percent, of total actual covered payroll of $3,482 million, for the year ended December
31, 1993, Total employer contributions of $304 miltion are less than the above actuarially determined contribution
requirement of $323 million due to employer contributions related to employe purchases of prior service cost,
employer contributions related to the transfer of prior employe service from the Public School Employes’
Retirement System to the SERS, a return of certain employer contributions to a participating agency and actual
employer contribution rates which were less than those determined by the actuarial valuation. Total employer
contributions amounted to $324 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, of which $290 million relates
to agencies included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity. The Commonwealth employer
contributions of $290 million approximate 89 percent of total employer contributions of $324 million.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are the same as those used to compute
the pension benefit obligation as described above, except for a rate of return on investments on a scale starting
at 9.9 percent in 1993 graded down to 6 percent after 2015. '

THREE-YEAR HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31

1993 1992 1991
Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of the pension benefit obligation
applicable to covered employes............ 115.6% 111.7% 114.1%
Assets in excess of pension benefit obligation
as a percentage of the SERS’s annual
covered payroll . ............. . ihtn e 52.1 38.9 473
Employer contributions to the pension plan
as a percentage of anmual covered payroll .. . 8.6 9.5 12.2

All required contributions were made, in accordance with actuarially determined requirements, for each of
the three years ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1951.

Ten—year historical trend information is available in separate financial reports issued by the SERS. These
separately issued reports include information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due.
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NOTES TO FINAI_\ICIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)
The following information is presented in accordance with the reporting requirements of FASB Statement 35.

The calculation of actuarial liabilities under GASB Statement 5 (the pension benefit obligation presented above)
differs principally by the consideration of future salary increases from the calculation required under FASB
Statement 35 of the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits presented below.

The accumulated plan benefit information as of December 31, 1993 is as follows (expressed in thousands):
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits:

Vested benefits:
Participants currently receiving payments ....... $ 5,080,835
Other participantS . . oo vevr v vvetvrrnnrvnanrnes 5,364,864
10,445,699
Nonvested benefits. .. ...ovvrver i inrrensnnn. 185,728
| $10,631,427

Changes in accumulated plan benefits as of December 31, 1993 are as follows {expressed in thousands):
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits

at December 31, 1992 .......... ... ... ..., w
Changes during the year attributable to:
' Passage Of tIME . .....cccvviiiinravncnnnnnns 614,121
L Change in interest rate assumptions ............ (2,243,279)
| Net decrease ..vvverrrrivrrnrnsrnrevenenns (1,629,158)
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits
at December 31, 1993 ..., . ivivn i, $10,631,427

The significant actuarial assuraptions used in the valuation of the actuarial present value of accumulated plan
benefits as of December 31, 1993 are as follows:

Mortality
Superannuation (normal retirement) and :
early retirement ......ovovvriiiieinonanannn, The 1971 Group Annuity Moriality Table
Disability .....o0oiininniiiiriiiii e, Modifications of the Federal Civil
Service Disability Mortality Table
Assumed rate of return on invesiments ........... 7.75%

PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Public School Employes’ Retirement System (System)

was established July 18, 1917 under the provision of P.L. 1043, No. 343. The System is a cost-sharing multiple-

employer plan and its designated purpose is to provide retirement allowances and other benefits, including

‘ death, disability, and health care benefits, to members. As defined by GASB Statement 5, the Commonwealth
4 is a non-employer contributor to the System,

Membership in the System is mandatory for substantially all full-time public school employes in the
Commonwealth. Certain part-time employes are eligible for membership in the System. At June 30, 1994 there
were 634 reporting units, generally school districts, Membership as of June 30, 1993, the most recent year
for which actual amounts are available, consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving

|17 111 113,000
Inactive members and vestees entitled to, but

not yet receiving benefHs .. ... oieniieennnn. 33,000
146,000

Current employes: ,
Vested «veniiinn i e reraeeeaeea 117,000
- Noavested . ..ovvvvinrininernrirnrnnenannns 81,000
198,000
Total Members . ..oveei ittt ernnenran 344,000




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

‘During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the covered payroll for public school employes was $6,856
million. Total payroll for public school employes was substantially the same. The annualized covered payroll
at June 30, 1993, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, was $6,766 million.

Benefits: Significant amendments to the System were made in the 1975 revision of the Pennsylvania Public
School Employes’ Retirement Code {‘“The Code’’) by the Pennsylvania General Assembly. Under the
provisions of the Code, members are eligible for monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with
at Teast one full year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or (¢) 35 or more years of
service regardless of age. On April 29, 1994 Act 29 was signed into law which, among other items, permitted
school employes with at least 30 years of credited service to retire without a reduction in benefits until
June 30, 1997. This so-called “‘carly retirement window’* does not require a minjmum age in conjunction
with length of service for a member to be eligible for full benefits.

On December 21, 1992, an early retirement incentive act, commonly known as the ‘‘Mellow Bill’* (Act
186 of 1992), provided an additional 10 percent of service credit to a member who meets the following
criteria; (1) is at least 55 years of age or older as of August 31, 1993, (2) has at least 10 years of credited
service with the System, (3) was not an annuitant as of July 1, 1992, (4) terminates service between July
1, 1992 and August 31, 1993, inclusive, (5) declares intent to retire with their school employer prior to
April 1, 1993, and (6) files an application for retirement prior to September 1, 1993, In addition, Act 29
allowed members who terminated service between May 15, 1992 and July 1, 1992 to be eligible for the
10 percent additional service offered by the Mellow Bill. Through June 30, 1994 the impact of the Mellow
Bill resulted in approximately 13,000 members electing early retirement. As of June 30, 1993 the System
recorded a benefit accrual of approximately $200 million for the refund of contributions and interest of
annuitants who elected to retire under the Mellow Bill,

Benefits are generally equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary (as defined) multiplied by
the number of years of credited service. After completion of 10 years of service, a member’s right to the
defined benefit is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. Under certain features of the System,
active members may purchase credit for types of prior educational or m;htary service on a lump-sum or
installment purchase basis,

In addition to regular retirement benefits, the System also provides for disability retirement benefits and
death benefits. Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of 5 years of eligible
service. Such benefits are equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary (as defined) multiplied
by the number of years of credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary (unless the participant
would have less than 16.667 vears of credited service had the participant worked until superannuation age,
in which case the participant receives two percent of final average salary times the number of years service
that would have been credited had the participant worked until superannuation age), nor greater than the
* benefit the member would have had at superannuation retirement age.

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 or who has at least
10 years of eligible service. Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit which would have been
effective if the member had retired on the day before death.

Members with credited service in the State Employes’ Retirement System may elect to transfer such service
to the Public School Employes® Retirment System upon commencement of employment in the public school
system. Similarly, a member with credited service in the System may transfer such service to the State
Employes’ Retirement System upon becoming a member of that system.

Upon termination of a member’s employment in the public school sector, the member’s accumulated
contributions plus interest are refundable from the Members® Savings Account.
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NOTES TO FINANC_IAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

A health insurance premium assistance program was established effective July 1, 1991 for all eligible an-
nuitants, as defined in the Code, who clect to participate. Under this provision, an employer contribution
rate for premium assistance was established for the fiscal year that began July 1, 1991 in order to provide
reserves in the Health Insurance Account as of June 30, 1992. Effective July 1, 1992, participating eligible
annuitants received premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $55 per month, or the actual mon-
thly premium, '

Funding Status and Progress: The amount shown as ““pension benefit obligation® is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated
to be payable in the future as a result of employe service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value
of credited projected benefits and is intended to help users assess the System’s funding status on a going-
concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make
comparisons among public employe retirement systems. The measure is independent of the actuarial
funding method used to determine contributions to the System.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 1993, the date
of the most recent actuarial report. Significant actuarial assumptions used include (a) a rate of return on
the investment of present and future assets of 8.50 percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected
salary increases of 6.75 percent, including an allowance for inflation of 4 percent, national productivity
of 1 percent and merit or seniority increases averaging 1.75 percent, and () no postretirement benefit

. increases.

At June 30, 1993 the unfunded pension benefit obligation was $2‘,145 million as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Pension benefit obligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
and terminated members entitled to bensfits but not

yet receiving benefits ....... ... ... i i, $ 8,787,295
Health care payments R PR . 45,529
Current members:

Accumulated member contributions with interest. ... 3,920,923
System-financed vested. ... . hviit i iii e, 3,566,155
System-financed nonvested. . .................... 7,544,207
Total pension benefit obligation................ 23,864,109

Net assets available for benefits, at cost (market value is
$24,390,204) ... i 21,719,065
Unfunded pension benefit obligation ............ $ 2,145,044

Ten-year historical trend information is available in separate financial reports issued by the System, These
separately issued reports include information about progress made in accumudating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due.
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- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Contributions: The contribution policy is set by the Code and requires contributions by active members,
employers and the Commonwealth. The rate of contribution for most active members is set by statute at
. 5.25 percent of the member’s compensation. For members joining the system on or after July 22, 1983
the rate of contribution is 6.25 percent. The contributions required of employers and the Commonwealth
are based upon an actuarial valuation, using the “‘entry age normal” method, computed as a percentage
of the total compensation of all active members during the period for which the amount is determined.

Effective July 1, 1993 the combined contribution rate was decreased from 14.24 to 13.17 percent of covered
payroll, This rate is comprised of a pension contribution rate of 12.92 percent for pension benefits pius
a health care contribution rate of .25 percent for health insurance premium assistance. The components
of this contribution rate, and the related amounts, are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

% of Current
Covered
Payroll Amount

Employer normal COSt....uveevneeninenrannnnnnnn 7.34 $ 516,579
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability . . 3.74 263,216
Amortization of supplemental annuities............. 1.84 129,497
Health care contribution vate ..........co0vvvvnn.. 25 17,527

Total contribution requirement ...........c.v0v... 13.17 $ 926,819

The employer and the Commonwealth equally share the cost of required contributions and all required
contributions were made. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 Commonwealth school districts contributed
$465 million and the Commonwezalth contributed $462 million to the System. The Commonwealth conttibution
approximates 6.6 percent of current covered payroll. Employe contributions of $404 million approximate
6.0 percent of covered payroll of $6,766 million for the year ended June 30, 1993, the most recent year
- for which actual amounts are available.

Based on the June 30, 1993 valuation, the unfunded actuarial liability is $3,303 million and the average
funding period to amortize this liability is 20 years at July 1, 1991. Changes in the unfunded liability subsequent
to July 1, 1991 are amortized over a period of 20 years from July 1 of the fiscal year following the change
with payments increasing 5 percent annually.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the System owned no securities issued by school districts, the

Commonwealth or any related parties and made no loans to school districts, the Commonwealth or any
related party.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Pestemployment Benefits (continued)

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth provides certain health care benefits for retired employes that meet specified length-

of-service and age requirements. These benefits are provided as a result of negotiated union contracts and

through administrative policy, The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as paid,

which totalled $125 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, Approximately 51,000 individuals
qualified for this benefit during the fiscal year.

The Commonwealth also provides a variety of other postemployment benefits, including disability life in-

surance and certain benefits to beneficiaries of the state police officers killed in the line of duty. The amount
expended on these benefits was not material during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—NOTES AND DEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth issued $400 million of tax anticipation notes
which matured on June 30, 1994, The $9 million of interest related to the notes is shown as a debt service
expenditure in the General Fund. ‘

The State Stores Fund, an Enterprise Fund, has $713 thousand of notes payable as of June 30, 1994 collateralized
by investments held with the Treasury. The notes bear interest rates of 5.38 to 6.66 percent. The Purchasing
Fund, an Internal Service Fund, has $4 million of notes payable at June 30, 1994, bearing interest at 6.6 percent.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA), a Governmental Fund Component Unit, entered into
the Treasury Initiative for Education (TIE) Program with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department (Treasury).
The SPSBA issued a $75 million note which was purchased by the Treasury. The proceeds of this note were
deposited by the SPSBA with the Treasury, which will invest the proceeds in a manner acceptable to both
parties. The note has an initial term of two years which is renewable on an annual basis for a term not to
exceed three years. Interest is payable at a percentage rate which wiil be the lesser of the rate of interest payable
from 90 day Treasury Bills plus 20 basis points or the rate used by the Treasury Short Term Investment Pool.
The note is collateralized by investments the SPSBA has made with the Treasury. The SPSBA agrees to make
$25 million available for loans to school districts and $50 million available for reinvestment by the Treasury
~ at the time loans are made to the school districts, At June 30, 1994 one loan had been made through the TIE
Program for $11,7 million. The outstanding balance of the note payable at this time was $67 million.

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a Proprietary Fund Component Unit, has
$310.0 million of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $399.6 million of notes payable consisting of student
loan financing of $372.3 million and capital financing arrangements of $27.3 million at June 30, 1994. Demand
revenue bonds at June 30, 1994 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Student Loan Student Loan
Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate
Tender Revenue  Tender Revenue Student Loan
Bonds Bonds Revenue Bonds
1988 Series B 1988 Series A 1984 Series A
Amount issued .. ..uieiiiiirieiiannaas $110,000 $160,000 $100,000
Date of 18808 . 000 e vvvncivenanannensnns 7/29/88 1/28/88 7/19/84
Irerest TAl® . v vvarr e caisiatasanas 2.35% 2.6% 2.45%
Duedate .. ... iiiinivanarananin 71718 1/1/18 12/1/00
Letter of ¢redit:
" Principal amount . .. ... eeiiiiiaian. $119,625 $106,904 $103,082
Expirationdate ............c.c00ven 7/31/95 1/1/95 12/15/00

Thé 1988 bonds bear interest at an adjustable rate determined by PHEAA’s remarketing agent based upon
prevailing market conditions and is reset weekly. The 1984 bonds bear interest at a fluctuating rate based on

the remarketing rate of the J.J. Kenny Index and is also reset weekly. All bonds are subject to purchase, at

par plus accrued interest, by PHEAA on the demand of the bondholders upon seven days prior irrevocable
written notice. None of the letters of credit pertaining to PHEAA’s demand revenue bonds have been used
as of June 30, 1994,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

I Student loan financing notes payable for PHEAA at June 30, 1994 consist of the following (expressed in
Lo thousands):

e Line of credit agreement dated November 5, 1992 with interest at 7.25
: percent (paid quarterly) and annual principal payments. Principal not _
toexceed $16 million ... ...coniiiiiiiiiiiii it $ 9,500

Amount due under revolving credit agreement dated June 12, 1993,
through June 15, 1995. Interest rate at June 30, 1994 was 5.475 per-
cent. Principal not to exceed $50 million ............coveeenaaa... 45,200

Note payable, interest at 91 day U.S. Treasury Bill rate plus .9 percent
(5.205 percent at Junc 30, 1994), due February 28, 1997 ........... 70,000

Note purchase agreement dated May 1, 1990, amended subsequent to
May 1, 1992, and extended through October 31, 1995, It provides for
three separate notes known as the 1991 F, G, and H Series. Principal
not to exceed $300 million in the aggregate. Interest is the 91 day
Treasury Bill rate plus .5 percent (4.805 percent at June 30, 1994) ... 247,615

R+ $ 372,315

Capital financing arrangements for PHEAA at June 30, 1994 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Daunphin County General Authority Revenue Bonds. Interest is a weighted
average rate of 6.8 percent and is paid semiannually on March 1 and
September 1. Principal is due through 2009 . .........ccvvenin.... $ 3,699

Note payable refinanced in October 1992 with interest at 5.54 percent
and monthly payments of principal and interest through November 1,
L 10,288

Note payable dated December 31, 1992 with interest at 6.7 percent and
semiannual payments of principal and interest through December 31,

L 7 2,888
Loan security agreement dated April 12, 1994 with interest at 7.25 per-
cent (paid quarterly) and anmual principal payments ................ 1,534
Amounts due under various installment purchase agreements bearing in-
terest at various rates that average approximately 6.5 percent ........ 8,831
0 $ 27,240

All of PHEAA's capital financing arrangements are collateralized with property, plant and equipment. The
aggregate maturities due for each of the five years subsequent to June 30, 1994 and through maturity are as

follows:

1995, . .. i $ 8,534

1996, .. ... iviieiniinnnn 7,318

| 121 i 5,104

1998, .. it 2,312

; 1999, ... veieieeenns 692
Thereafter .........c0vnn. 3,280

Total ......covvvunnnn. $27,240




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a Proprietary Fund Component Unit, maintains three
lines of credit with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department under which they may borrow up to $20 million,
$15 million, and $50 million to fund their multi-family housing program. Under the $20 million line of
credit, interest rates are fixed at 2 points below the prime rate from the date of issuance. At June 30, 1994
there is no balance outstanding against the $20 million line of credit. The $15 million ling of credit bears
interest from the date of issuance at a rate equal to the current yield on two year Treasury Notes plus 20
basis points, The $50 million line of credit bears interest at a fixed rate on the date of a draw equal to
the current vield on two year Treasury Notes plus 15 basis points. At June 30, 1994 $3 million and $20
million were owed at 4.47 percent and a range of 4.24 percent to 6,13 percent, respectively, against the
$15 million and $50 million lines of credit. Total reported notes payable at June 30, 1994 for the PHFA
is $23 million,

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System owes $2.3 million under installment purchase arrangem‘ents
at June 30, 1994,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth's primary government at June 30, 1994 and changes for the fiscal year then ended

are as follows (expressed in thousands): Maturky  Bonds

Issue Tnterest Dates Authorized Balance Balance
Dades Rates Through  But Unissued July 1, 1993 Additions Reductions June 30, 1994
GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP
General Obligation Bonds Payable From
Tax Revenues: ‘
Capital Facilities.................... 1968-94 3.00-10.16% 2014 $14,769,265 $3,428,000 $ 308,000 $ 834,635 $2,901,365
Disaster Relief ..........c.cvvvnntn. 1973-89 4.91- 548% 2003 21,908 70,320 Ce 19,160 51,160
Land and Water Development......... 1969-94 3.00- 6.60% 2014 300 194,305 4,000 71,420 126,885
- Nursing Home Loan Development .. ... 1975-86 5.00- 8.26% 2006 31,000 22,520 N 4,775 17,745
; Project 70 Land Acquisition .......... 1970 6.26% 2000 v e 4,440 e 510 3,930
! Volunteer Companies Loan ........... 1977-94 3.00-10.75% 2014 10,000 15,630 10,000 1,695 23,935
' Vietnam Conflict Veterans _
Compensation .......ovvevienanenn 1969-74 5.36- 6.11% 2003 . 3,000 24,485 e 10,105 14,380
‘Water Facilities Loan.......occveen.. 1983-94 3.00- 8.26% 2014 37,500 133,710 40,000 29,180 144,530
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization .. 1984-93 4.00- 6.60% 2013 16,000 99,780 5,000 10,610 94,170
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority .............. 1988-94 3.00- 6.60% 2014 367,500 206,190 85,000 53,205 237,985
Agricultural Conservation Easement
Purchase...........c.vvvnivrnnennn 1991-93 3.50- 6.60% 2013 27,000 47,245 25,000 2,875 69,370
Local Criminal Justice ............... 199294 3.00- 6.38% 2014 82,000 71,000 47,000 2,090 115,910
Keystone Recreation, Park and
Conservation ........coveeennnnnas e e e e e e 50,000
Refunding Bonds.......ccovvevnnnnnn. 1985-94 3.06- 7.20% 2010 PR 723,313 681,761 106,427 1,298,647
15,415,473 5,040,938 1,205,761 1,146,687 5,100,012
Other General Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Tax Revenues;
Installment Purchase Obligations....... e e e e e e 30,333 803 25,010 6,126
Capital Lease Obligations ............ e e e e e 62,381 1,138 1,799 61,720
Obligations Under Master Lease ‘
Agreement—Equipment ............ e e e e e e e e 130,360 34,940 95,420
Obligations Under Master Lease ’ )
Agreement—Prison Facilities ........ e e e e e e e e . 762,495 .. 762,495
Self-Insurance — Note O............. P e e 757,490 175,942 106,750 826,682
Compensated Absenses—Note C....... e e e e 390,163 321,649 236,460 475,352
Catastrophic Motor Vehicle Losses .... ....  ....... 282,656 e e 18,377 264,279
; L0 1 e e e 806,579 315,856 253,391 869,044
; 2,459,962 1,577,883 676,727 3,361,118
: TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNTGROUP. ....  ....... ... 315415473 §$7,500,900 §$2,783,644 $1,823,414 $8,461,130

Long-term obligations of the discretely presented componeni unit organizations at June 30, 1994 (May 31, 1994 for the

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (expressed in thousands):

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Bonds Payable From Lease Rentals:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority ................ 1969-94 2.75- 9.75% 2031
State Public School Building Autherity . 198694 2.60- 7.90% 2024

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS... . ... .......

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Revenue Bonds Payable From User
Charges:
Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency ..........c.0.es 1985-92 2.677-11.80% 2026
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency . 1976-94 2.88-10.875% 2028
Pennsylvania Industrial Development
Authority .......oviviiiiiiiiiias 1994 4.50- 7.00 % 2014
' Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission .... 193694 2.50- 7.875% 2019
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority .....coviviiiinanenennn. 1990-93 2.20- 7.05 % 2013

Less: Bond discounts ................
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS. .. .., e e

TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ...... e e

$1,783,609 § 346,421 $ 196,578 $1,933,452
304,133 36,670 59,910 280,893
$2,087,742 § 383,091 §$ 256,488 $2,214,345
$ 848,785 § .... $ .... §$ 848785
2,079,493 536,070 666,610 1,948,953
267,770 354,330 267,770 354,330
1,162,045 115,635 9,405 1,268,275
142,010 50,000 625 191,385
4,500,108 1,056,035 944,410 4,611,728
77,397 10,015 19,182 68,230
$4,422,706 $1,046,020 §$ 925228  $4,543 498
$6,510,448  $1,429,111 $1,181,716  $6,757,843




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Primary Government

‘The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general
obligation bonds accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of the majority of its bond
issues, Additional cash with fiscal agents is held by the Federal Government for unemployment compensatios
claims. :

Included in *“Other’* for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from tax revenues are the following.
(expressed in thousands):

Workmen's Compensation Security Trust Claims $571,131
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) 150,807
Litigation — Note P 64,307
Medical Assistance Cost Settlements 56,290
Appropriation for Statc Workmen's Insurance Fund 24,104
Arbitrage Rebate Tax 2,405

$869,044

The Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the
- Workmen's Compensation Law to individuals whose employments are insured by insolvent insurance carriers.

The PURTA provides for a tax on utility realty property which is available for appropriation as a general

revenue source. The Act also provides for payment of a tax distribution to local taxing authorities. The
_ Commonwealth is liable for underpayments of medical assistance to nursing homes and inpatient hospitals
based upon audits performed on the medical assistance program. The fiscal year 1994-95 General Fund
budget includes an appropriation to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF) to recover a loss provision
for notes receivable reported during SWIF’s fiscal year ended December 31, 1992. As disclosed in Note
T, the amount was transferred on November 1, 1594, The SWIF has reported the loss recovery during
its fiscal year ended December 31, 1993, Amounts included in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group at June 30, 1994 relating to Workmen’s Compensation Claims, PURTA, Litigation, Medical
Assistance, Appropriation for SWIF, and Arbitrage Rebate Tax are not payable with currently expendable
available financial resources.

In 1991, the Commonwealth entered into lease arrangements with five local government authoritics for
the rental of five new prisons. Each authority issued bonds to finance the construction of the prisons. Each
lease provided for the Commonwealth to pay periodic rentals equal to debt service payments on each
authority’s debt obligation. On July 1, 1993 a finance corporation issued certificates of participation to refund
the authority debt obligations, to consolidate the financing of the prisons and to provide additional construction
funding. As a result of the consolidated financing, the Commonwealth makes lease payments equal to the
finance corporation’s debt service payments., Both the original and the new leases provide that the
Commonwealth’s obligation to make lease payments is subject to Commonwealth appropriations made to
provide for these obligations. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth began using
the new prison facilitics.. The finance corporation holds nominal title to the facilities as security for the
Commonwealth Iease payments. When the certificates are fully redeemed, at which time the lease agreement
expires, legal title vests with the Commonwealth. At June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth has reported $762
million as a liability under prison master lease arrangements and has reported general fixed assets for the
new prison facilities.

The Commonweglth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital

projects without electorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $28.8 billion as of
August 31, 1994, with net debt outstanding of $3.9 billion.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K —Long-Term Obligations (continued)
Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), the Penn-
sylvania Industrial Development Authority, and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), Discretely Presented Proprietary
Fund Component Units, have pledged all of their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds outstanding. Revenue bonds outstanding
as reported in this note disclosure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 (May 31, 1994 for the PTC) include bond discounts
of $68.2 million.

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority, Discretely Presented
Government Fund Component Units, have bonds outstanding as of June 30, 1994 which are payable from the lease rentals of the
projects financed. The lease rentals are pledged as collateral for the bonds outstanding.

Nonrecourse Debt

The Commonwezlth of Penngylvania by enactment of the General Assembly created the Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority
(PEDA) to finance projects related to energy conservation and research. Fees are assessed to recover related processing and ap-
plication costs incurred. The bonds issued by the Authority represent limited obligations payable solely from payments made by
the borrowing entitics. The majority of the bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership
of acquired property transfers from the trustees to the entity served by the bond issuance. The PEDA has $163.7 million in revenue
bonds outstanding at June 30, 1994, The Commonwealth has no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, neither the financed assets
nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary government
and discretely presented component units at June 30, 1994 (May 31, 1994 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (expressed
in thousands);

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
2000
Through
1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 Maturity Total
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS: : '
Capital Facilities . ... vvinravinannens $ 549,474 § 436,962 § 376,363 § 349,445 § 314,687  $2,027,754  $4,054,685
Disaster Relief ...........coocvniiiiins 3,834 7,185 7,001 6,980 6,961 27,426 64,387
Land and Water Development............ 27,708 25,011 19,162 16,541 14,791 54,392 157,605
Nursing Home Loan Development ........ 6,044 3,566 3,514 2,175 2,114 3,941 21,354
Project 70 Land Acquisition ............. 5 779 780 778 783 785 4,680
Volunteer Companies Loan .......c..0uns 3,468 3,402 3,329 2,356 2,267 20,702 35,524
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
Compensalion «...vvvsvrarrennnrarans 2,564 2,575 2,578 2,581 2,591 4,539 17,428
Water Facilities Loan..........o00vvven, 19,789 16,9396 16,101 13,301 12,443 150,181 228,811
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization ... .. 13,062 10,160 9,222 9,061 8,899 100,053 150,457
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority ..............c... 23,276 23,105 23,004 22,565 22,259 265,993 380,202
Agricultural Conservation Easement
Purchase.......coviviinvniinninnnnns 6,387 6,335 6,286 6,225 6,171 79,591 110,995
" Local Criminal Justice .................. 9,636 9,651 9,653 9,659 9,669 138,904 187,172
Refunding Bonds. . ....vvviviiavnianansn 123,760 135,874 152,168 156,685 154,168 1,116,180 1,838,835
Total Principal and Interest ............ 794,771 681,601 629,161 598,352 557,803 3,990,441 7,252,135
Less; Interest Payments ............. 278,072 246,581 222,646 199,757 177,017 1,028,050 2,152,123
516,705 435,020 406,515 398,595 380,786 2,962,391 5,100,012
Other General Long-Term Obligations. ...... 373,730 173,648 165,683 157,399 148,159 2,342,499 3,361,118
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP.... $ 890,435 § 608,668 § 572,198 § 555,994 § 528,945  $5304,800 38,461,130
DISCRETELY PRESENTED
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS: COMPONENT UNITS
Other Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority ................... $ 143,165 § 144615 § 168,362 § 149,863 $ 197,722 . $2,518,221 $3,321,948
State Public Schoot Building Authority .... 31,761 30,576 31,179 29,667 29,125 293,187 445,495
Total Principal and Interest ............ 174,926 175,191 195,541 179,530 226,847 2,811,408 3,767,443
Less: Interest Payments ............. 112,115 109,336 105,712 . 102,567 98,050 1,025,318 1,553,098
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS...... $ 623811 $ 65,855 $ 93,829 § 76,963 $ 128,797  $1,786,090  $2,214,345
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K ~-Long-Term Obligations (continued)

2000
Through
PROPRIETARY FUNDS: 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 Maturity Total
Revenue Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Education
. Assistance Agency .........iviiiianns $ 53,885 $ 53,885 $ 53,885 $ 53,885 $ 53,885 $1,634,750  $1,904,175
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency .... 183,439 163,833 163,828 163,641 163,905 3,268,477 4,107,123
Pennsylvania Industrial Development
AWMBOLIEY ©vverinire e 18,672 30,545 32,257 33,723 34,276 437,889 587,362
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission . ... ... 81,912 94,319 93,551 97,500 97,849 1,947,978 2,413,100
Pernsylvania Infrastructure Investment o :
CAuthority ... 15,342 15,613 15,593 15,324 16,120 202,915 280,907
Total Principal and Interest ............ 353,250 358,195 359,114 364,073 366,035 7,492,009 9,292,676
Less: Interest Payments ............. 275,419 283,202 278,340 273,649 268,912 3,301,426 4,680,948
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS......... 77,831 74,993 80,774 90,424 97,123 4,190,583 4,611,728
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS........... $ 140,642 $ 140,848 § 174,603 $ 167,387 § 225920  $5,976,673 $6,826,073

The Commonwealth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements are in substance
purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. The following is a schedule by fiscal year of future minimum
lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 1994
{expressed in thousands): '

Primary Government - Discretely Presented Component Units

Pennsylvania
General Higher Education
Long-Term Assistance Lollege and
Obligations Agency University Funds
Fiscal year ending June 30:
1005 st 8 7,708 $ 5,508 $ 22,253
L 7,258 5,443 19,435
L 7,015 5,369 18,571
L 6,871 5,583 17,618
L 6,768 - 5,415 16,590
LALSE YEATS + o v vt v s vnenrnsasrntasntotonssnesossansssans _ 107,168 73,344 262,401
Total minimum lease payments ,........ ... ... ....... 142,788 100,662 356,868
Less; amount representing estimated executory costs :
included in total minimum lease payments . .........,. 17,823 e e
Net minimum lease payments . .. .. ......ooeiennnnnaanan-n 124,965 100,662 356,868
Less; amount representing interest ...........ocoouuun.. 63,245 43,825 7 148,113
TOTAL CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS ............... 3 61,720 $ 56,837 $ 208,755
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS............. 3 6,126

At June 30, 1994 the State Public School Building Authority, a discretely presented governmental fund component unit, owed
$161 thousand under capital lease obligations.

At June 30, 1994 general fixed assets included $96.4 million of buildings and $3.4 million of equipment being procured by capital
leases. A total of $30.6 million in general fixed assets is being procured by vendor-financed installment purchase arrangements.

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 1994 for the College and University Funds relate to various capital projects

currently under construction for which a related public financing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued by the public
- financing authority to provide funding for these capital projects. College and University Funds fixed assets include $41.1 million
~ of construction in progress related to capital leases at June 30, 1994,

The Commonwealth has entered into two lease arrangements with a trustee for the refinancing of previously existing leases and
installment purchase arrangements and for the leasing of new equipment, These arrangements provide that the trustee issue cer-
tificates of participation, the proceeds of which allow for immediate payment to Commonwealth equipment vendors. This is not
a general or moral obligation of the Commonwealth; under the arrangement, Commonwealth agencies are responsible for securing
appropriations to make lease payments to the trustee, over a specified term, sufficient to fund periodic principal and interest payments
to the certificate holders. While Commonwealth agencies maintain custody and use of the leased equipment, the trustee holds legal
- title to the equipment as security for the agency payments. When the certificates are fully funded, legal titlc vests with the
Commonwealth agency. At June 30, 1994, $95.4 million in general fixed assets is being procured under these master lease
arrangements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—REFUNDED DEBT

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth issued $395.2 million and $286.6 million
in general obligation bonds, First Series of 1994 and Second Series of 1994, respectively, with average
interest rates of 5.21 percent and 5.07 percent. The refunding portion of the First Series of 1994 was issued
to advance refund $352.2 million of previously issued general obligation bonds with an average interest
rate of 6.84 percent. The refunding portion of the Second Series of 1994 was issued to advance refund
$58.4 million and current refund $214.8 million of previously issued general obligation bonds with an average
interest rate of 6.56 percent. The net refunding bond proceeds of $390.4 million and $284.4 million,
respectively, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, were used to purchase
U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service
payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the bonids refunded by the First and Second Series” of 1994
are considered to be defeased and have been removed from the General Long-Term Cbligations Account
Group. The Commonwealth advance refunded its previously issued bonds to reduce debt service payable
on its general obligation bonds by $9.3 million and $4.5 million, respectively, and to obtain economic gains
of $12.7 million and $11.5 million,

At June 30, 1994 $1.1 billion of general obligation bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and the
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), discretely presented governmental fund
component units, issued revenue bonds to advance refund $134.6 million of previously issued revenue bonds
as follows (expressed in thousands):

* — Current refunding.
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PeunSAVE Program University Revenue Bonds
Scheol Revenue and Revenue Bonds 1993 Series A
Revenue Bonds Refunding Bonds 1993 Series A Thomas Jefferson
Category Series K 1993 Series A 1993 Widener University University
Issuing Authority ........ SPSBA PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type ............. Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued ............ 7-28-93 8-18-93 10-4-93 16-21-93
Refunding Bonds Principal $2,500 $21,531 $16,440 $35,955
Interest Rate (Refunding) . 4.74% 5.655% 5.51% 5.155%
Refunded Series......... School Lease University Revenue Revenue Revenue Bonds .
Revenue Bonds Refunding Bonds Bonds 1990 Series
Series A 1991 Series D 1991 1988 Series D Revenue Bonds
1989 Series
Refunded Bonds Principal $1,375 $5,615° $8,745 $17,590/$11,090
Interest Rate (Refunded) .. 6.91% 6.92% 7.62% . 1.54%/7.23%
Payment to Escrow Agent $1,513 $5,792 $9,852 $35,311
" Debt Service Savings .. .. $94 $404 $606 $1,936
EBconomic Gain ......... $64 $324 $372 $2,048



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—Refunded Debt (continued)

Philadelphia Philadelphia
College of Textiles College of
and Science Osteopathic _
College Medicine LaSalle University State System of
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Higher Education
Category Series of 1993 Series of 1993 Series of 1994 Series K 1994
Issuing Authozity........ PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type ....cocvennnn Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
“Date Issued ............ 11-10-93 12-30-93 3-3-94 3-16-94
Refunding Bonds Principal $12,560 $28,075 $13,845 $55.430
Interest Rate (Refunding) . 5.192% 5.44% 4.73% 5.422%
Refunded Series......... Philadelphia Osteopathic LaSalle State System
College of Textiles Medical Center of University of Higher
and Science Philadelphia Revenue Bonds Education
College Variable Rate Series of 1986 Series E 1991
Revenue Bonds Demand Revenue
Series of 1987 Bonds
Series A 1988
Refunded Bonds Principal $10,910 $19,800" $9,297 $50,165
Interest Rate (Refunded) .. 7.12% various 7.57% 6.856%
Payment to Escrow Agent $12,110 $19,906 $12,849 $54,336
Debt Service Savings .. .. $318 $0 $1,077 $1,846
Economic Gain ......... $447 30 $897 $1,851

— Current refunding.

The net refunding bond proceeds, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs,
were used to purchase U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide
for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered
to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Debt Ac-
count Group.

The PHEFA and the SPSBA reported advance refundings in their component unit financial statements for
the Hermitage School District, the Reading School Authority, the Hospitals and Higher Bducation Facilities
Authority of Philadelphia, and the Northeastern Pennsylvania Hospital and Education Authority, which are
not reported in the preceeding table. The liability for the refunded debt was removed from their General
Long-Term Debt Account Group; however, since neither the PHEFA nor the SPSBA issued any new debt,
these were not advance refunding transactions of the PHEFA or the SPSBA. Furthermore, there were no
debt service savings nor any economic gain or loss to the PHEFA or the SPSBA.

The PHEFA did refund, using refunding bond proceeds, its Osteopathic Medical Center of Philadelphia,
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1988, and removed the liability for the refunded debt
from its General Long-Term Debt Account Group. This refunding, disclosed in PHEFA’s component unit
financial statements, indicates there were no debt service savings nor economic gain or loss. Therefore,
this information is disclosed using zeros in the preceeding table.,

At June 30, 1994 $686.6 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in their General
Long-Term Debt Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings, for the PHEFA and
the SPSBA. Included are $518 million for the PHEFA and $168.6 million for the SPSBA.

On May 4, 1994 the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA), a Discretely Presented Pro-
prietary Fund Component Unit, issued $354.3 million in Series 1994 Economic Development Revenue Bonds
with an average interest rate of 5.7 percent to advance refund $244.7 million of outstanding 1991 Series
bonds with an average interest rate of 6.3 percent and to provide funds for the return of contributed capital
10 the Commonwealth. Of the net proceeds of $357.3 million, $259.6 million (after payment of $7.3 million
in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) was used to purchase U.S. government securities.
Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all fature debt
service payments on the 1991 Series bonds. As a result, the 1991 Series bonds are considered to be defeased
and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the PIDA’s financial statements. The advance refun-
ding resulted in the recognition of an accounting loss of $12.7 million. Neither the debt service savings
nor the economic gain were material.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE M—RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY AND GAAP BASIS AMOUNTS

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for the General and three Special Revenne Funds (Motor
License, State Lottery and Workmen’s Compensation Administration). The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary
Basis)-—presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary
basis, which differs from GAAP primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals.

The beginning unreserved/undesignated fund balance for the General Fund has been restated to account
for an amendment made 1o the annual budget subsequent to the fiscal ycar ended June 30, 1993, The
restatement is summarized as follows (expressed in thousands):

General
Fund
Unreserved/undesignated Fund Bslance, Budgetary Basis, June 30,

1993, as previously reported . ... .. ... ... ..., [ $ 218,033
Adjusted for increased spending authority ........oviiiiinennnas (3,118)
Unreserved/Undesignated Pund Balance, Budgetary Basis, July 1,

1993, asrestated .. ...ttt it e raaanas $ 214,915

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting (expressed
in thousands);

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds
BUDGETED FUNDS:
Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over expenditures .. ... $ 87,260 $ 217,780
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenite. . ... . v i it ens (268,778) 1,202,600
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related accounts
payable and accrued Habilities ........ ... ciiiiiiiinaans. (1,350,950) (1,421,312
To adjust encUMbBIances . .. ...ovveneraienn i ranarnsnannnnnns 1,711,823 278,461
Net adjustments . ..o vt s ieie vt ienieieeaieransesrarananes 92,095 59,749
NONBUDGETED FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources over expenditures and other
USES 4 v te v s st st obsansssmsnnneesnianeionnesssssssasns e 90,431
TOTAL ALL FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources over expenditures and other
USEE « e e ey ey earannnrarsrananaseserarnrarntanarasrnrernnns § 179,355 $ 177,960
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NOTES TO FiNANCIAL STAT EMENTS

NOTE N —SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Commenwealth’s Primary Government has seven major Enterprise Funds which provide for a variety of lean programs to business and government
organizations, workmen’s compensation insurance services, liquor sales and capital development lozns. Component Unit Proprietary Funds comprise five
organizations which provide for a Hmited access highway system, industrial development loans, low-cost housing, student loans and scholarships and
local government capital development loans.

Qperating Levenes ... voeeneeieeeec e eeiae

Depreciation ... e ses s

Operating income (loss) ..

Operating transfers out

Net income (loss)

Increases in contributed capital ...............

Decreases in contributed capital ,.............
Acquisition and construction of
capital A85ELS ..o

Net increase (decrease) in cash ..

Total ASSELS ...cocosvrrirensrirernneas
Bonds and other long-term liabilities
payable from operating revenues .........

Total fand eqUILY ...ovveemmemrsmesereaesseeenessees

Operating CEVenUES .........coovreersrntreasasrasans
Depreciation ...,

Operating income (058) .oceovvvrrvieecene,

Operating transfers from primary
government ...

Extraordinary loss on early
extinguishment of debt ...

Net income (loss)

Increases in contributed capital

Decreases in contributed capital _..............
Acquisition and construction of

capital ASSES ....cvvrmsenr et
Net increase (decrease) in cash ................
TOtal ASSELS ...vevmicniicimms st e
Bonds and other long-term [iabitities

payable from operating revenues .........
Total fund equity .....occoveenieverimem s

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Enterprise Funds
State
Workmen's State Minority Machinery
Tnsurance Stores Volunteer Business and Other Total
Sunny Capital Fund Fund Company Development Equipment  Enterprise Enterprise
Day Loan (Dec, 31,1993)  (June 28, 1994) Loan Loan Loan Funds Funds
§ 10506 § 2,530 $ 530,786 $ 678445 $ 1,318 $ 470 b3 956 § 17,229 $1,242,240
1,108 5,172 629 6,909
(3,778) 2,414 108,952 53,250 947 (3,531) (1,218) 1,559 158,595
48,105 .. 48,105
(3,778) 2,414 108,952 7,149 947 (3,531) (1,218) 2,144 113,679
980 9,835 1,400 7,800 1,501 21,516
7 -7
1,196 1,546 T00 3,442
(35) (117 ) {779) (215} (36 ) 13 27 (5) (1,147)
116,682 59,181 1,425,495 183,729 68,566 15,108 30,878 37,004 1,936,643
1,198,244 713 1,198,957
116,586 59,179 117,700 25,030 68,530 14,223 30,870 31,876 463,994
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
Proprietary Funds
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Huousing Edacation Infrastructure Total
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment Proprietary
(May 31, 1994) Authority Agency Agency Authority Funds
$ 290,509 $ 29,802 $ 194,025 $ 394241 & 15,994 $ 924571
134,851 veen 309 1,773 31 142,964
12,743 6,723 17,629 (219,850) 1,717 {181,038 )
19,500 234628 0 ... 254,128
e 12,728 23,134 vaen e 35,862
21,452 {6,005 ) 13,995 19,109 1,717 50,268
6,083 70,000 137,284 213,367
93,390 3,260 96,650
217,906 e 1,519 18,361 3 237,789
29,551 (34) (3,020) 517 1,644 33,858
2,411,151 708,550 2,486,050 1,983,100 925,921 8,521,372
1,218,152 357,328 1,950,848 1,305,177 191,385 5,022,8%0
1,096,258 346,728 331,035 261,89 693,264 2,729,181
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O—SELF-INSURANCE

Effective July 1, 1983 the Commonwealth became self-insured for losses occurring after June 30, 1983
for all statutory workers’ compensation and medical payments to its employes injured on the job. The
Commonwealth is also self-insured for tort Liability claims. Major tort self-insurance areas include automobile,
general tort, employe and transportation-related liability claims. Tort liabilities were determined as of June
30, 1994 based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience.

At June 30, 1994 the following amounts are reported in the General Fund and Motor License Fund, a Special
Revenue Fund, as accrued liabilities representing the estimate of payments to be made from currently
expendable available financial resources for accidents occurring through June 30, 1994 (expressed in
thousands): '

General Fund
Employe disability . .............0vu $ 92,880
Employe......ooviiiiniiniinnnnn, 7,743
Automobile. ... .vviiii it i, 2,958
General torf ......covvvivnivennnnen 1,879
Total ....ovvvviineeane $105,460
Motor License Fund
Transportation-related ... ....ovv'nnnn, $ 17,546

The portion of Commonwealth self-insurance liabilities that will not be liquidated with currently expendable,
available financial resources at June 30, 1994 is reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group as follows (expressed in thousands):

Employe disability . ................. $558,398
Transportation-related ........ e 218,000
General tort .........ciiviveninnnn. 31,330
Employe . ...oovniveniiiiaiai i, 10,067
Antomobile.......ooiiiiiiin i 8,887

Total.vvnreeenriineanaannn $826,682
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

NOTE P—~COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 1994 the Department of Transportation and the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit, have contractual commitments
of approximately $1,152 million and $144 million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass
transit projects. Financing for these future expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and
general obligation bond sales. In addition, the Commonwealth has certain contractual commitments for future
purchases of various goods and services approximating $5.9 billion at June 30, 1994. These commitments
are contingent upon the availability of financial resources.

At June 30, 1994 the foHowing discretely presented component units had approved loans that had not been
disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority............ $456
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority ............. 156
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ......c..ovvenennn.. 118

Operating Lease Commitments: The Commonwealth and its discretely presented component units have
commitments to lease certain buildings and equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable
operating leases as of June 30, 1994 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30:

2 $ 187,365
L2 N 91,457
L2 73,670
0 59,599
L2 N 73,237
Later YEAI5 o\ vuvvtrennnnrsararorasnorananecnsisivssssnsnansns 213,238

Total Minimbm Leass Payments - .. covuvvivivararnannuirens $ 698,566

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operaung leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 amounted to $215
million.

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the
Commonwealth arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemnation proceedings and other
alleged violations of Commonwealth and Federal laws. The Commonwealth has recorded accrued liabilities
at June 30, 1994 with respect to torts as described in Note O and as follows with respect to other matters
of litigation for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable (expressed in thousands):

General Fund .. ...t i e et $ 3,913
Motor License Fund .......coiiiviiiiiiiiniiii e 6,250
Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Fund......... 200
Capital Facilities Fund ........0oiiniiiiiiiiiaiiiinnnns, 236
Other General Long-Term Obligations .................... 64,307

Additionally, the Commonwealth has been involved over the past several years in certain legal proceedings
relative to bank taxes which continues into the present year, The Commonwealth is vigorously contesting these
cases, but if unsuccessful, the Commonwealth could be required to make settlements from the General Fund
of approximately $1.4 billion for bank taxes. Other cases that the Commonwealth is currently vigorously
contesting could range from approximately $57 to $204 million, $11 to $56 million, and $1 to $28 million
of additional liabilities for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Funds, respectively.

Discretely presented component units of the Commonwealth are vigorously contesting cases which could range
from zero to approximately $2 million, $9 million and $3 million of additional liabilities for the College and
University Funds, Proprietary Funds and a Fiduciary Fund, respectively, and could result in approxlmately
$3 million of additional liabilities for Governmental Funds.

Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings for which accruals have not been made, it is the
opinion of the Commonwealth’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the
Commonwealth’s financial position,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government
in the form of grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs (which are not included in
the general purpose financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with
terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable Federal regulations, including the expenditure
of resources for cligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit
Act or to financial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the Federal government or their designees.
Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these audits may become Habilities of the Commonwealth. The
Commonwealth is currently involved in administrative and legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies,
contesting various disallowances and sanctions related to Federal Assistance Programs ranging from $2
to $127 million. The Commonwealth’s management believes ultimate disallowances and sanctions, if any,
will not have a material effect on the general purpose financial statements.

At June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth had custody of $468 million in Federal Food Stamps. These food
stamps will be distributed to eligible recipients in accordance with Federal regulations.

Student Loan Guaraniees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (FHEAA), a Discretely
Presented Proprietary Fund Component Unit, guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident
students. Total outstanding guarantees issued by PHEAA approximated $9.0 billion at June 30, 1994, Under
the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, the PHEAA has entered into an agreement with the U.S.
Department of Education for reinsurance of death, disability, bankruptcy, and default claims paid to lenders.
Pursuant to this agreement, PHEA A receives reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that there
is compliance with various federal requirements, Reinsurance rates vary from 80 percent to 100 percent
(78 percent to 98 percent for loans originated on or after October 1, 1993} depending upon default rates
in the portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA. During the year ended June 30, 1994, PHEAAs default rate was
in a range that permitted the maximum reinsurance reimbursement from the Department.

Other Contingency: The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has entered into agreements with
insurance companies under which the Lottery purchases annuities under group contracts which provide
payments corresponding to the State Lottery Fund’s obligation to prize winners. The Commonwealth would
be liable for such future payments if the insurance companies would default on their payment. In the event
of default, the Commonweaith would have to fund future prize payments amounting to $2.2 billion, discounted
at an interest rate of 7.7 percent to a net present value of $1.2 billion at June 30, 1994.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE Q—MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND

The Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency Fund, acts primarily as an agent
to facilitate the payment of claims covering excess liability of health care providers practicing in the
Commonwealth. The Fund levies surcharges to health care providers to pay settled claims and administrative
expenses paid on behalf of health care providers during the prior year. The actuarially computed liability
to the health care providers for claims outstanding at June 30, 1994 totals $2,037. 1 million ($1,660.7 million
at present value based on the expected payment pattern and an assumed long-term interest rate of 4 percent).
At June 30, 1994 $104.3 million is payable with expendable available financial resources and is reported
as a 'fund liability, The remaining claims will be funded exclusively through assessments to health care
providers in future years as claims are settled and paid and, therefore, do not represent liabilities of the
Commonwealth. The following is a summary of the increases and decreases of the Fund’s assets for the
year ended June 30, 1994 (expressed in thousands): '

Fund assets, July 1, 1993..........c.covininnnlts $115,836
Surcharges to health care providers................ 165,229
Investment Carmings. . . oo vevrsvararrrnrrarsroasss 3,911
Payments to claimants..........cooooiiiiiii it (164,849)
AdminiSIrative COSES + v vecvnne e inianrrrrrnnrnnes (7.991)
Fund assets, June 30, 1994 . _...........c.oov v $112,136

NOTE R--DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth offers its employes a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenne Code Section 457, The plan, which is administered by the State Employes’ Retirement System,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan
are -not available to employes until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

ANl amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with the amounts,
and all income attributable to these amounts are solely the property and rights of the Commonwealth, subject
only to the claims of the Commonwealth’s general creditors. Participants® rights under the plan are equal
to those of general creditors of the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred
account of each participant. The Commonwealth has no liability for losses under the plan but does have
the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Commonwealth believes
it is unlikely that plan assets will be used to satisfy future claims of general creditors.

Of the $171 million in assets (at market value) reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency
Fund, at December 31, 1993, $168 million relates to primary government employes and $2 million relates
to employes of discretely presented component units. The remaining balance of $1 million relates to
organizations not included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE S-JOINT VENTURE

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, and various labor unions representing
Commonwealth employes participate in a joint venture, the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust
Fund (PEBTF). The PEBTF establishes and provides health and welfare benefits. The
Commonwealth is required to fund all necessary contributions to pay for the cost of providing
benefits; the unions are not required to make contributions, Contribution rates and/or amounts are
established by collective bargaining agreements and administrative policies. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1994, the Commonwealth paid PEBTF over $400 million in contributions to fund
benefits. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions have an equity interest in the PEBTF. At June
30, 1994, the PEBTF reported total assets of $156 million, total liabilities and benefit obligations of
$61 million, and net assets available for benefits of $95 million. During the fiscal year, net assets
available for benefits decreased by $28 million. The financial status of the PEBTF is monitored on
an ongoing basis; financial stress is not evident. Contractual agreements between PEBTF and third-
party service providers require escrow and advance accounts to be maintained. As of June 30, 1994
the Commonwealth has funded almost $15 million toward the maintenance of the balances in these
accounts. In addition, the Commonwealth must maintain $15 million in a special account to meet
short-term cash needs of the PEBTF for annuitant benefit payments. Any amounts drawn by the
PEBTF must be repaid to the Commonwealth. No borrowings were made during the fiscal year.

Audited financial statements for the PEBTF are available, by request, from:

Brian Kilty

Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43rd Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111



- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government

On August 15, 1994 MA-GO Leasing Corporation of Pepnsylvania issued $48.9 million of Certificates
of Participation, with interest rates ranging from 4.2 percent to 5 percent, to finance the leasing of certain
equipment by the Commonwealth pursuant to a Third Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement dated August
1, 1994,

" On October 20, 1994 the Commonwealth issued $600 million in Tax Anticipation Notes, First Series of
1994-95. The notes are payable from and secured by the pledges of revenues to be received in the General
Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. These obligations are due and payable no later than June
30, 1995,

On November 1, 1994 the General Fund transferred $24.1 million to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund
(SWIF). The SWIF has reported this transfer as a recovery, during its fiscal year ended December 31,
1993 of a loss provision reported by SWIF during its fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, The amount
transferred, made through an appropriation included in the 1994-95 General Fund budget, is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1994 and is disclosed in Note K.

On November 4, 1994 the Nursing Home Loan Fund (NHLF), a Special Revenue Fund, sold all loans
receivable for approximately onc-half of the amounts contractually owed. The sale occurred as a result of
an Executive Order issued by the Governor and a resolution passed by the NHLF Board, The NHLF has
fulfilled its statutory purpose and, by selling the portfolio, the Commonwealth is able to fund several new
low income housing initiatives. Of the proceeds realized from the sale, amounting to $11.6 million, $7
million were transferred to the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, a discretely presented component
unit proprietary fund type, $3.3 million were transferred to the General Fund and the balance is being re-
tained by the NHLF. These ransfers were made in accordance with specific legislation included in both
the 1993-94 and 1994-95 fiscal year budgets. As of June 30, 1994 the loans receivable balance was reduced
to the amount received.

On November 15, 1994 the Commonwealth issued $290.6 miltion of general obligation bonds, Third Series
of 1994 with interest rates ranging from 5.5 percent to 6.75 percent. $278 million of the bond proceeds
will be used for the construction and acquisition of capital facilities projects, the purchase of agricultural
conservation easements, the expansion and construction of county and multicounty regional prison facilities,
and recreational park and conservation projects. $12.6 million of the bond proceeds will refund a portion
of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania General Obligation Bonds, Third Series of 1985 and First Series A of 1987.

In September, 1994 the Internal Revenue Service requested permission to review documents related to the
Tuly 1, 1993 certificates of participation, in the amount of $762 million, referred to in Note K, which were
issued to refund the bonds of five local government authorities which were issued to finance the construc-
tion of new prison facilities. The Commonwealth provided the requested information. The Internal Revenue
Service has neither requested additional information nor provided a purpose or status of its inguiry.

Discretely Presented Component Units

On July 1, 1994 the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a Proprietary Fund Component Unit,
redeemed prior to maturity $5.2 million of Multi-Family Residential Development Bonds Issue P. An ex-
traordinary loss of $85 thousand resulted from the redemption.

On July 14, 1994 the PHFA’s Board of Directors approved the issuance of $40 million Single Family Mort-

gage Revenue Bonds, Series 1994-42. The proceeds of these bonds will be used to partially redeem the
PHFA'’s Single Family Series X Bonds and to fund the purchase of new Single Family Mortgage Loans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T—Subsequent Events (continued)

On August 30, 1994 the PHFA issued $50 million Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1994-41.
The proceeds of these bonds will be used to partially redcem the PHFA’s Single Family Series H and X
Bonds, to pay maturing principal on the PHFA’s Single Family Series H, J, X, L, N, O through Z, 1990-27
through 1991-31, 1992-33, and 1992-34 Bonds, and to fund the purchase of new Single Family Mortgage
Loans.

On August 30, 1994 the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $15.4 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue
Bonds, Series H and X. An extraordinary loss of $418 thousand resulted from the redemptions.

On October 3, 1994 the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $2.1 million of Single Family Mozrtgage Revenue
Bonds, Secriecs N and O, An extraordinary loss of $47 thousand resulted from the redemptions.

On July 14, 1994 the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), a Governmental Funds
Component Unit, issaed $45.9 million in Series L tax-exempt Revenue Bonds to provide funds to undertake
various capital projects at universities within the State System of Higher Education (SSHE). In connection
with the bond issuance, SSHE has entered into a loan agreement with the PHEFA, and has pledged its
full faith and credit for the repayment of the bonds.

On August 31, 1994 the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a Proprietary Fund
Component Unit, remarketed $75 million Student Loan Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds 1988 Series

C and $36 million Student Loan Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds 1988 Series E. As a result, the

interest rates are now reset weekly by the remarketing agent on the basis of prevailing market conditions.
The rate at August 31, 1994 was 3.15 percent. In connection with the remarketing, these issues became
public issues rather than private placements,

On September 21, 1994 the PHEAA borrowed $200 million at the 91 day Treasury Bill rate plus 0.65 per-
cent, On September 23, 1994 the $50 million revolving credit agreement was renegotiated and the principal
now may not exceed $60 million, On September 28, 1994 the PHEAA purchased $240 million of student loans.

During July, 1994 the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority, a Proprietary- Fund Component
Unit, issued $35 million of revenue bonds to provide additional financing for loans. The bonds bear interest
at 3.5 percent through February 1, 1995, after which they will be remarketed weekly at variable interest
rates. Based upon loan agreements and indenture requircments, the bonds will ultimately revert to fixed
rates and will mature at various dates through September 1, 2014.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted
to expenditure for specified purposes.

State Lottery Fund — to account for the payment of prizes to winners in the state lottery, for property tax and rent
assistance to the elderly, for mass transit fare subsidies, for the inflation dividend program for the elderly and for a partial
rebate of drug and medical costs incurred by the elderly.

Motor License Fund — to account for highway and bridge improvement, design and maintenance, for the purchase of
Rights-of-Way, for aviation activities, for transportation licensing and safety activities, for payment of subsidies for
censtruction and maintenance of roads, and for financing Pennsylvania State Police highway patrol operations.

Workmen’s Compensation Administration Fund — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workmen's
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. The Fund assesses insurance companies and self-
insured businesses a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these Acts.

Public Transportation Assistance Fund — to account for the capital, asset maintenance and other transportation needs of
the Commonwealth’s transit entities. Revenue is derived from a fee on the sale of new tires, an additional motor vehicle
lease tax, and a motor vehicle rental fee.

Pharmaceuntical Assistance Fund — to account for a limited pharmaceutical assistance program for the Commonwealth’s
senjor citizens who are 65 years of age or older.

Water Facilities Loan Fund — to account for the implementation of the water project loan referendum that authorizes the
Commonwealth to approve loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and improvement of
water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Repayments of principal and interest from loans
are transferred to the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund — to account for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout
Pennsylvania, for grants and loans for industrial and small business development, for acquisition of equipment for vocational
programs in secondary schools, and for agricultural and recreational programs.

Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund - to account for cleaning up abandoned hazardous waste sites throughout the
Commonwealth and restoring the land to productive use.

Fish and Game Fund — to account for the administration and enforcement of fish and game laws and for the protection
and propagation of game and aquatic life.

Recycling Fund — to account for grants for recycling solid waste, market and waste minimization studies and public
information and educational activities. Financing for the planning, processing, resource recovery and recycling of solid
waste is generated by a fee on all waste disposed of in landfills or processed by resource recovery facilities.

Other — to account for programs related to conservation and protection of natural resources, the preservation of historical
landmarks, administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs, and other miscellaneous

Commonwealth activities. This other category includes thirty-five individual special revenue funds.

Ther are a total of forty-five special revenue funds.
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Debt Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investinent Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of

- principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and
improvement of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued for
capital projects authorized by Capltal Budget Acts. Fundmg consists of fransfers from the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds
issued for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and
small business development. Fundmg consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic
Revitalization Fand.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction
and improvement to water supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities
Loan Fund.

" Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for
the acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund,

Other — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
voluntezr fire companies and for compensation to Vietnam Veterans. Funding consists primarily of transfers from the

General Fund. This other category includes eight individual debt service funds.

There are a total of fourteen debt service funds.
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Capital Projects Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or other public
organizations.

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for the proceeds of general obligation bonds to meet the financing costs of capital
projects specifically itemized and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Local Criminal Justice Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties for the repair, expansion,
construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local correctional facilities or multicounty regional prison facilities, or

for the purchase of electronic monitoring equipment for alternative sentencing programs.

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to meet the financing costs for the
acquisition, development and improvement to Commonwealth land and water facilities.

There are a total of three capital projects funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 1994

- - -~
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
- Local Land and
k Capital Criminal Water
Facilities Justice Development Total
ASSETS
Cash ..t i i i 3 4 $ 1 $ 6 $ i1
Temporary investments ....ovvsuivserenneransrasencs 183,584 5,176 5,051 193,811
Receivables, net:
Accerued Interest .........cvrerrnanamnririitaranan 198 33 18 249
Due fromother funds. .. ....ovvinnnrmrninnnnsnaranas 549 e e 549
TOTAL ASSETS ... ...t iiiiiianaranerennas $ 184,335 $ 5,210 $ 5,075 $ 194,620
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued lisbilities.............. $ 77,233 $ 4,233 $ 125 $ - 81,591
Due to other funds ............... fetireienaeneans 159 C e 19 178
L TOTAL LIABILITIES ......cc0iiivaruvnnannoses 77,392 4,233 : 144 81,769
- Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Bncumbrances ....cveeveneranens e veberaseanans 275,649 13 1,058 276,720
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital projects ...viiuuviriniiiiirneivaraienns Ca s 964 3,873 4,837
Undesignated (defici) .....c.cvvvvrnnnes P . - {168,706) - e . (168,706)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES .......ccviisuiaas 106,943 - 977 4,931 112,851

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ....... $ 184,335 $ 5,210 ] 5,075 $ 194,620
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Capital Projects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thensands)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental . .. ..o iviiiiie i an,
Charges for goods and services............coiiinnenn
Investment INCOME ... .ovvivinininrrnerarnianannnns

EXPENDITURES:
General GOVEININENE . .0 v vvuveninivrnenreriernrnannas
Protection of persons and property . ......cvvrvaiennann
Conservation of natural resources................0nve,
Economic development and assistance .................
Transportation . .. oo ver et iiiniiansaniiiearaasons
Capital oUtlaY + v vvieiei i i i e e e

TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......covvvivnnannnnn.
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ...........

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bondproeeeds. ... civiviiiiiiiiiniaiiii e )

Operating transfers o, .. covvviireeeenriererninennns
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ....... ...,

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES...

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1993 ............0ovnvnns

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1994. ..................

Local Land and
Capital Criminal Water
Facilities Justice Development Total

$ 4,818 $ ..., $ ... $ 4,818
6,384 C . . 6,384
3,962 1,007 148 5,117
e e 31 31
15,164 1,007 179 16,350
2,275 e e 2,275
C 97,588 c . 97,588
1,599 e e 1,599
8,359 e e 8,359

100,675 e e 100,675
160,388 e 3,304 163,692
273,296 97,588 3,304 374,188
(258,132) (96,581) (3,125) (357,838)
300,643 46,250 3,936 350,829
(55,328) R (148) (55,476)
245,315 46,250 3,788 295,353
(12,317 (50,331) 663 (62,485)
119,760 51,308 4,268 175,336
$ 106,043 $ 977 % 4,931 $ 112,851
—84—
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Enterprise Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Surny Day Fund — to account for and provide assistance to the Governor and the Economic Development Partnership in
their effort to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development enterprises to the Commonwealth.

Capital Loan Fund — to account for and provide low interest loans to businesses for the purchase of land, buildings,
machinery, equipment and for working capital.

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund — to account for and provide workmen’s insurance to private employers in the
Commonwealth, including those unable to obtain coverage from private insurance firms.

State Stores Fund — to account for the general operation of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board, Expenses include all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the Liquor Store System and enforcement of the Liquor Control
Law.

Volunteer Companies Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Minority Business Development Loan Fund — to account for and provide loans to minority business and for operating
expenses of the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue include loan repayments,
transfers from the General Fund and interest.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interést machinery and equipment financing to
Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness and value added-capacity. Sources of revenue include
loan repayments, transfers from the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund and interest earnings.

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers and
vocational rehabilitation services and loans and grants issued to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development

enterprises to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, This other category includes eight individual enterprise funds.

There are a total of fifteen enterprise funds.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 8
Enterprise Funds

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA i
{Expressed in Thousands)

State :

Warkmen's State i

Sununy Capital Insurance Stores .
Day Loan (Dec. 31, 1993) (June 18, 1994)

CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR) OPERATIONS:

Operating ineome (1088) c .ottt reriesrarererssrararassans $ 3,778 § 2,414 % 108,952 § 53,250

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation . c o ve i ie it ninraristnnnrssnaransstnsarnanss PR e 1,108 5,172
Provision for uncollectible accounts .. .......c.o0viiiinaaaans 14,284 113 (2,561) 689 :
Change in assets and liabilities: .
(Increase)/decrease in receivables.........c.o.iiiiiiiians (11,370) 212 (25,787 1,790
(Increase)/decrease in due from other funds ................ C e 100 13 (118 :
Decrease in due from other governments .................. N NN e . !
Increase in IAVENEOTY ... ..ottt atiaiiarisinanns e e e e (4,128) ;
Decrease in other assets .. .. vvii i iniin it raranannennas e . 94 283
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . 96 R 1,432 . 621
Increase/(decrease) in due to other funds . ......... .. ... e Ca (953) 356 B
Increase in due fo other governmems .......ovvveivnnnaeas PP e P 20 {
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue ... ..o i, e A 30,089 .. R
Increase in insurance loss Hability .......coviuiiii i, e G 81,928
Increase in other liabilities .. ......coieieiirnrieiiennanas . e 4,174 e -
Total AQJUSETIENLS « . .\ et et eaeee e 3,010 425 89,537 4,685 ‘: i
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING Cd
ACTIVITIES ..ttt iiiiiaaiarissianonsnsssniaraoncns (768) 2,839 198,489 57,935
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING o
ACTIVITIES: _ P
Principal paid on notes payable and revenue bonds._ .., .......,.. e e e (712) : T
Intersst paid on notes payable and revenue bonds .. ............. e R PP (35
Operating transfers ot .. oiu v iiiie i iiiin e itiaiaiasnieas e e R (48,105)
Increases in contributed capital ...... ..ot iiiiiiiien e e 930 R
Deecrease in contributed capital ..., .ottt iainiiri i
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ... ..couviiiiiiiiiininianninins e 980 e (48,872)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Increases in contributed eapital ... ... ... . i e e e e e
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ... .. .viiieii.an e e (1,196) (1,546) o1
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND 5
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ............c000vas e e e (1,196) (1,548)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: Ty
Puzrchase of investments . ........viriiireinninioiarasainias (17,720) (10,235) (3,329,897 (516,538) i
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments ............... 18,453 6,299 3,131,825 506,737 . i
Investment INCOME .. ...yt eenerrrnenransnneennnsnnnrnens e e R 2,069
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING -
ACTIVITIES L.ttt et asimatneranaeeaanenrnn 733 (3,936) (198,072) (7,732) o
B I
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH ..........ccvvn. . {35) (117 (779 (215) o
CASH, JULY 1, 1993 . . ittt iereitmae e cieaaaeneanan 36 240 6,383 3,737
CASH, JUNE 30, 1994 .. .vurerivnrinererineranerasasnssnssnns $ 1 3% 123 8 5,604 3 3,522 0
.
[

There were no material investing, capital and financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments
during the fiscal year.




For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

Minovity
Vokinteer Busi Machinery
Companies Developmend and Equipment
Loan Loan Loan Other Total

$ 947 $ (3,530 §  {1,218) $ 1,559 $ 158,595

629 6,909
348 508 2,025 7 15,413
6,729 3,621) (11,543) 611 (57,659)
(3,904) (3,909)
. 16 16
o 23) (@,151)
317
765 cee (283) 2,631
e (60) @ 17 (642)
90 110
3 Ce e 210 30,296
. e 81,928
..... 4,174
(6,384) (2,408) (9,520) (3,852) 75,493
(5,437 (5,939 (10,738) (2,293) 234,088
712)
.. (55)
(48,105)
9,335 1,400 7,300 750 20,765
N o
9,835 1,400 7,800 743 (28,114)
751 751
= (700) (3,442)
51 (2,691)
L (18,268) 2,921 (13,139 (14,188) (3,922,906)
. 13,834 7,473 16,104 14,787 3,715,512
¢ : 895 2,964
(4,434) - 4,552 2,965 1,494 (204,430) "
(36) 13 27 ) (1,147
136 10 63 118 10,728
$ 100 $ 23 $ 95 $ 13§ 9,581

| —0fem



Internal Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth,
or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materials, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the
Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwedlth departments, boards and commissions.

Manufacturing Fund — to account for the manufacture and sale of goods by inmates in the institutions of the Department
of Corrections.

There are a total of two internal service funds.

. L



COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Internal Service Fonds

June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
: (Expressed in Thousands)

- ASSETS

Cash ... e
-‘Temporary investments ..........co0vernn .

Receivables, net:

ACCOUDLS . .0 vt it ie s
Accrued interest .......iiiiiiiie e
[0 51T
Due from other funds .............c00nns.
Due from component units .. ......oouii.n .
Due from other governments ......... e
INVentory . . . .ov oot e
Fixed assets ......c.cvvvvvnnvrnnnnnnnnnns
Less: accumulated depreciation ............

Other assets ... vvenre i iieneirranrnaness
TOTAL ASSETS .. ... ... i iiiiianenan

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ... ..
Duetoother funds...................0utn
Due to other governments.................
Notespayvable...................... Cae

TOTAL LIABILITIES . ..........ovvvne

Fund Equity:
Contributed capital......... ... ...l
Retained earnings:
Unreserved ........coiiviiinininnnn,
TOTAL FUND EQUITY ..............s

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

—94—

Purchasing Mannfacturing Total = -
$ 236 5 173 - 409
22,302 3,712 i 26,014
24 e 24

78 11 89
e 333 333
7,875 3,400 11,284

950 9 959

233 20 253
2,278 10,480 12,758
36,664 16,419 53,083
(17,391) 9,077 (26,468)
3,531 97 3,628

$ 56,780 $ 25,586 $ 82,366
$ 9,090 $ 3,441 $ 12,531
8,818 236 9,054

22 31 53

3,970 C . 3,970
21,900 3,708 25,608
9,219 9,219
25,661 21,878 47,539
34,880 21,878 56,758

$ 56,780 $ 25,586 $ 82,366

s
5 sy
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thovsands) :

Purchasing Mannfacturing Total

QOPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and SEIVICES .t vt iiriir it r e $ 75,523 $ 25,046 $ 100,569
[0 1T O e e 17 17
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ................ 75,523 25,063 100,586
OPERATING EXPENSES:
. Costofsales and Services .. .c..veviiinniineniinaaas 63,261 23,597 86,858
Depreciation . . ...ttt e 4,807 690 5,497
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ................. 68,068 24,287_ 92,355
OPERATING INCOME ....... ... ciiiiianinannes 7,455 776 8,231
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
- Investment INCOME ... .oovr it ieararrsnrioanrsenroann 608 115 723
i IOEETESt EXPEISE . o e avvveee v areerainstecnnannssan (899) C e (899
' (07317 S (172) (85) (257
NONCPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET .. (463) 30 (433)
NET INCOME ..... i iiiia s 6,992 806 7,798
RETAINED EARNINGS, AS RESTATED, JULY 1, 1993, 18,669 21,072 39,741
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1994 ... ........... $ 25,661 $ 21,878 $ 47,539

—95—
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Internal Service Funds '

For the Fiscal Year Ended Juhe 30, 1 994 ‘ _'

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA -
(Expressed in Thousands)
Purchasing Manufacturing Totat
CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR) -
OPERATIONS: Y
o
Operating iNcome ..., oovnit ittt 3 7455 $ 776 $ 8,231
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities: .
Depreciation .. .ov vt i iii e e e 4,807 650 5,497 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables ................. (73) 35 (38) "
(Increase)/decrease in due from other funds ........ 3,308 (833) 2,475
Increase in due from component units ............. (950) ()] (959)
(Increase)/decrease in’ due from other governments .. 129 ()] 124 .
Increase in INVERLOLY v 'vvvvnv i invinenninonnss (276) (851) {1,127 |
Decrease in Other 88568 . .. vv i verrenervinnans 1,323 11 1,334 §
Increase in accounts payable and accrued
Habilities . . .o e et e it e 1,302 600 1,902 .
Increase in due to other funds.................... 6,028 59 6,087 P
Increase in due to other governments.............. 2 5 7 L
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS .........ciiiiiiien 15,600 (298) 15,302 ]
NET CASH PROVIDED BY :
OPERATING ACTIVITIES .. ......cvvvvinnnas 23,055 478 23,533 o
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL .
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: ﬁ
Principal paid on notes payable .................... (1,161) e (1,161)
Interest paid on notes payable..........ocovevinnin. i (320 e (320)
NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL S
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ....cooieannnnnan... (1,481) Ce (1,481) |
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: N
Interest paid on revenue bonds ..............co..... (579) 1 e (579) o
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ......... (7,274 (1,837) 9,111)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets ........... e 1,044 . 1,044 |
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND ' i
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES .......... (6,809) (1,837) (8,646) :
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: -
Purchase of invesStments. .......covvriviverennennnns (49,431) (17,732} (67,163) L
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments. .. ... 34,086 18,973 53,059
Investment Income ........c.oi it 608 115 723
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) P
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ..........oovannn... (14,737) 1,356 (13,381) i
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH......... 28 3) 25 !
CASH, JULY 1, 1993 ... ............................ 208 176 38 »
CASH, JUNE 30, 1994 .. .00 iii i iiinracnannnransaes 3 236 $ 173 $ 409 i
primint————— fe— f— ]
P
There were no material investing, capital and financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash '
payments during the fiscal year. -
L
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Trust and Agency Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Trust and Agency Funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
These include Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and Agency Funds.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Unemployment Compensation Fund — to account for the receipt of employer and employe taxes, for the payment of
unemployment compensation benefits to eligible individuals and to transfer and receive monies from the Federal
Unemployment Trust Fund,

Workmen’s Compensation Securify Trust Fund — to account for the payment of workers compensation claims to
individuals who are insured by an insclvent stock insurance company and for the administrative costs to administer the
program.

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund - to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenses
over $100,000 to residents injured in a motor vehicle accident covered by the original Catastrophic Loss Trust Fund (no
longer in existence).

Other — to account for financial assistance to public schools for certain repairs or alterations to buildings and for
reimbursement to aggrieved individuals upon judgements against any person licensed by the Real Estate Commission.
This other category includes six individual expendable trust funds,

PENSION TRUST FUND:

State Employes’ Retirement System—to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits to members
of the State Employes’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries,

AGENCY FUNDS

Institutional Custodian Aecounts — to collect and administer personal funds received for the needs of patients at veterans
hospitals and inmates at State correctional institutions.

Statutory Liquidator Fund — to convert the assets of insolvent insurance companies into cash for distribution to creditors,
policyholders and stockholders.

Deferred Compensation Fund — to collect and administer funds contributed by Commonwealth employes who are
deferring a portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent premiums tax received from foreign (out-of-state) fire insurance
companies conducting business in the Commonwealth and to distribute monies to local governments. The municipalities
must pay these monies to the relief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization,

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — 10 collect a portion of the insurance company tax revenues for distribution to municipalities
for distribution to police and fire pension funds.

Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund — to collect annual surcharges levied on health care providers to
make professional liability insurance available at a reasonable cost to health care providers.

Other — to collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other state and local governments or the
'Federal Government. This other category includes eight individual agency funds.

There are a total of nine expendable trust funds, one pension trust fund and fourteen agency funds.

[ E—




- COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
v Trust and Agency Funds ' :
- _ June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Expendable Pension Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fund Fuyds Total
ASSETS
[0 1 - A $ 4,159 $ e % 3,062 $ 7,221
Cash with fiscal agents .......ccciiiivinirinronaonsoana 1,379,438 e 1 1,379,439
Temporary investments ............iiiiiioiananassonsns - 80,867 495,595 540,370 1,116,832
Longterm investments . .....ovuouviviiisaiaronsnansannas 271,458 13,050,313 219,946 13,541,717
Receivables, net: '
KOS v ee e e e ceceaaraaeetanacaraseeetaaastnnsanas 430,708 e 2,725 433,433
ACCOUNMES v vt vttt raer s srnarrnrasnsernnaosannnnns 8,887 .- 81,149 90,036
Accrtied IErest . .vve v iir e cirar iy 6,201 80,321 2,119 88,731
OBHET &t iiiiiiiiiiiiieeiararacasessonacsssarnans PR 1,108 98 1,206
Due fromother funds.........oovivivniiiiaieianennns 7,802 68,320 1,350 77,472
Due from component units ............... e 313 . 9,913 e e ' 10,226
Due from other gOVErIMENLS. . covvvvusiisivuvrirnosnasss 15,393 9,030 191 24,614
Fixed 2888 . .. vviniiininnnrenreratanasasnonrinsrennas PR 100 e 100
Less: accumulated depreciation .........ccoovoeaiooun e (100) e (100)
Other 8SSEt8 . .o v v iuvaerurorantnsaoecrarananananarerann e [ 31,999 31,999
E TOTAL ASSETS .. . it i iieiiinanananononen $ 2,205,316 $13,714,600 $ 883,010 $16,802,926
s LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
| Liabilities: .
5 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ................ $ 117,701 $ 13,695 $ 194,043 $ 325,439
Tax refunds payable ... .ooovviiiiiiiiiiiii i, 2,535 I N 2,535
Duetoother funds .......ciiuiiminriinneiiineinneens 5,059 13 1,310 6,387
Due to other OVEINMENES . ... .ouvyrennenaiaraneninses 2,474 e 196,580 195,054
Other liabilities ... ..oviiiniiiiiniieiiiiiiaceerararas A L 491,077 491,077
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..........cc0ovcicvunaannrnsns 127,769 J13,713 883,010 1,024,492
Fund Balance:
Reserved for: .
Encumbrances ..., vevironerrararrarnecarrrsrererann 17,825 P e .. 17,825
Pensionbenefits ... ..oovivirinniininererrnreanans e 13,700,887 e 13,700,887
Long-term inveslments ......ceoveieeacanvacas e 271,458 e e 271,458
r ' Unreserved:
Do Designated for:
13T 260 e e 260
Undesignated ......0iiiiiiiiiosieraisencaienens 1,788,004 e e e 1,788,004
TOTAL FUND BATANCES ........coiirrrnnencnean 2,077,547 13,700,887 C e 15,778,434
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .......... $ 2,205,316 $13,714,600 $ 883,010 $16,802,926

—g9—
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CONIBINING BALANCE SHEET ' ' ' ]
Expendable Trust Funds ' -
S June 30, 1994
. COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
’ (Expressed in Thousands)
Workmen’s
Compensation Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits .
Compensation Trust Continuation Other Total
1
ASSETS S
CBEM L ettt e te ettt e $ 4000 $ 106 § 8 $ 45 $ 4,159 W
Cash with fiscal agents .........cc0vuens IR R R R TR 1,379,438 P e . e 1,379,438
Temporary investMents ... ...vvvrrrerrrorsrasasanrrrnns 2,111 43,621 - 22,955 12,180 80,867 5
Long-term investments . . . vovvvneerersianaiararariinins e 270,941 e 517 271,458 ;
Receivables, net: i
TaXES v v vnervarasoesnnstnneerrsnsanarrnssennnnnes 430,708 . e e e . 430,708
ACCOUNES . ...ttt i e 39 8,848 I 8,887 oy
T B v S 26 6,034 89 142 6,291 ' ;
Due fromother funds. .. ... ..o i 2,952 4,850 G e e 7,802 o
Due from component units ........ccvvvirireaiaianerann 313 . . e 313
Due from other overnments. ... ..covevrvrnrarvaronrvaas 15,393 e s e . 15,393 .
TOTAL ASSETS .. .. i cicieaaanans $ 1,834941 $ 325591 $ 31,900 % 12,884 $ 2,205,316 :
{
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: o
Accounts payable and accrued liabifities...... rreaeiane $ 70,678 8 29,726 % 17,047 % 250 $ 117,701 j ;
Tax refinds payable ... vrvrvrerrerrrananrnrrarares 2,535 R e e 2,535 e
Dustootherfunds ...... ... it e 41 4,893 125 5,059
Due 1o other ROVEIMMNENLS . cvv vt ivinarasasararasanns 2.474 e e e e 2,474 ’ ‘
TOTAL LIABILITIES ....... ... iiiiiinvnrnnananns 75,687 29,757 21,940 375 127,769 i
Fund Balance: oy
Reserved for: -
ENCUTIDEANICES « v v v v s vevvesns vmnevsnsaneennnonees . 17,773 e 52 17,825 .
Long-term Investments .....uvvnreeenrarannereonncas R 270,941 e 517 271,458
- Unreserved: f‘m
Designated for:
L1 T 260 260
Undesignated .......0iiiiiiiarsaiorasarnnioranaras 1,759,254 7,110 9,960 11,680 1,788,004
TOTAL FUND BALANCES .......oiiiiiiiienananas 1,759,254 295,824 9,960 12,509 2,077,547
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .......... $ 1,834,941 3 325591 $ 31,900 & 12,884 § 2,205,316 ; *
"
3
|
T
]
3
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Expendable Trust Funds
' o For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Workimen's Catastrophic

Compensation Loss
Unemployment Securify Benefits
Compensatlon Trust Continuation Other Total
REVENUES:

TXE & v v v vevannvennsansanronasnaranasrneaneasasssass $ 6,242 § - | .. 8 ... 3 6,242

Unemployment tAXes .. .vuvueieiivieeiorinrerenanninnas 1,890,038 e e e . 1,890,038

Licenses and f888 . ... iviiie e nrnerannteirinrnans e 28,117 35,816 43 63,976

Intergovernmental . ... vivvnie i i e 643,505 e e e . 643,505

Investment COME +.vvrer et oreeiorosanrsarnnnarassses 77,921 22,514 866 250 101,551

L8 1175 P 165 582 PRV 10,492 11,239
TOTAL REVENUES . ....chrrreareinaiaansnnansss 2,617,871 51,213 36,682 10,785 2,716,551

EXPENDITURES:

Current: ]
General OVEIMMBIE o4 vvvve v i eneeisverssronsanannas e e 4,559 e e . 579 5,138
Protection of persons and property .......cceveviiuanons C e 24,473 10,576 324 35,373
Publichealthand welfare . ..........covvvnnennnun, 2,266,062 I e P 2,266,062
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ......0vvvvenercuinsnananan 2,266,062 20,032 10,576 903 2,306,573
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES ...........0c000e 351,809 22,181 26,106 9,882 409,978

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operatingteansfors in.......... et msae e e . e e 5 5

Operating transfers out. .. ooovvviiii i e e e e . (123) {123)
NET OTHER FINANCING USES ........cocvevviiuns . e e C . (118) (118)
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES ............... 351,809 22,181 26,106 9,764 409,860
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JULY 1, 1983 ............. 1,407,445 273,643 (16,146) 2,745 1,667,687
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 19%4.................. veee 81,759,254 8 295824 § 9,960 § 12,509  § 2,077,547
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended Junre 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Th ds}

INSTITUTIONAL CUSTODIAN ACCOUNTS

ASSETS
L7 L.«
Temporary investments .............c......
Tong-term INvestments . ... ....cvvvvveen.en.
Receivables, net:
ACCOMILS « 0 vvvnvnn s iniasensrnrnsarans
Other assets. . ... ..ot i i ies e

TOTAL ASSETS .............. e

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .....
Other Habilities . ... ... ovueraennnnn.

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...............

STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND
ASSETS

Temporary investments ...........c.cvvunn
Long-term investmentS. .......covveiininen
Receivables, net:
ACCOUIMS .. o.ioiiiit i i
Accrued interest .. ...l
Due from other funds .............. ... ...

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .....
Puetootherfunds.......................
Other Habilities .. ...

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...............

DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND
(December 31)

ASSETS

Cash with fiscal agent ................. ...
Temporary investments ......ooovvviennenn
Long-term investments. ...................
Receivables, net:
Accrued interest . ... ... ieiainean
L 1T

TOTAL ASSETS ....................

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities .. ...
Duetootherfunds.......................

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...............

Balance Balance
July 1, 1993 Additions Deductions June 30, 1994
$ 2,660 48,262 $ 48,102 $ 2,820

17,032 e 2,003 15,029
1,253 69 9 1,313
9,058 12,491 9,058 12,491
4,121 5,547 4,489 5,179

$ 34,124 $ 66,369 $ 63,661 § 36,832
3 9,217 $ 13,759 $ 10,146 $ 12,830
24.907 39,790 40,695 24,002

$ 34,124 $ 53,549 $ 50,841 $ 36,832
s .. .. $ 24,005 $ 24,004 $ 1
143,558 29,362 e e 172,520
20,230 44,382 5,862 58,750
54,000 18,143 7,410 64,733
437 875 437 875

77 e 77 e

9,183 20,675 2,438 26,820

$§ 227,485 $ 136,842 $ 40,228 $ 324,099
8 149 143 $ 149 $ 143
321 259 321 259

227,015 97,412 730 323,697
$ 227,485 97,814 $ 1,200 $ 324,099
$ 236 25,752 $ 25987 $ 1

e 1 e 1
9,679 15,437 14,399 10,717
116,044 44,714 875 159,883
27 29 27 29

73 98 73 98

3 126,059 86,031 $ 41,3561 $ 170,729
$ 125,802 44,739 3 128 $ 170,413
257 316 257 316

$ 126,059 45,055 3 385 $ 170,729
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds — (continued) : :
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
July 1, 1993 Additions Deductions June 30, 1994
: FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND
i ASSETS
LT 1 $ 1 $ 106,694 $ 106,694 $ 1
Temporary investments ..............c0..s 50,694 56,094 54,840 51,948
Receivables, net:
Accrued Interest .. ... .o, 131 189 131 189
TOTAL ASSETS . ....... oot $ 50,826 $ 162,977 $ 161,665 $ 52,138
LIABILITIES
Duetootherfunds .. .. ........oivnnnt, 3 131 $ 189 g 131 $ 189
Due to other governments . . ............... 50,655 51,854 50,600 51,949
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 50,826 $ 52,043 $ 50,731 $ 52,138
MUNICIPAL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS
(07T A $ 1 $ 278,135 $ 278,135 $ 1
Temporary investments ...............00-- 116,792 137,143 136,107 117,828
Receivables, net:
Accrued Interest .......cvvierereennan- 301 1,937 1,809 429
Due from other funds .................... 184 164 184 164
TOTAL ASSETS .. .........covaat. $ 117,278 $ 417,379 $ 416,235 $ 118,422
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments . . ... ............ $ 117,278 $ 134,980 $ 133,836 $ 118,422
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 117,278 $ 134,980 $ 133,836 $ 118,422
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND
ASSETS
07 . Y $ 2,036 $ 333,441 $ 335,245 $ 232
Temporary investments .......... e ' 113,395 164,451 170,233 107,613
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES .. ..o ittt ieienionenananns 110 3,925 130 - 3,925
Accrued interest ... ... ..ol 295 3,840 3,769 366
TOTAL ASSETS .. ... ........ ... $ 115,836 $ 505,657 $ 509,357 $ 112,136
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued IHabilities .. ... £ 3,201 $ 9572 $ 35,021 $ 7,752
Duetoother funds.......... ... iviet 74 32 74 32
Due to other governments . .........c..vvnn 4 5 4 5
Other liabilities . . ..o vvv e e 112,557 162,915 171,125 104,347
TOTAL LEABILITIES .. ............. $ 115,836 $ 172,524 $ 176,224 $ 112,136
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COMEBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS — (continued)
- For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance . Balance
July 1, 1993 Additions Deductions June 30, 1994 .
)
"OTHER FUNDS
ASSETS 3
[0 T AP $ 1,210 $ 648,236 $ 649,440 5 6 2
Temporary ivestments . .....covvveevnn... 21,656 326,819 284,160 64,315 o
Receivables, net:
TAXES « +oeevrareee e eieanaas 2,774 28,120 28,169 2,725
ACCOUIES .. viit it innniennrneacianas 199 c e 199 Ce e
Accrued interest ....... .. ... ... 65 665 499 231
Due from other funds .................... 3,793 1,186 3,793 1,186 .
Due from other governments .............. 195 3 7 191 - E
TOTAL ASSETS .......civvvniinn.s $ 29,892 $1,005,029 $ 966,267 $ 68,654 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..... s 13 $ 3,294 $ 402 $§ 2,905 !
Duetootherfunds....................... 486 1,887 1,859 514
Due to other governments . ................ 29,303 316,786 319,975 26,204 7
_ Other Habilities . ... ....coviniiniiininns, ) C e 39,031 C e 36,031 ‘ i
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 29,892 $ 360,998 $ 322,236 - $ 68,654 o
TOTAL — ALL FUNDS
ASSETS |
Cash. oo $ 6,144 $1,464,525 $1,467,607 $ 3,062 i
Cash with fiscal agents ................... . Ce 1 e 1
Temporary investments ................... 472,806 729,306 661,742 540,370 i
Long-term investments. . ......ooveeuneens. 137,527 80,165 6,746 219,946 !
Receivables, net: !
THEES « v v et etee e e s et 2,774 28,120 28,169 2,725
ACCOUMS ..ttt vt iinieeannanis 63,367 34,559 16,777 81,149 s
Accrued interest ........ .. i i, 1,256 7,535 6,672 2,119 : N
(01 73 98 73 98 o
Due from other funds .................... 4,054 1,350 4,054 1,350 .
Due from other governments .............. 195 3 7 191 : }
Other assets. oot ee i enan 13,304 25,622 6,927 31,999 )
TOTAL ASSETS .. ...............cuus $ 701,500 $2,380,284 $2,198,774 $ 883,010
LIABILITIES . EL
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities . . ... $ 138,382 § 71,507 $ 15,846 $ 194,043
Duetoother funds.............. ... 1,269 2,683 2,642 1,310 -
Due to other governments .. ............... 197,370 503,625 504,415 196,580 ,—\: i
Other ligbilities . ..o, 364,479 330,148 212,550 491,077 i
TOTAL LIABILITIES ............... $ 701,500 $ 916,963 $ 735,453 $ 883,010
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General Fixed Assets
Account Group

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
DESCRIPTION

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets
acquired or constructed for general government purposes. These include all fixed
assets except those accounted for in Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds.

N
3

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE Y
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994 g J

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Fxpressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance

s
July 1, June 30, |
1993 Additions  Retirements 1994 B
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS: i ‘!
Land . ... $ 229752 % 9,112 % 21 § 233,843 -
Buildings . ......ooviiniiiiiiiaiia.. 2,283,158 392,692 8,576 . 2,667,274
Improvements other than buildings....... 154,450 42,352 714 196,088 £
Furniture, machinery and equipment ..... 477,422 40,738 14,688 503,472 %
3,144,782 484,894 23,999 3,605,677 bl -
Construction in progress ............... 129,340 31,075 71,770 88,645
Total General Fixed Assets ......... $3,274,122 & 515,969 § 95,769  $3,694,322
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL T
FIXED ASSETS: 3{
Acquired on or before June 30, 1986 .... $2,027570 $ .... § 15,978 $2,011,592
Acquired after June 30, 1986 from: 2'-_“1‘
General fund revenues ............... 157,335 433,369 5,973 584,731 : i
General obligation bonds ............. 713,299 22,004 301 735,092 o
Federal grants ........oovvvevnnnnns. 27,236 1,491 a5 28,692 o
Special revenue funds. ............... 211,459 27,796 1,712 237,543 ’ } ‘
Donations «..vvviiceineenverranann, 7,833 c e . 17,833 . E
Confiscations. .. ..oveververerinannin 50 144 C e 194 o
Total SOmECes. vvvsrririaieanarane. 3,144,782 484,894 23,999 3,605,677 -
Construction in progress .....coeevesaes. 129,340 31,075 71,770 83,645 i

Total Invesiment in General Fixed Assets .  $3,274,122 § 515,969 § 95,769 $3,694,322

Funding sources for General Fixed Assets acquired on or before June 30, 1986 are not available.
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SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Expressed in Th d
I Furniture,
Tmprovements Machinery
Other Than And
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
FUNCTION
General government . ......vouevnniss $ 9,859 $ 449,242 $ 23,095 $ 59,074 $ 541,270
Protection of persons and property ..... 8,952 927,619 38,111 57,168 1,081,850
Public heaith and welfare............. 2,945 571,665 17,952 60,275 652,837
Public education .......cvveveinnnnnn 17,453 591,676 49,418 5,623 664,170
Conservation of natural resources ... ... 196,288 59,686 10,869 24,483 201,326
Economic development and assistance . . e e e 386 386
Transportation ... o cvvvivaninnrneanns 3,346 67,386 6,643 296,463 373,838
TOTALS ALLOCATED TO
FUNCTIONS . ....ovvvenrennenns $ 238,843 $2,667,274 $§ 196,088 $ 503,472 $3,605,677
Construction in progress............ 88,645
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS .... $3,694,322

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

| Fxpressed I Thousand
Balance Balance
S July 1, Transfers Transfers June 30,
1993 Additions Retirements In Out 1994

General government. .......c.coveveron. $ 533667 $ 13,256 3 9773 § 11,882 § 7,762 $ 541,270
Protection of persens and property....... 638,456 428,333 . 9,620 26,552 1,871 1,081,850
Public health and welfare . ........00uns 670,558 7,253 405 165 24,734 652,837
Public eduCAtion . v vverererverrarcnnnn 655,619 8,767 e P 216 664,170
Conservation of natural resources........ 285,259 6,441 368 27 33 291,326
Economic development and assistance ... . 381 64 e A 59 386
Transportation . ....oovvvivenianeinnan 360,842 20,780 3,833 138 4,089 373,838
3,144,782 484,894 23,999 38,764 38,764 3,605,677
Constriction in progress ....oovvvnnuenn 129,340 31,075 71,770 e P 88,645
TOTALS ...t nans $3,274,122 % 515969 § 95769 § 38,764 § 33,764 $3,694,322
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' NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA TABLE 2 o

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years ]

.. COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

g _ {— {Expressed in Thousands) : }
For The | _ )
Fiscal Year ol

Ended June 30 Net Bonded Deht Poputation Debt Per Capita ) }
1984 $4,483,573 11,816 $379 S
1985 4,535,008 11,772 385 N
1986 4,529,393 11,784 354 _‘
1987 4,558,839 11,812 386 J

1988 4,698,645 11,847 397 -
1989 4,705,202 11,866 397 1
1990 4,633,507 11,882 390 ji
1991 4,787,512 11,958 400
1992 4,873,542 11,995 406
1993 5,040,938 12,048 418 o
SOURCE: Population Information — U.S. Department of
~ Commerce, Bureau of the Census -
i
i
o
-
T
|
o
o
a
o)
N
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RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TABLE 3

FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT

TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
: For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Debt Service
For The Requirements Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Funded by General Fund
Ended June 30 General Fund Expenditures (1) %

1985 $ 359,200 $11,223,622 3.20

1986 350,195 11,781,951 2.97

1987 371,702 12,395,674 3.00

1988 303,907 13,180,073 2.99

1989 381,617 13,949,111 2.74

CL 1990 450,752 15,137,774 2.98
B 1991 456,325 16,251,111 2.81
1992 321,875 19,540,459 2.67

1993 497,045 19,986,749 2.49

1994 512,094 21,060,058 . 2.43

(D) Excludes encumbrances included in **Total Expenditures' in the Statement of Revenues," Expenditures
and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).
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COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN : : TABLE 4

As of August 31, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Average annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five

fiscal years ........ et $16,485,002,610
Constitutional factor ... oviiiiriniinriieriirrnnrnensns X 1.75
Constitutional debt limit for debt incurred without the

approval of the electors . .. .......oiiiiiiiiiiinan.. 28,848,754,567
Less outstanding net debt (non electorate approved) ....... 3,946,963,980
Legal debt margin. ...... e $24,901,790,587

The formula for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VIII, Section 7(a) of the Pennsylvania Constitution, which
provides:

Ne debt shall be incurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the provisions
of this section.

(1) Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or natural
disaster, or to implement unissued authority approved by the electors prior to the adoption of this article.

(2) The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, acting jointly, may (i} issue tax anticipation notes having
a maturity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the same fiscal
year, and (ii) incur debt for the purpose of refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures within the term
of the original debt.

(3) Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically itemized in the law authorizing such debt, if the
question whether the debt shall be incurred has been submitted to the electors and approved by a majority of
those voting ¢n the question.

(4) Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a capital
budget if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-quarters times
the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in the previons five fiscal years as certified by the Auditor
General. For the purposes of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt incurred under clauses
(1) and (2)(i}, or debt incurred under clause (2)(ii} if the original debt would not be so considered, or debt incurred
under subsection (3) unless the General Assembly shall so provide in the law authorizing such debt.

The figures above are abstracted from a certification of the Auditor General dated August 31, 1994,
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE .

TABLE §

Fof the Last Ten Fisd:zl Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission®
(Kxpressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiseal
Year Direct Net Revenue
Ended Gross Operating Available fox Debi Service Requirements
May 31 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1985 $154,542 $ 82,230 $ 712,312 $ 6,451 $ 3,604 $ 10,055 7.19
1986 162,539 93,648 68,891 4,662 3,381 8,043 8.57
1987 180,692 101,692 79,000 2,299 46,500 48,799 1.62
1988 221,807 100,875 120,932 3,225 56,514 59,739 2.02
1989 245,192 105,619 139,573 4,070 58,789 62,859 2.22
1950 252,373 113,546 138,827 123,940 73,051 196,991 0
1991 246,985 115,103 131,882 64,135 75,811 139,946 94
1992 312,079 113,217 198,862 7,450 76,628 84,078 2.37
1993 329,452 134,844 194,608 11,595 65,600 77,195 2.52
1994 344,617 142,915 201,702 9,405 70,892 80,297 2.51
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority®
{Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue
Ended Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1985 $24,658 $1,783 $22,875 $ 6,735 $13,167 $19,902 1.15
1986 23,320 1,897 21,423 7,910 13,359 21,269 1.01
1987 23,370 1,574 21,796 8,620 12,433 21,053 1.4
1988 25,479 1,765 23,714 8,525 11,257 19,782 1.20
1989 29,477 2,223 27,254 8,505 10,584 19,089 1.43
1990 30,422 1,997 28,425 8,900 9,873 18,773 1.51
1991 28,963 2,055 26,908 8,440 11,015 19,455 1.38
1992 24,592 1,994 22,598 10,645 18,920 29,565 76
1993 25,204 2,368 22,836 10,645 18,595 20,240 78
1994 29,802 2,138 27,664 23,085 19,116 42,201 66
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency®
{Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Eevenue
Ended Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requi t
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest® Total Coverage |
1985 $146,205 $10,686 $135,519 $ 8,180 $119,420 $127,600 1.06
1986 168,441 8,438 160,003 13,386 142,332 155,718 1.03
1987 159,034 8,088 150,946 14,987 136,625 151,612 1.00
1988 162,172 8,593 153,579 15,960 138,508 154,468 99
1939 182,535 8,402 174,133 20,226 148,327 168,553 1.03
1590 199,101 9,133 189,968 21,568 157,104 178,672 1.06
1991 214,580 9,944 204,636 25,173 153,305 178,478 1.15
1992 206,991 8,496 198,495 28,118 172,146 200,264 99
1993 200,268 9,803 190,465 27,410 165,480 193,890 98
1994 194,025 13,325 186,700 29,426 143,904 173,330 1.05

(2) Excludes interest on notes payable.
()Discretely Presented Component Unit.
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES OF THE RESIDENT POPULATION —

PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES

TABLE 6

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Calendar Year

1984
1985
15386
1987
1988
. 1989
1990
1991
1992
1993

235,847
237,950
240,162
242,321
244,534
246,820
248,710
252,160
255,078
257,908

(Expressed in Thousands)
United States

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census
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Pennsylvania

11,816
11,772
11,784
11,812
11,847
11,866
11,882
11,958
11,995
12,048

%

5.0
49
49
4.9
4.8
4.8
4.8
4.7
4.7
4.7

g
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L e




STATE BANKING INSTITUTIONS TABLE 7
DEMAND DEPOSITS AND TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSITS

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

i Time and
Calendar Year Demand Deposits Savings Deposits
1984 $5,263,282 $39,356,857
1985 : 5,728,297 42,322,007
1986 6,632,325 45,351,526
1987 6,443,804 47,556,165
1988 : 6,558,607 50,347,975
1989 6,481,900 53,565,427
1990 6,453,740 50,542,812
1991 6,308,495 52,112,591
1992 7,150,024 51,434,858
1993 7,620,397 54,334,637

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Banking
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TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME— TABLE 9
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME
Calendar {,___ (Millions of Dellars) _| I— (Dollars) _____l

Year United States  Pennsylvania % United States  Pennsylvania . %
1984 3,101,163 151,386 4.9 13,336 12,998 071.5.
1985 3,317,545 160,820 4.9 14,159 13,888 98.1
1986 3,519,364 169,697 4.8 14,910 14,715 . 98.7
1987 3,754,577 180,559 4.8 15,641 15,449 - " 98.8
1988 4,063,045 195,107 4.8 16,615 16,468 99.1
1989 4,367,719 209,367 4.8 17,696 17,644 99.7
1990 4,648,867 222,693 4.8 18,635 18,725 100.5
1991 4,813,897 230,946 4.8 19,001 19,313 101.2
1992 5,061,045 243,222 4.8 19,841 20,253 102.1
1993 5,368,962 257,248 4.8 _ 20,817 21,352 102.6

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis,
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THIRTY LARGEST NONGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS

TABLE 10

For the Calendar Year 1993

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

EMPLOYER RANK
Pennsylvania State University .. ....ovoviviininnenniens e e 1
Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania ........ P 2
K Mart COrporation . .. ....vu vttt et ien e ietnenrearnnennennss 3
Bell Atlantic ................: e e e e 4
U.S. Air, Incorporated ........iiiiniiii it i i e 5
Mellon Bank, N.A. ........ e e 6
Westinghouse Electric Corporation..........coovvvvviruan, e 7
United Parcel Service, INC. .. vt ittt ittt it ittt it st raiar e 8
General Electric COmpany ..........c.oveiivrenneennn.. [P S 9
Acme Markets, InC. . ... vi ittt i i et e e e e e 10
Weis Markets INCOTPOTRIEA . .o v v v vt etitert it ereet et eianeeannnns 11
The Prudential Insurance Co. of America.......ocvvviiiinnnnneinnnnnnn.n 12
Sears Roebuck and Company . ..........oviiiiiinininiiniiinenrernnnnn. 13
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. ........ e i 14
Temple UnIVeISitY .. oo vvt ittt it iie i e it et et aenn e ennnens 15
University of Pittsburgh ....... ..o i i e e e 16
Presbyterian University Hospital ...... ..ot iir ittt iiinnrnnns 17
Strawbridge & CIOthier .. ...ttt iie i, e e, 18
Thomas Jefferson University . .......oooiuiiii it it iiee s 19
Philadelphia Electric Co. ... ..o i i e e 20
JLC. Penney Co., InC. .o v ittt i it i i s e e e e 21
Philadelphia National Bank . ........coivniiii ittt 22
G .2 23
AMP Incorporated .. ..o iui i i e e e e i 24
Hershey Foods Corporation . ............c.ouiiieininrnneneenenenenennnn 25
Pennsylvania Power & Light Co. . ...vvvt ittt i i i i e 26
Giant Food Stores, InC. v vt vttt it ittt ittt ittt e 27
Thrift Drug, INC. ..o vttt it i e et ire it e 28
Giant Eagle, INC, . ... oovii i i it it i e e 29
S X GO POratiON . .ottt et eir it cae it et 30

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry,
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LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS THAT MAINTAIN ' "~ TABLE11
THEIR CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS IN THE COMMONWEALTH

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Advanta Corporation

Air Products and Chemicals, Inc.
Alco Standard Corporation
Allegheny Ludlum Corporation
Aluminum Company of America
Ametek

AMP Incorporated

ARCO Chemical _
Armstrong World Industries, Inc.
Associated Communications Corp.
Bell Atlantic Corporation
Bethlehem Steel Corporation

Betz Laboratories

Cigna Corporation

Comcast Corporation
Consolidated Natural Gas Co.
Consolidated Rail Corporation
CoreStates Financial Corporation
Crown Cork and Seal Company, Inc.
Dauphin Deposit Corporation '
DQE Corporation

Equitable Resources

General Nutrition

Glatfelter (P.H.) Company

H.J. Heinz Company

Harsco Corporation

Hershey Foods Corporation
Integra Financial Corporation
Intelligent Electronics

J&IL Specialty Steel

Jones Apparel Group

Kennametal Incorporated
Lukens Inc.

Mellon Bank Corp.
Meridian Bancorp, Inc.
Miles, Inc.

Mylan Laboratories

Nova Care

PNC Financial Corporation

PPG Industries, Inc.
Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.
Pep Boys '
Philadelphia Electric Co.

Quaker State Corporation

QVC Network

Rhone—Poulenc Rorer

- Rite Aid Corporation

Rohm and Haas Company
Scott Paper Company

Sun Company, Inc.
Sungard Data Systems
Teleflex

UGI Corporation

Union Pacific Corporation
UNISYS Corporation

U.S. Healthcare

USX Corporation

VF Corporation

Vishay Intertechnology
Weis Markets, Incorporated
Westinghouse Electric Corporation

- York International

SOURCE: The Fortune 500 and the Forbes 500 listings, published April 1994
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

TABLE 12

JUNE 30, 1994

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Date of Ratification of U.S. Constitution

Form of Government -

Miles of State Highway
Land Area - in square miles

State Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of State Police

Higher Education (Universities, Colleges and
Community Colleges):

Number of campuses in state

Number of educators

Number of students

Recreation:

Number of State Parks
Area of State Parks
Area of State Forests

SOURCE:

December 12, 1787
Legislative-Executive-Judicial
40,542

44,888

107
4,311

235
22,466
632,585

114
275,865 Acres
2,092,292 Acres

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Strategic Planning
Pennsylvania State Police, Bureau of Research and Development
Pennsylvania Department of Education, Division of Data Services
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Resources, Bureau of Forestry
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